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Q

December 1,2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of the Commissioner, to
enter into an amendment to existing Sole Source contracts with the Contractors listed below to
add funding to promote and address the health and well-being of refugees resettled in New
Hampshire, by increasing the total price limitation by $103,668 from $495,225 to $598,893,
effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds

The original contracts were approved by Governor and Council on May 6,2020, item #15,
amended on December 18,2020, Item #7, and most recently amended on May 4,2022. Item #7.

Contractor

Name

Vendor

Code

Area Served Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

Ascentria

Community
Services, Inc.

222201 Concord, NH $247,612.50 $51,834 $299,446.50

International

Institute of

New England,
Inc.

177551
Manchester,

NH
$247,612.50 $51,834 $299,446.50

Total: $495,225 $103,668 $598,893

Funds are available In the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2023, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request Is to add funding provided by the Children & Families, Refugee Resettlement
Program for the purpose of providing expand services due to continued demand. This request is
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the HorK)rable Council
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Sole Source because the contracts were originally approved as sole source and the IVtOP 150
requires any subsequent amendments to be labelled as sole source. Additionally, the Contractors
listed above are the only Contractors that possess the comprehensive client Information and
cultural expertise required to manage client cases and address complex, interrelated health and
social needs of each individual.

The purpose of this request Is to expand services to the Refugee Health Promotion
Program for the Afghan population, an expansion of Office of Refugee Resettlement eligible
individuals, by increasing funding to provide services and activities to help Afghan refugees
resettled in New Hampshire. These services include but are not limited to case management for
clients with complex conditions, expanded health orientation, health and provider education and
facilitation of wellness groups. More than 6 million Afghans have been driven out of their homes
in country, by conflict, violence and poverty. Tens of thousands of Afghans have been re-settled
across the U.S., including New Hampshire. The Refugee Health Promotion Program helps
support individuals re-build their lives by providing case management, and helping clients build
the knowledge to navigate the healthcare system.

Approximately 520 Office of Refugee Resettlement eligible individuals will be served
during State Fiscal Years 2023 and 2024.

The Contractors serve designated ORR-eligible populations resettled in the State for up
to five (5) years from the date of arrival. The Contractors provide orientations on the U.S.
healthcare system as welt as education on identified health conditions. In addition, the
Contractors will organize, schedule and coordinate medical and mental health appointments;
accompanying clients to medical appointments; providing facilitating transportation to
appointments; and ensuring interpreter services are acquired for all appointments, as necessary.

The Department will monitor services by:

•  Results of the satisfaction surveys distributed at each orientation, workshop and
training demonstrate 80% of ORR eligible clients have increased knowledge and
understanding of:

o Accessing and navigating the U.S. Health System in order to obtain health
insurance;

o Scheduling and keeping health appointments; and

o Utilizing public, Medicaid and/or other appropriate transportation to get to and
from medical and mental health appointments.

• A minimum of three (3) Wellness Groups are facilitated each contract year^.

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions, of the original
agreements Section 1 Subsection 1.1. of the original agreements, the parties have the option to
extend the agreements for up to two (2) additional years, ten (10) months and fifteen (15) days,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and
Governor and Council approval. The Department is not exercising its option to renew at this time.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, the Department
will be unable to provide the Contractors with additional funding to support the Afghan ORR-
eligible population. This means individuals with complex health conditions may not receive the
needed heath care in a timely and culturally and appropriate manner. In addition, Afghan ORR-
eligible populations may not gain the knowledge and skills necessary to navigate the U.S. health
care system independently and to manage their health and health conditions.
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Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.566, FAIN #2022G992210,
Children and Families Refugee Settlement.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

A. Shibinette

^ Commissioner

The DeparLmenl of Health and Human Seruicee' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for ciiizens to achieve health and independence.
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

SS-2021-OHE-01-REFUG {Amendment #3)
FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

05-95-095-950010-72090000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS; HHS:
COMMISSIONERS OFFICE; OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER; REFUGEE SERVICES (100% Federal Funds)

runaing dource: i

Ascentria Community Services,Inc. Vendor #222201-B001

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 95070005 $37,500.00 $0.00 $37,500.00
2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 95070005 $37,500.00 $0.00 $37,500.00
2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 95070005 $37,500.00 $0.00 $37,500.00
2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 95070005 $4,688.00 $0.00 $4,688.00

Sub Total $117,188.00 $0.00 $117,188.00
Funding Source:2

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. Vendor #222201-801

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 95070021 $14,063.00 $0.00 $14,063.00
2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 95070021 $18,750.00 $38,877.00 $57,627.00
2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 95070021 $4,687.00 $12,957.00 $17,644.00

Sub Total $37,500.00 $51,834.00 $89,334.00
Funding Source:3

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. Vendor #222201-801

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 95070023 $34,847.00 $0.00 $34,847.00
2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 95070023 $46,463.00 $0.00 $46,463.00
2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 95070023 $11,615.00 $0.00 $11,615.00

Sub Total $92,925.00 $0.00 $92,925.00
Total $247,613.00 $51,834.00 $299,447.00

Governor and Council Letter Attachment

Financial Detail

Page 1 of 2
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

SS-20210HE-01-REFUG (Amendment #3)
FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

05-095-950010-72090000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEFT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS; HHS;

COMMISSIONERS OFFICE; OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER; REFUGEE SERVICES (100% Federal Funds)

Funding Source: 4

International Institute of Nev^ England, Inc. Vendor #177551-6001

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 95070005 $37,296.00 $0.00 $37,296.00

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 95070005 $37,500,00 $0.00 $37,500.00

2023 102-600731 Contracts for Program Services 95070005 $37,500,00 $0.00 $37,500.00

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Sen/ices 95070005 $4,891.00 $0.00 $4,891,00

Sub Total $117,187.00 $0.00 $117,187.00

Funding Source:5
International Institute of New England, Inc. Vendor #177551-8001

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 95070021 $14,063,00 $0.00 $14,063.00

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 95070021 $18,750.00 $38,877,00 $57,627.00

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 95070021 $4,687.00 $12,957,00 $17,644.00

Sub Total $37,500.00 $51,834.00 $89,334.00

Funding Source:6

International Institute of New England, Inc. Vendor #177551-801

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 95070023 $34,847.00 $0,00 $34,847,00

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 95070023 $46,463.00 $0.00 $46,463,00

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 95070023 $11,615.00 $0.00 $11,615.00

Sub Total $92,925.00 $0.00 $92,925.00

Total $247,612.00 $51,834.00 $299,446.00

Grand Total $495,225.00 $103,668.00 $598,893.00

Governor and Couticil Letter Attachment

Financial Detail

Page 2 of 2
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This Amendment to the Refugee Health Promotion Program contract is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Ascentria
Community Services, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on May 6. 2020, Item #15, as amended on December 18, 2020, Item #7, and as amended on May 4,
2022, Item #7, the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions
specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 17 and Exhibit A, Revisions to
Standard Contract Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written agreernent of the parties and
approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation and modify the scope of services to support
continued delivery of these services: and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, Price Limitation, Block 1.8, to read:

$299,446.50

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Robert W. Moore, Director.

3. Modify Exhibit C. Payment Terms, Section 2, to read:

2. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures Incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with approved line item, as
specified in Exhibit C-1, Budget through Exhibit C-12, Budget - Amendment #3.

4. Add Exhibit C-11, Budget, Amendment #3, which is attached hereto and Incorporated by reference
herein.

5. Add Exhibit C-12, Budget- Amendment #3, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials^-——
12/28/2022

SS-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-01-A03 Page 1 of 3 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID; B9D3FD75.A6DE-45C8-A197-A5583680B9C7

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

1/9/2023

Date

r—OocuSigned by:
Name: Ann H. Lan^ry
Title:

Associate Commissioner

12/28/2022

Date

Ascentria Community Services, Inc.
— OoeuSlgned by:

MdjjJL
»  -AHWOW

Name' Aimee"Wi^c?i'ell
Title. chief community Services officer

Ascentria Community Services, Inc.

SS-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-01-A03

A-S-1.2

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

1/10/2023 -fotouvv

PDocuSigned by:
?*<l7SW4tH1460..

Date Name: Robyn Guarino
Title. Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: " (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. A-S-1.2

SS-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-01-A03 Page 3 of 3
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Exhibit C-11, Budget Sheet SS-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-01-A03

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Complete one budget form for each 'budget period.

Ascentria Community ServicesContractor Name;

Budget Request for: Refugee Health Promotion
Budget Period SPY 2023, Exhibit C11

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 24.99% of salary and wages

Llne'ltemi "  Program Cost - Funded by,DHHS

1. Salary & Wages $14,976

2. Fringe Benefits $4,193

3. Consultants $9,500

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR
200.1 and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$150

5.(a) Supplies - Educational $0

5.(b) Supplies - Lab $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0

5.(d) Supplies - Medical $0

5.(e) Supplies Office $200

6. Travel $835

7. Software $0

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications $0

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $300

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)

Other (please specify) Occupancy $1,100

Other (please specify) Telephone, internet, cell $780

Other (please specify) Postage $50

Other (please specify) Audit and Legal $200

Other (please specify) Insurance $200

Other (please specify) Interpretation ' $850

Other (please specify) Laptop $1,800

9. Subreciplent Contracts $0

Total Direct Costs $35,134

Total Indirect Costs $3,743

TOTAL $38,877

Ilk.

Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initials
1777877D7r

Date
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Exhbit C-12. Budget Sheet SS-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-01-A03

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Complete one budget form for each budget period.

Contractor Name: Ascentria Community Serv/ces

Budget Request for: Refugee Health Promotion

Budget Period SPY 2024 Exhibit C12

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)24.99% of salary and wages

Lineitem; Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

1. Salary 8c Wages $4,420

2. Fringe Benefits $1,238

3. Consultants $4,500

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR
200.1 and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$150

5.(a) Supplies - Educational $0

5.(b) Supplies-Lab $0

5.(0) Supplies - Pharmacy $0

5.(d) Supplies - Medical $0

5.(e) Supplies Office $50

6. Travel $450

7. Software $0

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications $0

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $0

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)

Other (please specify) Occupancy $425

Other (please specify) Telephone, internet, cell $225

Other (please specify) Postage $25

Other (please specify) Audit and Legal $60

Other (please specify) Insurance $60

Other (please specify) Interpretation $250

Other (please specify) Laptop $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $0

Total Direct Costs $11,853

Total Indirect Costs .$1,105

TOTAL $12,957

Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initials

Date
12/28/2022
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanian, Secrctar>' of Slalc of ihc State of New llampsliirc, do hereby certify that ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY

SERVICES, INC. is a Massachusetts Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on June 13, 20I I. I

further certify that all fees and documents required by the Sccrctarj' of State's ofllcc have been received and is in good standing as

far as this ofTicc is concerned.

Business ID: 652197

Certificate Number: 0005790601

Ub

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be afilxed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 13th dav of June A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanian

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I, Nicholas Sousa. Assistant Corporate Clerk / Secretary . hereby certify that:

1. lama duly elected officer of Ascentrla Community Services. Inc..

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors, duly called and-
held on July 12. 2022 . at which a quorum of the Directors were present and voting.

VOTED: That Executive Vice President Aimee Mitchell are duly authorized on behalf of Ascentrla

Community Services. Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any

of its agencies or departments and further are authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements
and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in their

judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and
effect as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached.

This authority remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I
further certify that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as
evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they
have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the authority
of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all
such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: 12/29/2022 Signature of Elected Officer:
Name: Nicholas Sousa

Title: Assistant Corporate Clerk/Secretary
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/KCORcf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/OO/YYYY)

10/13/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rlghts to the
certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Hays Companies, Inc.

980 Washington St., Suite 325

Dedham MA 02026

NAMF*''' Tina Housman
PHONE fax
lA/r. No Fxtir (A/C. NoV.

Anr^Fss' Tina.Hou8man@bbrown.com
INSURERIS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC Hi

iNSURERA: Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Co. 18058

INSURED

Ascentria Care Alliance, Inc.

11 Shattuck St.

Worcester MA 01605

INSURERB:The First Liberty Insurance Corp. 33588

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURERS :

INSURERF:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 22-23 GL AUTO UMB WC REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

SUBR
MO.TYPE OF INSURANCE

aBdl
ItlSfi. POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
(MMfl)D/YYYYI

POLICY EXP
IMM/OOnnfYYl LIMITS

INSR
LTR

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MAOE OCCUR

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE to RENTED
PREMISES fEa occuffence)

PHPX2471905 10/1/2022 10/1/2023 MED EXP (Any ona person)

PERSONAL S AOV INJURY

GENl AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

LOCPOLICY □ □
OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OPAGG

1,000,000

100,000

25,000

1,000,000

3,000,000

3,000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
lEfl flccktenU 1,000,000

ANY AUTO
ALL OWNED
AUTOS

HIRED AUTOS

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS

PHPK2471913 10/1/2022 10/1/2023 BODILY INJURY (Per aeddent)
PROPERTY DAMAGE
IPer aeckienU

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DEO

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE 10,000,000

10,000,000

RETENTION S PHUBe3S023 10/1/2022 10/1/2023
"Per
STATUTEWORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIve
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
If yes. describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

OTH-
ER

□
e.L. EACH ACCIDENT 1,000,000

HC 1469872 - 00 12/1/2022 12/1/2023 E.L- DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE 1,000,000

e.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT 1,000,000

Professional Liability PHPK2471905

Ratcoactiva Data; 1/1/2004

10/1/2022 10/1/2023 Each Occuranca

Aegregala

$1,000,000

$3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/LOCATIONS (VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Additional Ramarka Schedule, may ba attached If mora apace it required)
State of Kew Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services is included as additional insured where .
required by written contract.

ftscentria Community Services, Inc is included as a named insured on the above policies as required by written
contract

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of NH

Departunent of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

James Hays/MCROSB

ACORD 25 (2014/01)
INS025 (201401)

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Ascentria
CARE ALLIANCE

261 Sheep Davis Road, Suite A-1, Concord, NH 03301
ascentria.org j 603.224.8111 j InfoOascentria.org

Formerly Lutheran Social Sen/ices of New England

Mission statement:

IVe are called to strengthen communities by empowering people to respond to life's challenges.

Vision statement:

IVe envision thriving communities where everyone has the opportunity to achieve theirfull

potential regardless of background or disadvantage. We become recognized leadersfor

innovative community services. Together with our partners, we inspire people to help one

another reach beyond their current circumstances and realize new possibilities.

Empowering People. Strengthening Communities.

%
t

tr
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND SINGLE AUDIT COMPLIANCE REPORTS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

WEALTH ADVISORY | OUTSOURCING

AUDIT. TAX. AND CONSULTING

CLAconnect.com
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
TABLE OF CONTENTS
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CliftonLarsonAllcn LLP

CLAconnect.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Directors

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary
Worcester, Massachusetts

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Ascentria Community
Services, Inc. and Subsidiary, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of
June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the related consolidated statement of activities, cash flows, and functional
expenses, for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America: this includes the design. Implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's intemal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

CLA is an independent member of Nexia International, a leading, global network of independent
NOXIB accoLintitiB and consultinc firms. See nexia.com/tiiemtier-flrm-disclaimer for details,
inierndtloriai ^
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Board of Directors

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary as of
June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
as a whole. The supporting information shown on page 20 is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by the Maine Uniform Accounting and Auditing Practices for Community Agencies
(MAAP) and is not a required part the financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal
awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Unif67m Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is also presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
supporting information required by MAAP and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the
consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have- also issued our report dated
December 14, 2021, on our consideration of Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary's
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is
solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Ascentria
Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards
in considering Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary's internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
December 14, 2021

(2)
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable, Net of Estimated Uncollectible Accounts

Prepaid Expenses

Vehicle Inventory

Total Current Assets

ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE

Beneficial Interest in Net Assets of Related Party

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Land

Building
Building Improvements

Leasehold Improvements

Furniture and Equipment
Vehicles

Equipment Held Under Capital Lease
Computer Equipment and Software

Total

Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Total Property and Equipment

DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES

OTHER ASSETS

Deposits
Total Other Assets

.  Total Assets

2021 2020

$  4,380,964 $  1,088,674

5,193,640 4,618,979

100,926 84,975

133,728 128,893

9,809,258 5,921,521

997,007 841,000

45,314 45,314

85,798 85,798

975,856 968,006

353,467 353,467

246,311 246,311

459,810 454,071

499,374 499,374

147,017 147,017

2,812,947 2,799,358

2,031,576 1,901,549

781,371 . 897,809

- 5,781

112,192 101,892

112,192 101,892

$  11,699,828 $  7,768,003

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
(3)
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

2021 2020

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt
Accounts Payable
Accrued Expenses

Deferred Revenue

Due to State of Maine

Total Current Liabilities

DUE TO RELATED PARTIES

LONG-TERM DEBT, Net of Current Maturities

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)
Without Donor Restrictions

With Donor Restrictions

Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

$  33,943 $  32,752

400,872 821,453

1,951,115 1,630,694

434,376 311,847

550,526 468,768

3,370,832 3,265,514

1,820.131 3,610,245

3,908,861 409,782

9,099,824 7,285,541

1,512,713 (443,382)

1,087,291 925,844

2,600,004 482,462

$  11,699,828 $  7,768,003

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

2021 2020

NET ASSET REVENUE WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTION

Grant and Contract Revenue

Program Sen/ice Revenue
Federal and State Relief Grant Revenue

Donated Vehicles

In-Kind Donations

Net Assets Released from Restriction Used for Operations
Other Income

Total Revenues

EXPENSES

Salaries and Wages
Employee Benefits
Occupancy Costs
Operating Supplies and Expenses
Professional Fees

Garage Expenses
Donated Vehicle Expenses

Client Support Expenses

Translation Expenses

Repairs and Maintenance
Travel Expenses

Educational Events and Meetings

Management Fees
Taxes

Recruitment Advertising
Advertising

Licenses and Fees

Custodial Fees

Insurance

Interest

Bad Debt Expenses

Depreciation and Amortization
Total Expenses

OPERATING GAIN

NONOPERATING ACTIVITY

Gain on Sale of Property and Equipment
Equity Transfers, Net

Total Nonoperating Activity

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR

RESTRICTIONS

$ 31.570,797 $ 30,973,224

3,973,733 4,779,313

856,417 645,720

2,467,954 1,818,418

26,216 20,923

43,096 201,348

168,412 356,152

39,106,625 38,795,098

18,397,039 19,179,196

4,106,391 4,297,125

1,918,293 1,985,030

368,797 463,657

2,232,650 2,244,674

758,677 776,542

1,063,000 924,000

499,820 462,904

943,100 612,048

444,249 332,791

654,494 794,550,
20,619 47,931

4,558,412 5,395,119

521,856 567,842

936 10,004

210,284 157,095

4,380 5,094

5,438 12,994

226,499 197,295

it0,476 32,965

39,312 52,051

130,027 131,307

37,144,749 38,682,214

1,961,876 112,884

10,349

(5,781) -

(5,781) 10,349

$  1,956,095 $  123,233

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

Without Donor

Restriction

With Donor

Restriction Total

BALANCE-JUNE 30, 2019

Increase in Net Assets without Donor Restrictions

Change in Beneficial Interest in Net Assets
of Related Party

Net Assets Released from Restrictions - Operations

Change in Net Assets

BALANCE-JUNE 30, 2020

Increase in Net Assets without Donor Restrictions

Change in Beneficial Interest in Net Assets
of Related Party

Net Assets Released from Restrictions - Operations

Change in Net Assets (Deficit)

BALANCE-JUNE 30. 2021

$  (566,615) $  1,062,379 $  495,764

123,233 - 123,233

- 64,813 64,813

_ (201,348) (201,348)

123,233 (136,535) (13.302)

(443,382) 925,844 482,462

1,956,095 - 1,956,095

- 204,543 . 204,543

(43,096) (43,096)

1,956,095 161,447 2,117,542

$  1.512.713 $  1.087.291 S 2.600.004

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Program Scfvices Supporting Services

Disability Child Total

Transportation and and Family In-Home Services For Total Management Support Total

Services Mental Health Programs Services New Americans Program and General Fundraisinq Services Expenses

Salaries and Wages S  836.439 $  5.322.401 S  3.003,900 S  5,017,853 $ 4,082.749 %  18,263.342 $  133.697 $ . S  133,697 S  18,397.039

Employee Benefits 183.349 1.388.650 619,394 1,074,309 817.262 4,082,964 23,427 -
23,427 4,106,391

Occupancy Costs 97.286 610.342 450,123 42,738 495.027 1,695,516 222,777
-

222,777 1,918,293

Operating Supplies and Expenses 26,575 155.924 64,072 34,258 69,262 350,091 18,706 • 18,706 368,797

Professional Fees 7.745 397,058 1.240,048 - 532,551 2.177,402 55,248
-

55.248 2.232,650

Garage and Vehide Expenses 758,677 . - • -
758,677

- - -
758,677

Donated Vehide Expenses 1,063,000 - - - • 1,063,000 - - -

1,063.000

Client Support Expenses 422 35,341 240,023 3,900 219,695 499.381 439
•

439 499,620

Translation Expenses - 12,179 303 - 930.618 943.100 • - •
943,100

Repairs and Maintenance 38.066 68.404 109,793 61,444 141.295 419.002 25,247 - 25,247 444.249

Travel Expenses 199.944 171.189 60,495 18,608 183.803 654,039 455 • 455 654,494

Educational Events and Meetings 71 4.169 7,778 1,244 3,823 17,085 3,534
-

3,534 20,619

Management Fees . - - - - -

4.558,412
•

4.558.412 4,558,412

Taxes - 513,471 137 8,181 67 521,856 • - •
521.856

Reauitment Advertising 808 . - 115 -
923 13 •

13 936

Advertising . . . . - - 210.284 • 210.284 210.284

Ucenses and Fees 3 160 1,660 250 272 2,345 2.035 - 2,035 4.380

Custodial Fees - - . - • - •
5,438 5,438 5.438

Insurance 6.283 72.201 42,471 44,228 55.995 221.178 5,321 •  • 5,321 226.499

Interest .
. . - . - 40,476 -

40,476 40,476

Bad Debt Expenses . 5,342 . 26,862 7,018 39,222 90 -
90 39,312

Total Before Depredation

and Amortization 3.218,668 8.756,831 5,860.197 6.333.990 7,539,437 31.709,123 5.300,161 5,438 5,305,599 37.014,722

Depredation and Amortization 54,557 2,852 71,618 . 1,000 130,027 . - . 130.027

Total Functional Expenses $  3.273.225 $ 8.759.683 $  5.931,815 $  6.333.990 5 7.540:437 6  31.839.150 $  5,300.161 $ 5.438 S 5.305,599 S  37.144.749

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(7)



DocuSign Envelope ID; B9D3FD75-A6DE-45C8-A197-A5583680B9C7

ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Program Services Supporting Services

Disability Child Total

Transportation and and Family In-Home Services For Total Management Support Total

Services Mental Health Programs Services New Americans Program and General Fundralsing Services Expenses

Salaries and Wages S 936.410 S  5.540.060 $  3,001,095. $  4.967.565 $ 4.472.719 $  18.917.849 S  261,347 % S  261.347 $  19,179,196

Employee Benefits 204.976 1.482.702 559,926 1.098.877 894,519 4.241.000 56,125 • 56.125 4.297,125

Occupancy Costs ^ 105.843 633.124 441,702 46.262 506.536 1.733.467 251.563 • 251.563 1.985.030

Operating Supplies and Expenses 32.973 165.585 88,680 45.825 114.506 447.569 16.088 -
16.088 463.657

Professional Fees 61.456 383.971 1.354,705 5.434 391.293 2.196.859 47.815 - 47.815 2.244.674

Garage and Vehide Expenses 775.461 916 165 - • 776.542 - - -
776.542

Donated Vehide Expenses 924.000 • - - - 924.000
- - -

924.000

Client Support Expenses 19.826 31.647 200.925 64 210.412 462.874 30 - 30 462.904

Translation Expenses • 21.739 282 -
587.030 609.051 2.997

-
2.997 612.048

Repairs and Maintenance 26.444 38,069 116.558 53,938 71.180 306.189 26,602 . 26.602 332,791

Travel Expenses 191.640 201.678 136.374 43.072 214.719 787.483 7.067 . 7,067 794.550

Educational Events and Meetings 2.067 9,036 8.311 10.139 9.118 38,671 9.260 • 9.260 47,931

Management Fees - - . • - -
5.395.119 • 5.395.119 5,395,119

Taxes - 561.640 - 5.931 271 567.842 - - • 567.842

Recruitment Advertising 3.555 884 1,404 3.691 373 9.907 97 • 97 10,004

Advertising - - - • • -
157.095

-

157.095 157,095

Licenses and Fees 1,691 70 2,696 250 • 4.707 387 - 387 5.094

Custodial Fees . - - - • - -
12.994 12.994 12,994

Insurance 8.014 57.285 34.105 41.583 51.611 192.598 4,697 - 4.697 197.295

Interest . . - - - . 32,965 - 32.965 32.965

Bad Debt E^qienses . 3,863 - 37.684 10.503 52.050 1 - 1 52.051

Total Before Depredation

and Amortization 3.294.356 9.132,269 5,946.928 6.360.315 7.534.790 32.268.658 6.269.255 12.994 6.282.249 38,550.907

Depredation and Amortization 55.338 2.852 69.917 . 3.200 131.307 . . - 131.307

Total Fundional Expenses S 3.349.694 S  9.135.121 $  6.016.845 $  6.360.315 $ 7.537.990 S  32.399.965 S  6.269.255 $  12.994 S  6.282.249 S  38,682.214

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

2021 2020

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(9)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in Net Assets $ 2,117,542 $ (13,302)
Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation and Amortization 130,027 131,307
Bad Debts 39,312 52,051

Gain on Sale of Property and Equipment - (10,349)
Change in Beneficial Interest in Net Assets of Related Party (204,543) (64,813)

(Increase) Decrease in Assets:
Accounts Receivable (613,973) (802,450)
Prepaid Expenses (15,951) 2,496
Deposits (10,300) 2,850
Beneficial Interest in Net Assets of Related Party 48,536 201,350
Vehicle Inventory (4,835) (58,601)
Due to Third Party - 543

Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities:
Accounts Payable (420,581) (100,937)
Accrued Expenses 320,421 575,524
Deferred Revenue 122,529 135,376

Due to State of Maine 81,758 406,296

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 1,589,942 457,341

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of Property and Equipment (13,589) (148,710)
Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets ^ 15,295

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities (13,589) (133,415)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from Long-Term Debt 3,533,020
Payments on Long-Term Debt (32,750) (43,100)
Advanced from Related Parties, Net (1,784,333) 807,848

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 1,715,937 764,748

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS 3,292,290 1,088,674

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 1,088,674 -

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR $ 4.380.964 $ 1.088.674

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash Paid for Interest _$ 40.476 $ . 32.965
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. (ACS) and Ascentria Community Care, Inc. (ACC)
(collectively, the Organizations) are corporations exempt from tax under Section 501(c)(3) of
the Intemal Revenue Code as a public charity. Effective July 1, 2018, assets were
transferred to the Organization from Good News Garage - LSS, Inc. (GNG), related parties,
as a result of the combination of operations (see Note 14 for details). The Organizations
provide community service programs to children, families, refugees, and developmentally
disabled adults throughout New England. ACS is the sole corporate member of ACC.
Ascentria Care Alliance. Inc. (Ascentria) is a sole corporate member of ACS and also serves
as the management agent.

The Organizations provide the following programs:

Transportation Sen/ices - provides low-income individuals with transportation, such as
ownership of donated vehicles or access to shared rides, providing these individuals with
access to jobs and other economic opportunities, thus helping them to achieve economic
independence.

Disability and Mental Health - Disability and Mental Health comprise of a wide variety of
programs that enable persons who are economically disadvantaged, have disabilities,
chronic illness, mental illness, deafness and other challenges to become and remain
successful contributors to the communities in which they live and work. Support services
include: Access to medical resources, personal case management customized for
individual needs, 24/7 supervision and support in a residential setting for individuals
diagnosed with chronic and persistent mental illness, and services offered to individuals
diagnosed with mental illness in the comfort and familiarity of their homes.

Child and Family Programs - through a variety of programs, the Organizations provide
services related to therapeutic foster care, unaccompanied refugee minors support,
housing for teen mothers and their children, housing for homeless, small group homes
serving teenagers, various support services and living accommodations for
developmentally, physically and mentally disabled adults and other various social
support programs.

In-Home Sen/ices - In-Home Care is a licensed Home Health Care agency that offers
comprehensive, non-medical personal care services to homebound individuals or those
with a disability. In-Home Care caregivers assist in light housekeeping, transportation to
appointments, recreational activities, bathing and personal care, meals, and exercise.
Additional non-medical services supervised by a registered nurse.

Sen/ices for New Americans - through this program, the Organizations seek to provide
resettlement, employment, case management, medical case management, English as a
second language classes, and other support services to refugees, asylees, and
immigrants.

Adoption - through this program, the Organizations provide services related to domestic
and international adoptions.

(10)
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements present the consolidated financial
position, results of operations, changes in net assets, cash flows, and functional expenses
of the Organizations. Material intercompany transactions and balances have , been
eliminated In consolidation.

Method of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements of the Organizations have been prepared on the
accrual method of accounting, Accordingly, assets are recorded when the Organizations
obtain the rights of ownership or is entitled to claims for receipt and liabilities are recorded
when the obligation is incurred.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organizations consider all short-term debt securities purchased with an original maturity,
of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded net of an allowance of expected losses. The allowance is
estimated from historical performance and projections of trends. Credit is extended to
customers and collateral is not required. When the accounts become past due, historically,
the Organizations have not charged interest to these accounts.

Inventory

Vehicles identified for the purpose of being delivered to program participants- are valued
based on the average contract reimbursement rate for the reporting period which
approximates the lower of cost or net realized value.

Program vehicles expected to be sold at retail are recorded based on trade-in value.

Vehicles expected to be sold at wholesale are valued using the average sales proceeds for
all vehicles sold during the reporting period.

Vehicles are recorded as donated vehicles or donated vehicles - wholesale when the
vehicle is received.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Assets with an estimated useful life of more
than one year and a historical cost in excess of $2,500 are capitalized. The Organizations
capitalize acquisitions and improvements, while expenditures for maintenance and repairs
that do not extend the useful lives of the assets are charged to operations. Donated property
and equipment are recorded at its fair market value at date of donation. Gifts of long-lived
assets are reported as net assets without donor restriction support unless donor stipulations
specify how the assets are to be used, and gifts of cash or other assets that must be used to
acquire long-lived assets are reported as restricted support.

(11)
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property and Equipment (Continued)

Absent explicit donor stipulation about how long those assets must be maintained,
expiration of donor restrictions are reported when the donated or acquired long-lived assets
are placed into service. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful life of the assets.

Related Party Loans Receivable

The Organizations' loan portfolio is comprised on unsecured related party loans receivable
that are noninterest bearing and have no fixed repayment terms, as detailed in Note 3, and
is considered a single' portfolio class. Related party loans receivable are recorded net of an
allowance for expected loan losses (allowance). The Organizations establish an allowance
as an estimate of inherent risk in the Organizations' loan portfolio. Although management
believes the allowance to be adequate, ultimate losses may vary from its estimates.

The allowance is established through a provision for loan losses that is charged to expense.
Loan losses are charged off against the allowance when the Organizations determine the
loan balance to be uncollectible. Proceeds received on previously charged off amounts are
recorded as recovery in the year of receipt. The Organizations determined that all related
party loans receivable are fully collectible as of June 30, 2021 and 2020.

The Organizations review the adequacy of the allowance, including consideration of the
relevant risks in the loan portfolio, current economic conditions, and other factors
periodically. The Organizations internally monitor related party borrowers to assess the risk
of nonperfoimance. The Organizations determine that changes are warranted based on
those revie'ws, the allowance is adjusted.

Net Assets

Net assets of the Organizations are classified and reported as follows:

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions - Net assets that are not subject to donor-
imposed stipulations.

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions.
Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met
either by actions of the Organizations and/or the passage of time. Other donor-imposed
restrictions are perpetual in nature when the donor stipulates that resources be
maintained in perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a restriction
expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for
which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both. Net assets with donor
restrictions consist of $997,007 and $841,000 for beneficial interest in net assets of
related party and $90,283 and $84,844 other program restrictions for the years ended
June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. There were no net assets invested in perpetuity
as of June 30, 2021 and 2020.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Contract and Grant Revenue

The Organizations derive revenues through cost-reimbursable, and unit rate federal and
state contracts and grants, which are conditional grants based on certain performance
requirements and/or the incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses. Accordingly, the
Organizations are subject to the regulations and reporting requirements of the applicable
governmental and grantor agencies. Amounts received are recognized as earned and are
reported as revenue when the Organizations have incurred expenditures in compliance with
specific contract or grant provisions. As of June 30, 2021, there was $2,942,937 of
conditional contributions that have yet to be recognized in the consolidated financial
statements.

Donated Services

Donated services are recognized in the consolidated financial statements if the services
enhance or create nonfinancial assets or require specialized skills, are provided by
individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to be purchased if not provided
by donation.

Donated Vehicle Revenue

Donated vehicle revenue includes vehicles that will be repaired and delivered to program
participants. They are valued based on the average contract reimbursement rate for the
reporting period. Additionally, donated vehicle revenue includes donated vehicles that do not
meet the needs of program participants. These vehicles are sold at auction and valued
based on average proceeds for the reporting period. Vehicle auction revenue is recognized
at a point in time when the item is sold. As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, there was
$1,400,120 and $835,817, respectively, included in donated vehicles on the consolidated
statement of activities.

Federal and State Relief Grant Revenue

During 2021 and 2020, the Organizations received federal and state grants to provide
funding to respond to the COVlD-19 pandemic. The Organizations received payments from
the CARES Act Provider Relief Fund (PRF), which is administered by the U.S. Department
of Health and Human Services (HHS). The Organizations received PRF payments and
recognized revenue in the amount of $587,171 and $184,667 during fiscal year 2021 and
2020, respectively. The revenues recognized are included in Federal and State Relief Grant
Revenue on the consolidated statements of activities. The PRF payments have terms and
conditions that the Organizations are required to follow, and these funds are subject to
reporting requirements and audit. The PRF payments are subject to potential recoupment by
HHS if it is determined that the funds were not spent in accordance with the terms and
conditions. Management believes the amounts have been recognized appropriately as of
June 30. 2021.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Federal and State Relief Grant Revenue

The Organizations received payments from the state of New Hampshire, which is
administered by the Governor's Office for Emergency Relief and Recovery' (GOFERR). The
Organizations received payments and recognized revenue in the amount of $172,112 and
$461,053 during the fiscal years 2021 and 2020, respectively. The revenues recognized are
included in Federal and State Relief Grant Revenue on the consolidated statements of

activities. The payments have terms and conditions that the Organizations are required to
follow, and these funds are subject to reporting requirements and audit. The payments are
subject to potential recoupment by GOFERR if it is determined that the funds were not spent
in accordance with the terms and conditions. Management believes the amounts have been
recognized appropriately as of June 30, 2021.

Additionally, the Organizations recognized payments from the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts Executive Office of Health and Human Services (EOHHS) of $97,134 as
revenues as of June 30, 2021. The revenues recognized are included in Federal and State
Relief Grant Revenue on the consolidated statement of activities.

Program Service Revenue

Program service revenue is from private pay services, translation services, and
interpretation services. Program service revenue is recognized as services are provided
over time. Payments received in advance of services are reported as deferred revenue.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising costs paid for by the Organizations
amounted to $184,067 and $136,170 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020,
respectively. Contributions of advertising are recorded at the estimated fair value on the
date of the contribution. The Organizations received contributions of advertising estimated to
have a value of $26,216 and $20,923 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020,
respectively.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The cost of providing the various programs and services are summarized on a functional
basis. Costs are generally identified as to program site, and are then allocated between
programs and supporting services that benefited based on total direct expenses. Salaries
and benefits are allocated on the basis of time and effort. The expenses that are allocated
are the portions of depreciation and interest expense that are not directly attributable to
specific programs or services. These expenses are allocated on a square footage basis.

Income Taxes

The Organizations are nonprofit corporations as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the IRC
and are exempt from federal and state income taxes on related income pursuant to
Section 501(a) of the IRC.

Fair Value Measurements

In accordance with professional standards, assets and liabilities measured and recorded at
fair value are required to be categorized into a three-level hierarchy based on the priority of
the inputs to the valuation technique used to determine fair value. The fair value hierarchy
gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
(Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3).

If the inputs used in the determination of the fair value measurement fall within different
levels of the hierarchy, the categorization is based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement. Assets and liabilities measured and recorded at fair value by
the Organizations are categorized as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs that utilize quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that an entity has the ability to access.

Level 2 - Inputs that include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active
markets and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly, for substantially the full term of the financial instrument. Fair values for these
instruments are estimated using pricing models, quoted prices of securities with similar
characteristics, or discounted cash flows.

Level 3 - Inputs that are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability, which are typically
based on an entity's own assumptions, as there is little, if any, related market activity.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

In instances where the determination of the fair value measurement is based on inputs from
different levels of the fair value hierarchy, the level in the fair value hierarchy within which
the entire fair value measurement falls Is based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement in its entirety. Valuation techniques used need to maximize the
use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. There have been no
changes in valuation methodology used at June 30, 2021 and 2020.

Change In Accounting Principles

Financial Accounting Standard Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU)
2018-13 Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820); Disclosure Framework - Changes to the
Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value Measurement. The ASU removes and modifies
disclosure requirements retrospectively for nonpublic entities. The ASU is effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2019. The Organizations' consolidated financial
statements reflect the application of ASU 2018-13 using a retrospective approach to each
period presented.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases, which is a comprehensive
lease accounting standard that requires entities that lease assets (lessees) to recognize the
assets and related liabilities for the rights and obligations created by the leases on the
balance sheet for leases with terms exceeding 12 months. The lessee in a lease will be
required to initially measure the right-of-use asset and the lease liability at the present value
of the remaining lease payments, as well as capitalize initial direct costs as part of the right-
of-use asset. The FASB issued ASU 2020-05, which deferred the effective date for the
Organizations until annual periods beginning after December 15, 2021; however, early
application is permitted. The Organizations are currently evaluating the impact this guidance
will have on its consolidated financial statements.

In September 2020, the FASB issued ASU No. 2020-07 on Topic 958, Presentation and
Disclosures by Not-for-Profit Entities for Contributed Nonfinancial Assets. The FASB ASU
requires nonprofits to present contributed nonfinancial assets and gifts-in-kind as a separate
line item on your consolidated statement of activities. Additionally, gift-in-kind are to be
disaggregated into categories based on the type of gift received and additional qualitative
disclosures. The FASB ASU requires the new standard to be applied retrospectively for
annual periods beginning after June 15, 2021. The Organizations are currently evaluating
the Impact this guidance will have on its consolidated financial statements.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications of amounts previously reported have been made to the
accompanying financial statements to maintain consistency bet\ween periods presented. The
reclassifications had no impact on previously reported net assets.

Subsequent Events

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the Organizations have evaluated
events and transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through December 14, 2021,
the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.

NOTE 2 ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE

Beneficial Interest In Net Assets of Related Partv

The Organizations record beneficial interest in assets that are held by Ascentria in the
amount of $997,007 and $841,000 at June 30, 2021 and 2020. respectively. For the years
ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Organizations had a loan payable, included in accrued
expenses, to the fund totaling $340,524 for both years ending June 30, 2021 and 2020.
Contributed assets are transferred to Ascentria by either the donor or the Organizations with
the approval of Ascentria. The donors did not grant variance power to Ascentria.

NOTE 3 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Organizations have entered into the following transactions with related parties;

•  The Organizations are charged annually by Ascentria for accounting, management
services, and overhead in monthly installments. Charges to operations for. these
services totaled approximately $4,558,412 and $5,395,119 for the years ended
June 30, 2021 and 2020. respectively. These expenses have been included on the
consolidated statements of activities under the caption Management Fees. In
addition. Ascentria is the central contracting entity for insurance coverage, and
insurance costs are then billed monthly to the Organizations.

•  In connection with soliciting and managing donations received, Ascentria charged
the Organizations a custodial fee. The custodial fee charged to operations was
$5,438 and $12,994 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

•  The Organizations have various office space rentals to and from related parties and
vehicle rentals from related parties. Rental revenue from related parties amounted to
$122,592 and $137,545 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
Office space and vehicle related party rents amounted to $371,039 and $391,487 for
the year ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 3 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Related party loans that bear no interest and have no fixed repayment terms, are
as follows;

Due from Related Parties:

Lutheran Housing Corporation Brockton, Inc.
Emanuel Development Corporation

Total

Due to Related Parties:

Ascentria Care Alliance, Inc.

Total

2021 2020

$  - $ 5,632
149

- $  5.781

2021 2020

$ 1,820,131 $  3,610,245

1.820,131 $  3.610.245

NOTE 4 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PENSION PLAN

The Organizations participate in a defined contribution plan (the Plan) qualifying under IRC
Section 403(b) maintained by Ascentria. The Plan permits discretionary employer
contributions based on a specified percentage of annual compensation and employee
contributions. The Organizations had no pension costs charged to operations or
contributions to the plan during the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020.

NOTE 5 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The accounts receivable balance consisted of the following at June 30:

2021

Accounts Receivable - Program Services
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts Receivable, Net

2020

$  5,248,189 $  4,663,528

(54,549) (44,549)

$  5.193.640 $  4.618.979

NOTE 6 CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Organizations to concentrations of credit
risk consist principally of the following:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organizations maintain cash and cash equivalent balances in several federally insured
financial institutions in the same geographic area as well as a money market fund. During
the year, there may be times when uninsured cash is significantly higher and exceeds
federally insured limits.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 6 CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK (CONTINUED)

Major Customer

The Organizations receive significant funding from various federal and state agencies. The
states, through which funding was received, include Massachusetts, New Hampshire, and
Maine. Approximately 84% of the Organizations' revenue was received from state and
federal agencies directly or via pass through for both years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020.

Beneficial Interest in Net Assets of Related Partv

The Organizations' unsecured gifts, held by a related party, amounted to $997,007 and
$841,000 at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Accounts Receivable

The Organizations extend unsecured credit to its customers. Accounts receivable amounted
to $5,193,640 and $4,618,979 at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

NOTE 7 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The useful lives of property and equipment for purposes of computing depreciation are:

Building, Building Improvements, and Leasehold Improvements 5 to 40 Years
Equipment, Furniture and Fixtures, and Vehicles 3 to 10 Years
Equipment Under Capital Lease 3 to 5 Years
Computer Equipment and Software 3 Years

Depreciation and amortization (including amortization of equipment under capital lease)
expense charged to operations was $130,027 and $131,307 for the years ended June 30,
2021 and 2020, respectively.

NOTE 8 MAINE MEDICAID LIABILITY

ACS provides services for Medicaid eligible individuals under terms of costs-based contracts
with the state of Maine. Accordingly, ACS provides for the estimated amount of settlements
with Medicaid as a liability. Final reimbursement is not determined until the state of Maine
accepts the cost report. The amount of the estimated liability was approximately $550,000
and $468,000 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Adjustments to
these estimates are reflected on the consolidated statement of activities under the caption
Grant and Contract Revenue to the extent not previously recorded in the year the final
settlement information becomes available to management.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 9 LONG-TERM DEBT

On March 19, 2021, ACS and AGO each received a loan in the amount of $2,518,900 and
$1,014,120, respectively, to fund payroll, rent, utilities, and interest on mortgages and
existing debt through the Paycheck Protection Program (the PPP Loan). The PPP Loans
bear interest at a fixed rate of 1.0% per annum, with the first six months of interest deferred,
has a term of five years, and is unsecured and guaranteed by the U.S. Small Business
Administration. Payment of principal and interest is deferred until the date on which the
amount of forgiveness is remitted to the lender or, if the Organizations fail to apply for
forgiveness within 10 months after the covered period, then payment of principal and
interest shall begin on that date. These amounts may be forgiven subject to compliance and
approval based on the timing and use of these funds in accordance with the program. The
covered periods from March 2021 to September 2021, is the time that a business has to
spend their PPP Loan funds. Subsequent to year-end, the Organizations obtained full formal
forgiveness from the SBA for their PPP Loans and their associated accrued interest.

The Organizations are liable on long-term debt at June 30, 2021 and 2020 as follows:
1

Description 2021 2020

Note Payable

Term note payable to Bank of America face amount
$350,000, due August 7, 2033, secured by business
assets, payable in monthly installments of interest
only through August 2008 then monthly payments of
principal plus interest through maturity. Interest rate
is fixed at 7.105% annually. $  165,537 3i  183,082

Mortgage payable to Bank of America face amount
$370,308, secured by real property owned by ACS at
two locations, and guaranteed by Ascentria, with an
interest rate of 7.01%, due August 2032. Monthly
principal and interest payments of $2,670. 244,247 258,306

Paycheck Protection Program note payable to People's
United Bank, totaling $3,533,020 for both ACS and ACC,
bearing interest at 1.00%, due May 2026, subject to
forgiveness by the U.S Small Business Administration if
certain performance barriers are met. 3,533,020

Capital Lease Obliaations

ACS is obligated under various capital lease agreements
for equipment and motor vehicles, expiring in 2020, with
a combined monthly payment of approximately $2,200
with interest rates ranging from approximately 4% to 8%. 1,146

Total Long-Term Debt 3,942,804 442,534

Less: Current Maturities (33,943) (32,752)

Long-Term Debt, Net of. Current Maturities $  3.908.861 SE  409.782
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 9 LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Following are current maturities for the next five years:

Year Ending June 30.

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

Thereafter

Total

Amount

33,943

1,008,451

1,011,084
1,014,400

288,307

586,619

$  3.942.804

Interest charged to operations for the above long-term debt amounted to $40,476 and
$32,965 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

NOTE 10 OPERATING LEASES

The Organizations lease land, buildings, equipment, and motor vehicles under various
operating lease agreements with terms of 1 to 3 years. Total rent and related expenses
amounted to $1,069,523 and $1,099,443 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020,
respectively.

Future minimum lease payments under these agreements are as follows:

Year Ending June 30.

2022

2023

2024

Total

Amount

$ 529,347

357,362

83,035

$ 969.744

NOTE 11 CONTINGENCIES

A significant portion of the Organizations' net revenues and accounts receivable are derived
from services reimbursable under Medicaid programs. There are numerous healthcare
reform proposals being considered on federal and state levels. The Organizations cannot
predict at this time whether any of these proposals will be adopted or, if adopted and
implemented, what effect such proposals would have on the Organizations.

A significant portion of the Organizations' revenues are derived from services reimbursable
under Medicaid programs. The base year costs utilized in calculating the Medicaid rates are
subject to audit which could result in a retroactive rate adjustment for all years in which that
cost base was used in calculating the rates. It is not possible at this time to determine
whether the Organizations will be audited or if a retroactive rate adjustment would result.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 11 CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

The receivables of the Organizations are listed as collateral under the line of credit
agreement of Ascentria. The outstanding balance is $2,290,000 and $2,500,000 as of
June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

NOTE 12 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Organizations use fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain
assets and liabilities to determine fair value disclosures. For additional information on how
the Organizations measure fair value refer to Note 1 - Organization and Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies.

The following tables present the Organizations' fair value hierarchy for those assets and
liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30. 2021 and 2020:

2021

Beneficial Interest in Net

Assets of Related Party:
Total

Beneficial Interest in Net

Assets of Related Party:
Total

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

$  997,007 $ $ $ 997,007

$  997.007 $ -  $ $ 997.007

2020

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

$  841,000 $ $ $ 841,000

$  841.000 $ -  $ $ 841.000

The following table provides a summary of changes in fair value of the Organizations'
Level 3 financial assets for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020:

2021

Contributions

Payments

204,543

(43,096)

2020

64,813

(201,348)

Since these funds are held by a third party that pools the Organizations' interest with other
related organization's assets, management has determined that the inputs are unobservable
and therefore, valued using a Level 3 methodology. The principal valuation technique is the
fair value of the underlying investments and the unobservable input is the term of
distributions.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 13 AVAILABLE RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

The Organization regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other
commitments. For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures
over a 12-month period, the Service considers all expenditures related to its ongoing
program activities as well as the conduct of services undertaken to support those activities
to be general expenditures.

In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next 12
months, the Organization operates a balanced budget and anticipates collecting sufficient
revenue to cover general expenditures not covered by donor-restricted resources. The
Organization considers the following to be available to meet cash needs for general
expenditures:

2021 2020

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Accounts Receivable, Net

Total Financial Assets

Donor-Imposed Restrictions
Financial Assets Available to Meet Cash Needs

for General Expenditures Within One Year

$  4,380,964 $  1,088,674

5,193,640 4,618,979

9.574,604 5,707,653

(90,284) (84,844)

$  9.484.320 $  5.622.809

NOTE 14 COVID-19 IMPACT

In 2020, the World Health Organization declared the spread of Coronavirus (COVID-19) a
worldwide pandemic. The COVID-19 pandemic is having significant effects on global
markets, supply chains, businesses, and communities. In response to the pandemic and in
an effort to supplement lost revenues and support increased costs incurred to secure
personal protective equipment, the federal and state govemments issued stimulus payments
to the Organizations. See Note 1 for information on funding received by the Organizations in
2021.

COVID-19 may also impact various parts of the Organizations' 2022 operations and
financial results including but not limited to additional costs for emergency preparedness,
disease control and containment, potential shortages of personnel, or loss of revenue due to
reductions in certain revenue streams. Management believes that the Organizations are
taking appropriate actions to mitigate the negative impact. However, the full impact of
COVID-19 is unknown and cannot be reasonably estimated as of June 30, 2021.
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF DEPARTMENT AGREEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Departfntnt Offte*

OHHS:

DPS

DPS

AgrMmtnt
Number

AgrMdient

Amount

AOS-21-2672 S

MH2-21-518

57,828

32,430

Agroomtnt Period

7/1/2020 •Oft'301'2021

7/1/2020 - 0aO(V2021

Agreement Service

Rental SubeidY

Community integration

/Agreement

Statue

Final

Final

Total

Federal State Department

Ezpentee Expeneee Expenaec

S  48.158 S

31.431

48,158

31,431

79,589 70,589

Disclosures;

Is your agency required to have a Single Audit? Yes: No:
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
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16.575
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161,506

288,064

449,660

5  6.467.820 9 23,249

See accompanying Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

NOTE 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the
federal award activity of Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary under programs
of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2021. The information in this
Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the
operations of, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net
assets, or cash flows of Ascentria Community Services, Inc.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.
Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform
Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to
reimbursement. Negative amounts shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits
made in the normal course of business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years.
Ascentria Community Services. Inc. and Subsidiary has elected not to use the 10-percent de
minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

(26)
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CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

CLAconnect.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE

WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary
Worcester, Massachusetts

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated financial statements of
Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary, which comprise the consolidated statements of
financial position as of June 30, 2021, and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional
expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 14, 2021.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered Ascentria
Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary's intemal control over financial reporting (internal control) to
determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing
our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary's internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Ascentria Community Services, Inc.
and Subsidiary's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, In internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's consolidated financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance.

Our consideration of intemal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

A m«mbw of 3^ independent member of Nexia International, a leading, global network of independent

accounting and consulting firms. See nexia.com/member-fifiTi-cllsclaimer for details.
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Board of Directors

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and
Subsidiary's consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement. we performed tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

CilftonLarsonAllen LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
December 14, 2021
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'K
CliftonlarsonAllen LLP

CLAconnect.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH

MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL

CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary
Worcester, Massachusetts

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Ascentria Community Services, Inc.'s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of Ascentria Community Services, Inc.'s major federal programs for the years ended
June 30, 2021. Ascentria Community Services, Inc.'s major federal programs are identified in the
summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Ascentria Community Services,
Inc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to
above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America: the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,. Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those
standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about Ascentria Community Services, Inc.'s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Ascentria Community
Services, Inc.'s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Ascentria Community Services, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2021.

CLA is an independent member of Nexia international, a leading, global network of independent

intvnationai accoiinling and consulting firms. See nexia.com/meiTiber-firm-disciaimer for details.

A memb^ of

® Nexia
Internatksnal
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Board of Directors

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are required to be
reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which are described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2021-001. Our opinion on each major federal
program is not modified with respect to these matters.

Ascentria Community Services, Inc.'s response to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit is
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Ascentria Community
Services, Inc.'s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Ascentria Community Services, Inc. is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.
In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Ascentria Community Services,
Inc.'s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Ascentria Community
Services, Inc.'s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement
of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be a rpaterial weakness. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Board of Directors

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
December 14, 2021
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Section I - Summary of Auditors' Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditors' report Issued; Unmodified

Internal Control over Financial Reporting:

• Material weakness(es) identified?

• Significant deficiency(ies) identified
that are not considered to be

material weakness(es)?

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

• Material weakness(es) Identified?

• Significant deficiency{ies) identified
that are not considered to be

material weakness(es)?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are
to be reported in accordance with
2 CFR 200.516(a)? X ves

_yes

_yes

_yes

.yes

.yes

X no

X none reported

 X no

X no

X none reported

no

Identification of Major Federal Programs

93.566 Refugee and Entrant Assistance
State/Replacement Designee Administered
Programs '

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

$  750.000

X  ves no
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Section 11- Financial Statement Findings

Our audit did not disclose any matters required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards.

Section HI - Findings and Questioned Costs - Major Federal Programs

2021 -001

Federal agency: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

Federal program title: Refugee and Entrant Assistance State/Replacement Designee Administered
Programs

Assistance Listing Number: 93.566

Pass-Through Agency: Commonwealth of Massachusetts Department of Social Services and
Commonwealth of Massachusetts Office of Refugee and Immigrants

Pass-Through Number(s): INTF0000009922120680; RFP-2018-OHE-01-REFUG-01:

Award Period: 10/1/2019-9/30/2020 and 10/1/2020-9/30/2021

Type of Finding: Other Matters; Internal Control over Compliance

Criteria or specific requirement: The Office of Refugee Resettlement (ORR) requires semi-annual
and annual reporting, including a narrative and statistical information on program performance. Reports
are required to be sent to the ORR by the 15th day after period end.

Condition: Support was obtained for submission of semi-annual reports for each of the applicable
contracts, noting that out of the 20 submissions tested, there were 6 instances where there was either
no support provided for the submission or where the report was submissed late.

Context: For each applicable contract, there are semi-annual reporting requirements. Both
submissions during fiscal year 2021 were tested for each applicable contract.

Cause: The Organization did not have proper controls in place to ensure timely preparation and filing of
the report.

Effect: Required annual reports are not being prepared or filed timely, indicating the organization is not
in compliance with contract rquirements.

Repeat Finding: No

Recommendation: We recommend that the Organization implement internal controls to monitor filing
requirements to ensure timely preparation and filing of reports.

Views of responsible officials: There is no disagreement with the audit finding.
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|B72'2022

s A Ascentria
Q^JDCARE ALLIANCE

Board of Directors 2022

Last Name First Name Title{s) Corporate

Officers

(current only)

Board & Cmte Officers

(current only)

Jenoure Frederic Director Board Chair

Cowlagi Ashish Director Board Secretary

Goodman Ross Director Board Vice Chair

Bartholomew Aiexander Director Finance Co-Chair & Board Fin Sec'y

Robertson Keith Director Governance Co-Chair

Mayo William Director Immediate Past President

Bovill Angela CEO

Director

President

Mitchell Aimee Chief

Community

Services Officer

Executive Vice

President

Wade Jeanette Chief Ops

Officer

Chief Fin Officer

Executive Vice

President

Bettigole Michelle Chief Senior

Care Officer

Executive Vice

President

Kinney Jeff Chief Strategic

Dev't Officer

Executive Vice

President

Sousa Nicholas EA Community

Svcs &

Operations

Assistant Clerk/

Secretary

Browne Tara Manager of

Exec. Assistants

Corporate Clerk

/ Secretary

Russo Nicholas Senior Director

of Treasury

Treasurer

11 Shattuck Street, Worcester. MA 01605
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Kabin Ghale

Objective

To make an immediate contribution to an organization that prides itself on quality, integrity and
professional advancement in health semce sector.

Education and Training

BACHELOR DEGREE IN POLITICAL SCIENCE

Bagdugara Collage Darjeeling, India 2006-2009

HIGH SCHOOL DIPLOMA

Kumudini Homes. Kalingpong, India 2003-2005

HEALTH CARE VOCATIONAL TRAINING

Easterseals, Manchester, NH 2011

Work Experience

HEALTH CASE MANAGER -ASCENTRIA CARE ALLIANCE 2022-TlLL

•  Coordinate and facilitate client care through assessment, evaluation, and planning.
•  Act as the client's advocate as it relates to insurance coverage and financial assistance.
•  Communicate client needs to a variety of care team members and follow up accordingly.

RESIDENTIAL COUNSELOR (LEAD) - CROTCHED MOUNTAIN SCHOOL 2014 - 2020

•  Provide residential services to special needs adults and children.
•  Help client develop skills related to self-care, relationship building, problem solving,
•  Engage clients with community and recreational activities.

CASHIER - T&N GAS AND CONVENIENCE STORE 2010 -2014

•  Oversaw the day -to-day operations of filling station and convenience store.
•  Responsible for displaying, cleaning, and rotating merchandise in an effort for maximum sales.
•  Managed staff, worked with vendors and monitored sales.

PERSONAL CARE SERVICE PROVIDER - EASTERSEALS NH 2011- 2012

•  Participated in adult day care program.
•  Trained and certified CPR, AED, First aid, and Management of aggressive behaviors.
•  Received commendation from supervisor for patience and assertiveness when working clients

Skills and Abilities

Experience in Microsoft Office package - Word, Excel, PowerPoint.
Excellent documentation skills.

Strong written and oral communication skills.
Multilinguistic - fluent in English, Nepali and Hindi.
Ability to pay attention and follow instructions.

References

Available upon Request.
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FAMOH S. TOURE

SUMMARY:

Proficient in Microsoft Office Suite, Database Management, PeopleSoft, Taleo ATS, Linux.
Fluent in both French and English.
Strong ability in time management, meeting facilitation, provides leadership, train, and delegate staff.
Ability to effectively market, advertise, recruit, interview, listen, write, explain, and interpret ideas.
Strong interpersonal skill adapts at collaborating, counseling, negotiating, coaching, and teaming.
Strong ability to multi tasks, ability to prioritize and meet deadlines.
Strong ability to diagnose problem, solicit, analyze, interpret information, and provide solutions.
Strong ability to develop professional working relationships with Stakeholders.

EDUCATION:

Equity Leaders Fellowship, May 2019
Southern NH Area Health Education Center (AHEC)

Certificate of completion
Project Management Professional, December 2014
John Mason Institute, Merrimack, NH

Master of Science Community Economic Development, May 2011
Southern New'Hampshire University, Manchester, NH

Certificate in Advanced Leadership for Organizational Transformation, December 2009

Bachelor of Science, Business Administration/Organizational Leadership. Dean's List, February 2009
Southern New Hampshire University, Manchester, NH

TECHNICAL QUALIFICATIONS

OPERATING SYSTEMS: Windows XPAVindows 7, 8.1, 10, Linux Level.

SOFTWARE: MS Office (Outlook, Word, Excel, PowerPoint, Access), Team, Atrium, Taleo

ATS.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCES
Refugee and Immigrant Services, Case Manager
Catholic Charities OfBoston (CCB) November 2020 - Present

Manage the refugee and immigrant needs by ensuring timely delivery of services in fulfilment of
requirements outlined in the Cooperative Agreement and Guidelines.
Facilitate reception & placement (R&P) intake and match grant (MG) intake.
Develops and implements Resettlement Service Plans in the consultation with clients based on the
individual challenges and needs.
Explain, orient, and provide Massachusetts Refugee Resettlement Program (MRRP) form to clients and
monitor forms/documents for accuracy.

Facilitate comprehensive Massachusetts Refugee Resettlement Program (MRRP) and make referrals to
services if necessary.

• 1 •



DocuSign Envelope ID: B9D3FD75-A6DE-45C8-A197-A5583680B9C7

• Help eligible refugees/immigrants apply for Mass-Health, Refugee Cash Assistance (RCA) and
Transitional Aid to Families with dependent Children (TAFDC).

•  Enroll all eligible immigrant clients in Massachusetts State RISIS database.
• Manage and distribute Refugee Cash Assistance (RCA). Conduct and facilitate team meetings.
• Documents all contacts and services in client case files and maintains case logs.

Resettlement Case Manager
Church World Service (CWS) December 2020 - November 2021
• Managed the resettlement of clients by ensuring timely delivery of services and fulfilment of

requirements outlined in the Cooperative Agreement and Guidelines.
• Developed and implemented Resettlement Service Plans in the consultation with clients based on the

individual challenges and needs.
•  Performed safety home evaluation and inspection and provide in-home orientation to clients.
•  Facilitated reception & placement (R&P) intake and match grant (MG) intake.
• Managed Resettlement and Match Grant budgets. Conducted and facilitated service plan meetings.
• Documented all contacts and services in client case files and maintains case logs.

•  Completed 90-days, 120-days and 180-days reports on IRIS.
•  Completed MG program pre-employment and post-employment case budget.
•  Conneeted clients to in-house support and makes referrals to external service providers, as necessary.
•  Completed Service Deadline Calculator. Reviewed case and closed case file.

Program Manager
Organization for Refugee and Immigrant Success (ORIS) August 2019 - December 2020
• Recruited, trained/coached, supervised, and evaluated staff; facilitated team meetings.
•  Oversaw funded programs to provide case management, employment, and training.
• Worked with banks and community collaborative agencies to design and implement financial literacy.
• Developed working relationship with local employers and other collaborative agencies.
•  Participated in speaking engagements to educate public on refugee/immigrant issues.

Interpreting Program Coordinator/Recruiter
International Institute ofNew England November 2016- May 2019
•  Recruited, screened, trained, and managed interpreters/translators.
• Marketed and advertised. Supervised Interpreting Program Assistant.
•  Ensured that all services provided by the interpretation staff operate within the policies.

Program Manager
Organization for Refugee and Immigrant Success (ORIS) May 2014 - October 2016
•  Provided orientation Refugees/Jmmigrants/counseling. Oversaw grants in compliance with agreements.
•  Participated in community meetings and ensured program follows ORIS policies.
• Assessed clients' job readiness skills, assisted in resume preparation and job placement.

Case Manager
Community Bridges, Concord NH December 2012-April 2014
• Designed Service Agreements (BSA/ISP) with related goals. Facilitated person centered planning.
• Monitored and evaluate monthly progress notes from vendors. Initiated request for proposals (RFP).
•  Evaluated various incident reports and submitted them to human rights committee.
•  Reviewed proposals and evaluate budgets from vendors. Submitted both to fiscal.

Case Manager/Employment Specialist
International Institute of NH, Manchester, NH July 2009 - November 2012

•2-
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Secured apartments and set-up apartments with volunteers,
facilitated reception & placement (R&P) intake and match grant (MG) intake.
Provided new arrival orientation, screened applicants to determine program eligibility.
Wrote case notes, completed R&P and MG reports.
Ensured program complied with contractual agreements and International Institute's policies.
Assessed clients'job readiness skills. Assisted in resume preparation and job placement.

Assistant Program Manager/Program Manager
Granite Bay Connections. Concord, NH January 2008-June 2009
•  Supervised employees, monitored, implemented, and provided an update on individual's behavior plan.
•  Provided counseling regarding behavior plan/goals. Served as a DSP as needed.
•  Evaluated incident reports; prepared monthly progress notes in accordance with individual ISP's goals.

References:

-3-
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Asccntria Community Services

Key Personnel

Afghan Health Promotion

7/1/2022-6/30/23

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Kabin Ghale

Resettlement Navigator-
Communitv Health

$ 45760
20%

$9152

Famoh Toure Program Manager $ 62400 8% $4680

7/1/2023-9/30/23

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Kabin Ghale

Resettlement Navigator -
Communitv Health

$ 45760

25%

$ 2860

Famoh Toure Program Manager $ 62400 10% $ 1560
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER

J29 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301-3857

^  603-27I-9200 l-800-852-33-t5 Eil. 9200

Fai: 603-27M912 TDDAccrst; 1-800-735-2964 www.dbbJ.Dh.gov

April1.2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Office of the Commissioner, to
amend existing agreements with the Contractors listed below to build capacity within communities
to address mental health needs including but not limited to overcoming stigmas associated with
mental health care, and creating opportunities for social engagement to reduce isolation, by
increasing the total price limitation by $260,850 from $234,375 to $495,225 v/ith no change to the
contract completion dates of September 30. 2023, effective upon Governor and Council approval.
100% Federal Funds.

The original contracts were approved by Governor and Council on May 6, 2020, item #15,
and most recently amended on December 18, 2020, item #7.

Contractor

Name

Vendor

Code

Area Served Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

Ascentria

Community
Services, Inc.

222201 Concord, NH $117,187.50 $130,425.00 $247,612.50

International

Institute of

New England,
Inc.

177551 Manchester. NH $117,187.50 $130,425.00 $247,612.50

Total: $234,376.00 $260,850.00 $495,226.00

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, and
are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is for each Contractor to hire and implement a mental health
case manager position, who will be responsible for providing mental health case management, a
mental health orientation, mental health education and the added service of facilitating wellness

77»#' Dftxirlmrnt nf Henllh nnd Human SrrvicfM' Mission is 10 join commttnilirs and faniilift
in [irwiifingnit/ifirlunitUs for citizens l<i niliinv health nnd independence.
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

groups and providing home visits as part of implementing the Family Strengthening Intervention
for Refugees.

Currently, each Contractor has one (1) health case manager who is responsible for both
physical and mental health case management services, orientation and education. With the
additional mental health case manager, the existing and new services will further build capacity
within communities to address mental health needs, including but not limited to helping overcome
stigmas associated with mental health care, and creating opportunities for social engagement to
reduce isolation.

Approximately 500 Office of Refugee Resettlement (ORR) eligible individuals will be
served through September 30. 2023.

The Contractors serve designated ORR-eligible populations resettled in the State for up
to five (5) years from the date of arrival. The Contractors provide orientations on the U.S.
healthcare system as well as education oh identified health conditions. In addition, the Contractors
will organize wellness groups for ORR-eligible clients to prevent isolation, conduct home visits as
well as provide health and mental health case management services to ensure ORR-eligible
clients obtain the necessary follow-up health and mental health services beyond the initial medical
examination in a manner that is timely, and culturally and linguistically appropriate.

The current and new services will continue to reduce barriers to achieving wellness within
ORR-eligible populations, as well as impart the knowledge and skills necessary to navigate the
U.S. health care system independently and to manage health and health conditions.

The Department will continue monitoring existing and new services to ensure:

•  100% of new ORR-eligible arrivals receive health-related orientations including
mental health orientations.. and/or workshops/trainings throughout the contract
period, with priority given to those who have been in the U.S. for two (2) years or
less;

•  100% of ORR-eligible clients who require care beyond the initial medical
examination receive case management services, including mental health case

'  management services;

•  Results of the satisfaction surveys distributed at each orientation, workshop and
training demonstrate 80% of ORR-eligible clients have increased knowledge and
understanding of:

o Accessing and navigating the U.S. Health System in order to obtain health
insurance;

o Scheduling and keeping health appointments; and

o Utilizing public. Medicaid and/or other appropriate transportation to get to
and from medical and mental health appointments.

•  A minimum of three (3) Wellness Groups are facilitated each contract year;

•  A minimum of five (5) families are enrolled in and receive the Family Strengthening
Intervention for Refugees each contract year;

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request. ORR-eligible
populations with complex health conditions may not receive the needed mental health care in a
timely, and culturally and linguistically appropriate, manner. In addition, ORR-eligible populations
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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may not gain the knowledge and skills necessary to navigate the U.S. health care system
independently and to manage their health and health conditions.

Sources of Federal Funds; Assistance Listing Number (formerly CFDA#) 93.566. FAINs
Refugee 22G99RSF2 and Afghan 22G992210.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Reapeqtfully subrru^edi.

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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Refugee Health Promotion Program
SS-2021-OHE-01-REFUG (Amendment 1*2)

Fiscal Detail Sheet

Ascentria Community Services, Inc., VC# 222201-B001

05-95-095-950010-72090000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS; HHS; COMMISSIONERS OFFICE; OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER;
REFUGEE SERVICES (100% Federal Funds)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731

Contracts for

Program

Services

95070005 $37,499.50 $0 $37,499.50

2022 102-500731

Contracts for

Program

Services

95070005 $37,500 $0 $37,500

2023 102-500731

Contracts for

Program

Services

95070005 $37,500 $0 $37,500

2024 102-500731

Contracts for

Program

Services

95070005 K688
$0

$4,688

Subtotals $117,187.50 $0 $117,187.50

05-95-095-950010-72090000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS; HHS: COMMISSIONERS OFFICE; OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER;
REFUGEE SERVICES (100% Federal Funds)

State

Fiscal
Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2022 102-500731

Contracts for

Program

Services

95070021 $0 $14,063 $14,063

2023 102-500731

Contracts for

Program

Services

95070021 $0 $18,750 $18,750

2024 102-500731

Contracts for

Program

Services

95070021 $0 $4,687 $4,687

Subtotals $0 $37,500 $37,500

Page 1 of 3
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Refugee Health Promotion Program

SS-2021-OHE-O1-REFUG (Amendment #2)

Fiscal Detail Sheet

05-96-095-960010-72090000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS; HHS: COMMISSIONERS OFFICE; OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER;
REFUGEE SERVICES (100% Federal Funds)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /
Account

Class Title
Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2022 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

95070023 $0 $34,847 $34,847

2023 102-500731

Contracts for

Program

Services

95070023 $0 $46,463 $46,463

2024 102-500731

Contracts for

Program

Services

95070023 $0 $11,615 $11,615

Subtotals so S92,925 S92,925

TOTALS $117,187.50 $130,425 $247,612.50

In^rnational Institute of New England, Inc., VCltl 177551-B001

06-95-095-950010.72090000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND

HUMAN SVS; HHS: COMMISSIONERS OFFICE; OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER;
REFUGEE SERVICES (100% Federal Funds)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731

Contracts for

Program

Services

95070005 $37,296.50 $0 $37,296.50

2022 102-500731

Contracts for

Program

Services

95070005 $37,500 $0 $37,500

2023 102-500731

Contracts for

Program

Services

95070005 $37,500 $0 $37,500

2024 102-500731

Contracts for

Program

Services

95070005 $4,891
$0

$4,891

Subtotals $117,187.50 so $117,187.50

Page 2 of 3
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Refugee Health Promotion Program

SS-2021-OHE-01-REFUG (Amendment »2\

Fiscal Detail Sheet

05-95-095-950010-72090000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS; HHS: COMMISSIONERS OFFICE; OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER;
REFUGEE SERVICES (100% Federal Funds)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2022 102-500731

Contracts for

Program

Services

95070021

$0 $6,250 $6,250

2023 102-500731

Contracts for

Program

Services

95070021

$0 $25,000 25,000

2024 102-500731

Contracts for

Program

Services

95070021

$0 $6,250 $6,250

Subtotals $0 $37,500 $37,500

05-95-095-950010-72090000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS; HHS; COMMISSIONERS OFFICE; OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER:
REFUGEE SERVICES (100% Federal Funds)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2022
102-

500731

Contracts for

Program

Services

95070023

$0 $15,523 $15,523

2023
102-

500731

Contracts for

Program

Services

95070023

$0 $61,922 $61,922

2024
102-

500731

Contracts for

Program

Services

95070023

$0 $15,400 $15,480

Subtotals $0 $92,925 $92,925

TOTALS $117,187.50 $130,425 $247,612.50

GRAND TOTALS $234,375.00 $260,850.00 $495,225.00

Page 3 of 3
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

This Amendment to the New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program contract is by and between
the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and
Ascentria Community Services, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on May 6, 2020, (Item #15), as amended on December 18, 2020. (Item #7). the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
In consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions, Paragraph 17, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation and modify the scope of services to support
continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.8. Price Limitation, to read:

$247,612.50

2. Modify Exhibit 8, Scope of Services by replacing It in its entirety with Exhibit 8 - Amendment #2.
Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

3. Modify Exhibit C. Payment Terms. Section 1, to read:

1. This Agreement is funded with 100% federal funds from Administration for Children & Families,
as awarded on October 25, 2021 and December 29. 2021. by the Administration for Children
& Families; CFDA# 93.566.

4. Modify Exhibit C. Payment Terms, Section 2, to read;

2. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be In accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibit C-1. 8udget through Exhibit C-IO, Budget - Amendment #2.

5. Add Exhibit C-5, Budget - Amendment #2. Exhibit C-6. Budget - Amendment #2. Exhibit C-7.
Budget - Amendment #2, Exhibit C-8, Budget-Amendment #2, Exhibit C-9. Budget-Amendment
#2 and Exhibit C-IO. Budget - Amendment #2, which are attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

Ascentria Community Services. Inc A-S-1.2 Contractor Initials

SS.2021-OHE-01-REFUG-01-A02 Page 1 of 3 Date
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A!l terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

4/19/202?

Date

■OoeuSigKcd by:

loiAjni
—;40AC37EOaEB489

Name: Ann h. tandry
Title:

Associate Commissioner

4/12/2022

Date

Ascentria Community Services. Inc.

— DoduSlgnfd by;

— A6MCCaA777C49C

Name: Almee Mitchell
Title:

chief community Services officer

Ascenlria Community Services, Inc.

SS-2a21-OHE.dl-REFUG-01-A02

A.S-1.2

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

4/20/2022
FDF521CS25CJ4AC

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

r-0ocuSi9n«db)r:

Date Name: Takhmina Rakhmatova
Title:

Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Ascentria Community Services. Inc. A-S-1 2

SS-2021-OHe-01-REFUG-01-A02 Page 3 Of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #2

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1 .'1. The Contractor shall provide services and activities that promote the health and
wellness of designated Office of Refugee Resettlement (ORR)-eligible
populations by;

1.1.1. Providing opportunities to increase health literacy;

1.1.2. Coordinating physical,health and mental health care;

1.1.3. Building capacity within communities to address mental health needs
including but not limited to help overcoming stigmas associated with
mental health care; and

1.1.4. Creating opportunities for social engagement to reduce isolation,
including but not limited to organizing wellness groups.

1.2. The Contractor shall provide services, statewide, to ORR-eligible populations to
increase access to health care and reduce gaps in services, with an emphasis
on the geographic areas of Concord. Manchester and Nashua. Services must
include, but are not limited to:

1.2.1. Physical and mental health case management.

1.2.2. Health orientations.

1.2.3. Health education.

1.2.4. Home visiting.

1.2.5. Targeted wellness groups.

■  1.2.6. Health provider education.

1.3. The Contractor shall ensure all required services in 1.2 are:

1.3.1. Client-centered;

1.3.2. Trauma-informed:

1.3.3. Strengths-based; and

1.3.4. Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate (CLAS).

1.4. The Contractor shall provide physical health and mental health case
management services to ORR-eligible clients who require care beyond the initial
health examination, which includes, but is not limited to:

1.4.1. Scheduling and coordinating health, including mental health,
appointments.

1.4.2. Accompanying clients to health appointments.
— OS

dk.
SS-2021-OHE-01-REFUG01-A02 Contractor Initials

Ascentria Community Services. Inc Page 1 of 14 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #2

1.4.3. Providing and/or facilitating the provision of transportation to and from
health appointments.

1.4.4. Ensuring appropriate interpreter services are available to clients during
health appointments with providers, as needed.

1.4.5. Assisting ORR-eligible populations to obtain appropriate health
insurance.

1.5. The Contractor shall provide uniform, continuous and timely transition of case
management services from the initial refugee health examination and/or on day
ninety-one (91) of resettlement, whichever is sooner, including all needed follow-
up care, to ensure no gaps in services and continuity of care.

1.6. The Contractor shall schedule an initial dental examination for all ORR-eligible
children 0-18 years of age within six (6) months of arrival.

1.7. The Contractor shall conduct health orientations that shall include, but are not

limited to, the following topics:

1.7.1. Navigating the U.S. health care system.

1.7.2. Health insurance, including Refugee Medical Assistance.

1.7.3. Privacy and consent laws.

1.7.4. The right to language assistance in health care settings and the role of
interpreters.

1.7.5. Transportation options for medical appointments including, but not
limited to:

1.7.5.1. Public transportation training.

1.7.5.2. Arranging Medicaid transportation.

1.7.6. Understanding the different types of health care providers including, but
not limited to:

1.7.6.1. Primary care providers.

1.7.6.2. Specialists.

1.7.6.3. Pharmacists.

1.7.7. Understanding the different types of health care and when, where and
how to access each type including, but not limited to:

1.7.7.1. Preventive.

1.7.7.2. Urgent.

1.7.7.3. Emergency.

m
SS.2021.OHE-0VREFUG-01-A02 Contfactof Initials v
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #2

1.7.8. Understanding the availability of mental/behavioral health services,
including but not limited to treatment for substance use disorders, and
when, where and how to access services.

1.7.9. Scheduling, keeping and cancelling appointments.

1.7.10. What to bring to appointments.

1.7.11. Medication, including but not limited to;

1.7.11.1. The difference between prescribed medication and over-the-
counter (OTT) medication.

1.7.11.2. Refills.

1.7.11.3. Dosage instructions.

1.7.11.4. Side effects.

1.8. The Contractor shall provide appropriate interpreter services and translated
materials at all health orientations.

1.9. The Contractor shall adapt the health orientation curriculum to accommodate
the needs of new ORR-eligible populations, and modify the curriculum as
needed, with approval from the Department.

1.10. The Contractor shall maintain documentation of individual ORR-eligible clients
who have received health orientation services, including but not limited to:

1.10.1. The individual clients who participated in a health orientation;

1.10.2. The topic(s) of orientation completed by each participant;

1.11. The Contractor shall conduct both group, defined as a minimum of two (2)
participants, and individual health orientations, including a minimum of one (1)
home visit to reinforce and clarify the information presented in the group setting,
and to address unique issues and concerns.

1.12. The Contractor shall provide solely, or in collaboration with other organizations,
health education to ORR-eligible populations. The Contractor shall:

1.12.1. Identify topics of concern in each of the various ORR-eligible
populations and prioritize topics that are most urgent or relevant on an
ongoing basis.

1.12.2. Invite and arrange for outside organizations to provide individual and/or
group health education sessions on topics within their area(s) of
expertise, which may include the topics identified in Subsection 1.12.6.
below;

1.12.3. Schedule presenters;

1.12.4. Ensure the provision of interpreter services;

1.12.5. Notify clients of class schedules;

SS-2021-OHE-01-REFUC-0VA02 Contracior Initials

— DS

dk.

Ascenlria Community Services, Inc. Page 3 of 14 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: B9D3FD75-A6DE-45C8-A197-A5583680B9C7

DocuStgn Envelope lO 76F4F98S-67PB-4AD3-9048-67D6SDF7BF28

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #2

1.12.6. Ensure health education sessions include topics relevant to ORR-
eligible populations that may include, but are not limited to:

1.12.6.1. Health insurance terms, coverage requirements and options,
and the enrollment process.

1.12.6.2. Disabilities including, but not limited to. autism.

1.12.6.3. Women's health including, but not limited to, domestic
violence and reproductive health.

1.12.6.4. Men's health.

1.12.6.5. Emotional Wellness.

1.12.6.6. Lesbian. Gay. Bisexual. Transgender, and Questioning
(LGBTQ) health.

1.12.6.7. Oral health and hygiene.

1.12.6.8. Vision health.

1.12.6.9. Nutrition and benefits of exercise.

1.12.6.10.Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV).

1.12.6.11 .Tuberculosis risk reduction.

1.12.6.12.Fire safety.

1.13. The Contractor shall distribute satisfaction surveys at health education sessions
in order to survey clients on:

1.13.1. The usefulness of the information provided;

1.13.2. Presentation style; and

1.13.3. Other relevant information.

1.14. The Contractor shall inform and coordinate community resources for the provision
of health care services not covered by Refugee Medical Assistance (RMA) or
other funding sources.

1.15. The Contractor shall facilitate the provision of non-clinical interventions including
but not limited to wellness groups to:

1.15.1. Promote refugee wellness;

1.15.2. Reduce isolation; and

1.15.3. Prevent suicide.

1.16. The Contractor shall facilitate a minimum of three (3) wellness groups each
Contract year, utilizing an evidence-based curriculum that may include, but is
not limited to. Pathways to Wellness Community Adjustment Support Group
Training Manual and Curriculum. (—

\m
SS-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-01-A02 Contractor Initials ^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT 8 - Amendment #2

1.17. The Contractor shall implement the Family Strengthening Intervention for
Refugees, a home visiting family-based preventive intervention, to a minimum
of five-{5) families each Contract year.

1.18. The Contractor shall support and/or assist with ORR-eligible population periodic
emotional distress screenings using evidence-based tools that may include, but
are not limited to. the Refugee Health Screener 15 (RHS-15). and communicate
results and make referrals to health care providers as needed.

1.19. The Contractor shall maintain relationships with health care providers, including
mental health providers, within the refugee resettlement network; and develop
and foster relationships with a minimum of four (4) health care/mental health
care providers who are not in the refugee resettlement network through:

1.19.1. Outreach;

1.19.2. Education; and

1.19.3. Meetings.

1.20. The Contractor shall ensure relationships with health care providers/mental
health providers within, and not within, the refugee resettlement network focus
on, but are not limited to:

1.20.1. Health needs and culture of ORR-eligible populations.

1.20.2. Barriers to care that may include, but are not limited to:

1.20.2.1. Language.

1.20.2.2. Cultural factors.

1.20.2.3. Transportation issues.

1.20.3. Adherence to the CDC Refugee Health Guidelines for the initial
domestic medical examination.

1.20.4. National Standards for CLAS in health and healthcare.

1.21. The Contractor shall provide education and training to ORR-eligible populations
on the availability of health insurance through employers, the Marketplace,
expanded Medicaid and/or other financial assistance options at various stages
of resettlement, which will include, but is not limited to:

1.21.1. Assistance accessing and navigating the various health insurance
options available;

1.21.2. Assisting with health insurance enrollment applications: and/or

1.21.3. Making referrals to organizations for assistance with health insurance
applications.

1.22. The Contractor shall provide planning and evaluation assistance to the
Department including, but not limited to:

Hk.
SS-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-01-A02 Conlractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotior^ Program

EXHIBIT 8 - Amendment #2

1.22.1. Developing and collecting satisfaction surveys distributed at
orientations, tiealth sessions and trainings.

1.22.2. Tracking data, including;

1.22.2.1. Number of referrals made;

1.22.2.2. Number of training sessions and participants:

1.22.2.3. Number of consultations or point of contact with providers;

and

1.22.2.4. Number of meetings and training sessions.

1.22.3. Collecting feedback from health service providers to evaluate the
success of case management coordination, and implementing
adjustments as necessary.

1.22.4. Collecting internal feedback from staff, particularly case managers and
other case management specialists to evaluate the relevance of the
orientations to implement necessary changes leading to anticipated
improvements.

1.23. The Contractor shall communicate the results from ORR-eligible clients' health
examinations conducted by a third party to medical providers as needed.

1.24. The Contractor shall facilitate referrals to behavioral health providers as needed.

1.25. The Contractor shall participate ip virtual or in-person meetings with the
Department upon request.

1.26. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract management, improve results and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes.

1.27. Staffing and Training

1.27.1. The Contractor shall ensure the following staff positions to carry out the
services as specified in this Scope of Services:

1.27.1.1. Two (2) Case Managers:

1.27.1.1.1. One (1) Case Manager who shall provide
physical health case management services; and

1.27.1.1.2. One (1) Case Manager who shall provide
mental health case management services to
ORR-eligible populations with complex health
conditions.

1.27.1.2. One (1) Administrator. Responsibilities include, but are not
limited to:

rith
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #2

1.27.1.2.1. Oversight and supervision of the two (2) Case
Managers including performing all supervisory
duties; and

1.27.1.2.2. Oversight of the reporting process and ensuring
all required reporting is complete and submitted
to the Department timely in accordance with
Section 2. Reporting Requirements.

1.28. The Contractor shall ensure staff participate in trainings on the following subject
matters:

1.28.1. Understanding health insurance coverage and enrollment requirements
on the state and federal levels in order to assist ORR-eligible
populations obtain appropriate health insurance;

1.28.2. Implementing the Family Strengthening Intervention for Refugees as
specified in Subsection 1.17; and

1.28.3. Professional development training that may include, but is not limited
to. the National Alliance on Mental Illness Mental Health First Aide
training, to inform practices,

2. Reporting Requirements

2.1. The Contractor shall submit semi-annual reports to the Department for reporting
periods October 1 - September 30 and March 31 - April 1 no later than fifteen
(15) days after the end of each reporting period, and upon request by the
Department. Semi-annual reports must include, but are not limited to:

2.1.1. Number of new arrivals by:

2.1.1.1. Gender;

2.1.1.2. Age;

2.1.1.3. Country of origin; and

■2.1.1.4. Immigration status.

2.1.2. Number of clients receiving tuberculosis screening within the following
time frames:

2.1.2.1. Thirty (30) days of arrival;

2.1.2.2. Thirty (30) to ninety (90) days of arrival; and
2.1.2.3. Ninety (90) days or more.

2.1.3. Number receiving initial health exam within the following time frames;
2.1.3.1. Thirty (30) days of arrival;

2.1.3.2. Thirty (30) to ninety (90) days of arrival; and [,«
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2.1.3.3. Ninety (90) days of arrival or more.

2.1.4. Number of children six (6) months to sixteen (16) years of age who have
been screened for lead.

2.1.5. Number of children two (2) to eighteen (18) years of age scheduled for
first dental examination within six (6) months of arrival.

2.1.6. Number of clients referred to the following:

2.1.6.1. Primary care provider;

2.1.6.2. Dental care provider;

2.1.6.3. Emergency room;

2.1.6.4. Mental health provider;

2.1.6.5. Infectious disease specialist;

2.1.6.6. Vision care provider;

2.1.6.7. Hearing care provider;

2.1.6.8. HIV services;

2.1.6.9. Tuberculosis follow-up services;

2.1.6.10. Pre-natal care provider;

2.1.6.11. Other specialists as well as the other conditions identified by
the State Refugee Health Coordinator.

2.1.7. Demographic data for ORR-eligible clients served, including:

2.1.7.1. Gender;

2.1.7.2. Age;

2.1.7.3. Primary language; and

2.1.7.4. Country of origin.

2.1.8. Number of clients receiving health case management services.

2.1.9. Number of clients receiving mental health case management services.

2.1.10. Number of clients participating in a wellness groups.

2.1.11. Number of clients receiving initial health orientation and topic(s)
covered.

2.1.12. Number of clients receiving health education and topic{s) covered.

2.1.13. Number of families participating in Family Strengthening Intervention
for Refugees, including:

2.1.13.1. Number of home visits completed; ^ds
ilAi
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2.1.13.2. The topics covered during each home visit; and

2.1.13.3. Number or percentage of new ORR-eligible clients receiving
a health home visit.

2.1.14. Number of health providers receiving training.

2.1.15. Number of health case manager trainings and topic(s).

2.1.16. Number of ORR-eligible clients educated and/or referred for assistance
in obtaining appropriate health insurance when transitioning off
Refugee Medical Assistance.

2.2. The Contractor shall identify and submit the primary health related issues of
concern in each of the ORR-eligible client communities to the Department.
Primary health related issues may include, but are not limited to:

2.2.1. Diabetes.

2.2.2. Hypertension.

2.2.3. Mental health.

2.2.4. Oral health concerns.

2.3. The Contractor shall submit a final program report to the Department no later
than fifteen (15) calendar days prior to the contract completion date.

2.4. The Contractor may be requested to provide additional key data and metrics to
the Department on an as needed basis.

3. Performance Measures

3.1. The Contractor shall ensure the following performance indicators are achieved
annually and monitored on a monthly basis to measure the effectiveness of the
agreement:

3.1.1. 100% of new ORR-eligible arrivals receive health-related orientations
and/or workshops/trainings throughout the contract period, with priority
given to those who have been in the United States for two (2) years or
less;

3.1.2. 100% of ORR-eligible clients who require care beyond the initial
medical examination receive case management services, including
mental health case management services, in accordance with
Subsection 1,4;

3.1.3. 100% of adult ORR-eligible clients receive assistance accessing
affordable health insurance upon arrival;

3.1.4. 100% of adult ORR-eligible clients are educated on the need to obtain
appropriate health insurance when transitioning off of Refugee Medical
Assistance; /—

Hk
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3.1.5. All written materials and resources produced are translated;

3.1.6. Interpreter services are coordinated consistently and regularly
throughout the contract period;

3.1.7. Results of the satisfaction surveys distributed at each orientation,
workshop and training demonstrate 80% of ORR-eligible clients have
increased knowledge and understanding of;

3.1.7.1. Accessing and navigating the US Health System in order to
obtain health insurance:

3.1.7.2. Scheduling and keeping health appointments; and

3.1.7.3. Utilizing public. Medicaid and/or other appropriate
transportation to get to and from medical and mental health
appointments.

3.1;8. Results of the satisfaction surveys distributed at each, orientation,
workshop and training demonstrate 80% of ORR-eligible adult clients
gained knowledge on a minimum of one (1) health topic.

3.1.9. A minimum of three (3) Weilness Groups are facilitated each contract
year;

3.1.10. A minimum of five (5) families are enrolled in and receive the Family
Strengthening Intervention for Refugees each contract year;

3.1.11. A minimum of four (4) new relationships are established with providers
outside of the refugee resettlement network each contract year.

3.1.12. A minimum of four (4) meetings with providers within the refugee
resettlement network are conducted each contract year.

3.2. The Contractor shall develop and submit a corrective action plan for any
performance measure(s) not on target to be achieved annually, in accordance
with Subsection 3.1. to the Department on a quarterly basis until such time all
measures are achievable annually, that must include:

3.2.1. The barrier(s) to achieving the measurefs) annually; and

3.2.2. A detailed plan to achieve the measure(s) annually that must include,
but is not limited to. a timeline.

— PS

dk.
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Additional Terms

3.3. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

3.3.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities and
expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

3.4. Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services (CLAS)

3.4.1. The Contractor shall submit and comply with a detailed description of
the language assistance services they will provide to persons with
limited English proficiency and/or hearing impairment to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10)
days of the contract effective date.

3.5. Credits and Copyright Ownership

3.5.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Contract shall include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g.. the United States Department of Health and Human
Services."

3.5.2. All materials produced or purchased under the contract shall have prior
approval from the Department before printing, production, distribution
or use.

3.5.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all original
materials produced, including, but not limited to:

3.5.3.1. Brochures.

3.5.3.2. Resource directories.

3.5.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

3.5.3.4. Posters.

3.5.3.5. Reports.

3.5.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
contract without prior written approval from the Department.

•ts
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3.6. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

3.6.1, In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty
upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or the
provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the
performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure said
license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit, In connection with the
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees
that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall comply with all
rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the
Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and shall be in
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

3.7. Eligibility Determinations

3.7.1. If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals
such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with
applicable federal and state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines,
policies and procedures.

3.7.2. Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by the
Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such
times as are prescribed by the Department.

3.7.3. In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the
Contractor shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services
hereunder, which file shall include all information necessary to support
an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with
all forms and documentation regarding eligibility determinations that the
Department may request or require.

3.7.4. The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder.
as well as individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing
regarding that determination. The Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out an
application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be
informed of his/her right to a fair hearing in accordance with Department
regulations.

— OS
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4. Records

4.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

4.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

4.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all
such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department,
and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and
original evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders,
vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind
contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested
or required by the Department.

4.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each
such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such
services.

4.2. During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination,
excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of the maximum
number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price
limitation hereunder. the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder
(except such obligations as. by the terms of the Contract are to be performed
after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the termination of the

Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that- if, upon review of the Final
Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the
Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its
discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are disallowed or to
recover such sums from the Contractor.

5. Termination Report/Transition Plan

5.1. In the event of early termination of the Agreement, the Contractor shall, within
15 days of notice of early termination, develop and submit to the Stale a
Transition Plan for services under the Agreement, including but not limited to.
identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services under the
Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

m
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5.2. The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide
detailed information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to.
any information or data requested by the Slate related to the termination of'the
Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing communication and
revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

5.3. In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to
clients receiving services under the Agreement are transitioned to having
services delivered by another entity including contracted providers or the State,
the Contractor shall provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of services in
the Transition Plan.

5.4. The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected
individuals about the transition. The Contractor shall Include the proposed
communications in its Transition Plan submitted to the State as described

above.

6. Exhibits Incorporated

6.1. All Exhibits D through H and J are attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

6.2. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in

compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in accordance
with the attached Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement, which has been
executed by the parties and is incorporated by reference herein.

6.3. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K. DHHS Information Security
Requirements, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

ik.
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STATE OP NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFiCE OF THE COMMISSIONER

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03)010857
503.171.9200 1.80(3451.3345 EiL 9100

P«i:i03.27M912 TDD'AcMit: 1400.735-2964 wv*.6hb».oh.(0v

November 3. 2020

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of the Commissioner, to
amend existing Sole Source contracts with the vendors Irstecf below for services and activities to
.promote the health and.well-being of.refugees resettled in.New.Hampshire. by.increasing.the total,
price limitation by $9,375 from $225,000 to $234,375 and by extending the completion dates from
August 14, 2023 to September 30. 2023 effective upon Governor and Countil approval. 100%
Federal Funds.

The original contracts were approved by Governor and Council on May 6,2020. item #15.

Vendor Name Vendor

Code

Area Served Current

Amount

Increase

(Oecreaae)
Revised

Amount

Ascentria

Community
Services. Inc.

222201 Concord. NH $112,500 $4,687.50 ■  S117.187.50

International

Institute of New

England, Inc.
177551

Manchester,

NH
$112,500 S4.687.50 $117,187.50

Total: $226,000 $9,375 $234,376

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2021. and are
anticipated to be available In State Fiscal Years 2022, 2023, and 2024, upon the avallabllily and
continued appropriation of funds In the future operatir>g bucket, with the authority to adjust budget
line items v^thin the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the
Budget OfTtce, if needed and iustified.

05-95-9&422010-79220000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF. HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HNS: OFFiCE OF THE COMMISSIONER, OFFICE OF HEALTH EOUITY.
REFUGEE SERVICES

Tht OtfiorlmtiM of Htelth and HuoiOn Struicrt'Mitsion u to Join ttntmuniliti and fomitin
in ptTnndin4 opportuiiiUci for citiM'U to othitve ArorUi and ind<ptndtnct.
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P»Oe 2 of 3

State

Fiscal
Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
42200012 $65,421 $9,375 $74,796

20i22 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
42200012 $75,000 SO $75,000

2023 102-500731,
Contracts for

Prog Svc
42200012 $75,000 $0 " $75,000

2024 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
42200012 $9,579 $0 $9,579

Total $225,000 $9,375 $234,375

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the contracts were originally approved as sole
source and MdP 150 requires any subsequent amendments to be labelled as-soie source. The
Contractors listed above are the only Contractors that posse&s the comprehensive client
information and cultural expertise required to manage client cases and address the complex,
interrelated health and social needs of each individual.

The purpose of this request is to add additional funding for State Fiscal Year 2021 and
change the contract period date from August 14, 2023 to September 30. 2023 to align vtrith the
federal grant period. The Federal Grant Office of Refugee Resettlement requested the contracts
align with the awarded funding and funding period.

Refugees who have resettled to New Hampshire will be served through these contracts.
Approximately 500 individuals wilt be served over the duration of the entire contract terms.

The Contractors will ensure services include scheduling and coordinating medical and
mental health appointments; accompanying clients to medical appointments: providing and
facilitating transporlation to appointments; and ensuring interpreter services are acquired for all
appointments, as necessary.

The Department will monitor contracted services using the following performance
measures;

•  100% of all health-related orientations and workshops/trainings shall be provided
throughout the project period, as necessary.

•  100% of newly arrived refugees and those who have been in the United States two
(2) years of less shall be prioritized.

•  100% of all written materials and resources produced shall be identified and
prioritized for translation as applicable.

•  100% of all interpreter services shall be coordinated consistently and regularly
throughout the project period.

•  60% of refugees shall express an increased knowledge about health insurance
'  requirements including how and where to enroll in health insurance. ^
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•  80% of adults ahall express Increased knowledge about accessing and navigating
the U.S. health care system.

•  80% of adults win know how to make and keep medical appointments.

•  80% of adults will know how to use public. Medicaid. and/or appropriate
transportation to get to medical appointments.

•  80% of adults shall demonstrate increased knowledge about at least one health
topic.

•  100% of clients with health needs beyond initial exam shall be scheduled for follow-
up care.

•  100% of clients with mental health needs beyond initial exam shall be scheduled
for follow-up care within 60 days of arrival.

As referenced In Exhibit A of the original contracts, the parties have the option to extend
the agreements for up to three (3) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties and Govemor and Council approval. The
Department is exercising its option to renew services for one (1) month and fifteen (15) days of
the three (3) years available.

Should the Govemor and Executive Coondl not authorize this request, the Department
will be out of compliance with the Office of Refugee Resettlements request to align the funding
and contract period with the grant. Refugees with complex health conditions may not receive the
follcrwHjp medical care they need in a timely and culturally and linguistically appropriate manner,
and refugees may not gain the knowtedge arrd skiita they need to navigate the U.S. health care
system independently and to manage their health and health condftions.

Area served: Statewide ,

Source of Funds: Administration for Children and Families 100% CFDAA 93.576

FAIN09ORXO28O.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

M

Lori i ShibirTBtte
Commissioner
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH CENTER CONTRACT AMENDMENTS
SFY 201fi FINANCIAL DETAIL

OS eS-SS-IXMtO-TtllOOOO HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER. OFFICE OF HEALTH EQUITY. REFUGEE SERVICES
100% F«d«ral Fund*

Ascentna Community Seiwcds. Inc. vendor 9222201

State Fiscal
Classy Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount increase (Decrease) Revised Amount

2021 102/500731 Contracts lor Prooram Services 42200012 $ 32.B12.00 S 4.687.50 37.499.50

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 42200012 i 37.500.00 S -
37.500.00

2023 102/500731 Contracts lor Prooram Services 42200012 S 37,500.00 $ 37.500.00

2024 102/500731 Contracts lor Program Services 42200012 S 4.688.00 i -  .
4.86800

Sub Total s 112.500.00 s 4.687.50 117.187.50

International Institute ol New iEngland. Inc. Vendor 9177551

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title ■- Job Number Current Amount Increase (Decrease) Revised Amount

2021 102/500731 Conlracis lor Program Services 42200012 5 32.609.00 i 4.687.50 37.296.50

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Prxram Services 42200012 i 37,500.00 i 37.500.00

2023 102/500731 Contracts (or Prograrti Services 42200012 i 37,500.00 $ 37,500.00

-  2024 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 42200012 i 4.891.00 s •
4.891.00

Sub Total 42200012 s 112,500.00 s 4.667.50 117.187.50

OvBrell Total! S 22S.000.00l S 9.375.001 S 234.375001

AitacVneni - Bu(e«u ol BaMv>oni Hsaiin
FFianoai Oelail
Page i ol I
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment 01 to the New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

This !»' Amendment to the New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program contract (hereinafter
referred to as 'Amendment 01*) is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health
and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "Slate* or "Department') and Ascentria Community
Services, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as 'the Contractor'), a nonprofit with a place of business at 14
East Worcester Street Suite 300 Worcester, MA, 01604.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contracr) approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on May 6. 2020, (Item IS), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specined in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 17 and Exhibit A Section 1.2. the
Contract may be amended upon wriilen agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and
Executive Council: and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement and increase the price limitation to
support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block i .7. Completion Date, to read:

September 30. 2023.

2. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.0. Price Limitation, to read;

$117,187.50.

3. Modify Exhibit C-1, Budget Sheet by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit C-1. Budget Sheet
Amendment 01, which Is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

•Ascentria Communily Services, Inc. Amendmcnl " Conlrador Initials _______

SS-2O2VOHE-01-ReFUG-0l-A0l Pago 1 of 3 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

All terms and conditions of the Contract not inconsistent with this Amendment U^ remain in full force and

effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Oepaftment of Health and Human Services

11/12/2020

Date

— OMulignM

Ann H. N. Landry

Name; Ann h. n. lendry

Title: . . • .
Associate Commissioner

Ascentria Community Services. Inc.

11/6/2020

Date

- 0*i*Si7>«4

Name: Jeffrey xmney
Title: chief of staff A Enternal Relations

Ascenlrla Community Services, Inc.

SS.202l-OHe-0l-ReFUG-01-A0l

Amendment #1

Page 2 ol 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

-DeciiSlg^>r

11/12/2020

Date Name: Catherine pinos

Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Aniendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New'Hampshire at the Meeting on: (dale of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Ascentfia Communliy Services. Inc. AmendmenI tfl

SS-20210HE-01-REFUG 01-A01 Page 3of 3
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Lori A. ShlblncNc

Commissioner

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER

n9 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
'  603-271-9200 J.800-8S2-334S EtL 9200

Fai: 603-271-4912 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

March 20, 2020

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of the Commissioner, to enter
into sole source agreements with the vendors listed below to provide the services and activities to
promote the health and well-being of refugees resettled in New Hampshire, in an amount not to exceed
$225,000, effective August 15, 2020 or upon date of Governor and Executive Council approval,
whichever is later, through August 14,2023. 100% Federal Funds.

Vendor Name Vendor

Number

Location Contract Amount

Ascehtria Corrimunity'Services. Inc. ■  222201 Concord. NH $112,500

International Institute of New

England. Inc.
177551 Manchester. NH $112,500

-.'t a-v-.

Total: $226,000

Funds are available in State Fiscal Year 2021 and anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years
2022 and 2023 and 2024, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budgets, with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances
between state fiscal years through the Budget Office if needed and justified.

05-95-95-422010-79220000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

SVS, HHS: OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER, OFFICE OF HEALTH EQUITY, REFUGEE SERVICES,

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title Job Number

t

Total Amount

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc ' 42200012 $65,421

2022 102-500731 • Contracts for Prog Svc 42200012 $75,000

■2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42200012 $75,000

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42200012 $9,579

saaiiMiMisnn■MHStoiSB Total $ 225,000



DocuSign Envelope ID: B9D3FO75-A6DE-45C8-A197-A5583680B9C7

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
And the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3
EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because the verxiors listed above are the only entities who. possess
the comprehensive client information and cultural expertise required to manage client cases and address
the complex, interrelated health and social needs of each Individual.. Moreover, because. Health
'Promotion services build upon and flow from the services provided under the Reception and Placement
and Case Coordination grants, contracting with these entities' ensures that no dienls fall through the
cracks, and that there is continuity of care with no gaps in services.

The purpose of this request is to provide services and activities that promote the health and
wellbeing of refugees resettled in New Hampshire.- Services include, but are not limited to health
orientations; health education; medical and mental health case management; and health provider
education. The services are provided in an effort to reduce gaps in services and to ensure refugees
obtain atl necessa^ medical and mental health services beyond the Initial health screening.

Approximately 500 individuals will be served over the duration of the entire contract term.

The Contractors will .ensure services Include scheduling and coordinating medical and mental ,
health appointments; accompanying dienls to medical appointments; providing and facilitating
transportation to appointments; and ensuring Interpreter services are acquired for aR appointments, as
necessary

The Contractors will be providing these, services to refugees; resettled asylees; and secondary
migrants who have been in the United States for five years or less, with a focus on individuals who have
been in the United States two (2) years or less as well as any victims of trafficking. (SlV)"s or other (ORR)
designated eligible recipients arriving in the service areas;

Refugee Health Promotion services provided by the Contractors will • .

(1) Promote the health literacy of refugees to enable them to access and navigate the U.S.
Health Care System Independently;

(2) Ensure refugees obtain all needed medical and mental health services in a timely and
culturally appropriate manner; .

(3) Increase refugee access to affordable health care over the long term: and

(4) Assist refugees become self-sufficient and decrease the need for public assistance..

The Department v^ll monitor the effectiveness of the Contractor and the delivery of services
required under this agreement using the following performance measures:'

o  100% of all health-related orientations and workshops/trainings shall be -provided
throughout the project period, as necessary.

o  100% of all newly arrived refugees and those who haye been in the United, States, two (2)
years of less shall be prioritized.

o  100% of all written materials and resources produced shall be identified andprioritized for
translation as applicable.

o  100% of all Interpreter services shall t>e coordinated consistently and regularly throughout
the project period.

o 80% of refugees shall express an increased knowledge about health insurance
requirements including how and where to enroll in health insurance.

o 80% Number of adults with increased knov4edge about accessing and navigating US
Health system
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•His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
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o 80% Number of adults who know how to make and keep health appointments

o 80% Number of adults who can use public. Medicaid and/or appropriate transportation
to get to medical appointments

■ o 80% Nurnber of adults who demonstrate increased knowledge about at least one health
topic

o  100% Number of clients with health needs beyond initial exam scheduled for follow-up
care

•  o 100% Number of arrivals with mental health needs scheduled for appointment within 60
days of arrival

As referenced In Exhibit C-l, Revisions to Standard Contract Language, of these agreements,
the parties have the option'to extend contract services for up to three (3) additional years, contingent
upon satisfactory delivery of services, available fundir>g. agreement of the parties and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, refugees with complex
health conditions may not receive the folkTw-up medical care they need in a timely, culturally and
linguistically appropriate manner. The inability of refuges to access necessary health carecouid result
In a lack of understanding and rrianaging their health and health conditions.

. Area served; Statewide.

Source of Funds: Administration for Children and Families 100% CFDA# 93.576 FAIN#

In the event that the Federal (or Other) Funds become no. longer available. General Funds will
not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shibinette
Commissioner

Tht Dtporimtnlo! HtQlth and Human Strvicti'hi'usion U ioialu conintiintd'ev and faniUits
in providing opporliinUitt (or cilittni to acAiViv htnUh and hidependencf.
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH CENTER CONTRACT AMENDMENTS

SPY 2016 FINANCIAL DETAIL

06-9S-95-422010-79220000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS.

HNS; OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER. OFFICE OF HEALTH EQUITY, REFUGEE SERVICES
100% Federal Funds

Ascentria Community Services. Inc. Vendor #222201

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Total Contract

.  Amount .

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Proqram Services 42200012 $ 32.812.00

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 37.500.00

2023 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 S 37.500.00

2024 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 S 4.688.00
Sub Total $ . 112.500.00

international institute of New England, Inc. Vendor#177551

State Fiscal

Year
Class /Accourtt Class Title Job Number

Current Modified

Budget

2021 102/500731 Contracts for.Program Services 42200012 S 32.609.00

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services ,  42200012- $ .  37.500.00

2023 102/500731 •  Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 37,600.00

2024 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 4.891.00

Sub Total .  42200012 $ 112.500.00

Overall Totail $ 225.000.00

Attachmenl - Bureau of Behavioral Health

Finandal Detail

Page i of i



DocuSign Envelope ID: B9D3FD75-A6DE-45C8-A197-A5583680B9C7

FORM NUMBER P07(v«n)en 1VU72019)

Siibj€ct:_Ncw Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program (SS-202I-OHE-01-REFUG-01)

Noitce: This agrcemeni and a)) ofitsattechments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any infonnsllon thit-is private, contideniia) or proprteiary must
be clearly identified to the agency ond agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The Stole of New Hampshire'and the Contractor hereby mutuolly ogree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1 State Agency NariK

New Hampshire Depanment ofHeaUh and Human Services

1.2 Slate Agency Address.

129 Pieasent Street

Concord. NH 03301-3857

.1.3 Cortiractor Name

Ascemria Community Services, Inc

• 1.4 Coolracior Address ,

14 East Worcester Street Suite 300

Worcester. MA, 01604, USA

1.3 Contractor Phone .
' Number

(774)243-3900

1.6 Account Numbar

05-095-042-7922000-

42200012

1.7 Completion Date

August 14, 2023 ' * •

1.8 Price Limitation

$112,500

(

1.9 •-Cohtracling Officer for State Agency

Nathan D. White, Director

i.10 Stale Agency Telephone Number

(603) 271-9631 ' ' ^

"l.ll 'ContractorSignilujt . 1.12. Name and Title of Contmctcvr Signatory

■TimcHh.yJeUsitwie, CKicfOperatV^Officer
t.T3r Sialo^cncy,SigMtti?^'

3ln(H
M.I4 Name end Title of State Agency Signato^

1.15 Approval by iKeNiH. Oepanmemof Administration, DivisionofPersonncI Ci/'</pp/icdbfe> -• <
•  ' I

By: Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney Gmc.rai (Porm, Substa'nceand Execution) (i/appllcabU)

^
1.17 Af4>rovpybyt)jie Governor and Executive Council (ifappllcabfe)

OftC item number: G&C.Meeting Date:

Page 1 of4
Contractor initials
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Stale of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1
("Slate*'), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
("Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject .to the approval of the Oovemor and
Execoiive Council of the State of New Hampshire." if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the panics hereunder', shall-
become effective or) the dace the Oovemor and Executive

Council approve, this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case (he Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to'
the Effective Date shall be performed al the sole risk .of the
Contractor, end in the event that this Agreement doesnot become
cfTective, the Stale shall "have no liability i6 the Contractor,
including .without' limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any.costs Incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF ACREEfVIENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the Stale hereunder, including,
wiibout limitalion, the continuance of payments hereunder; are
comingcnl upon the availabiiiiy and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any stale or fcderal legislative.or'executive
action thai reduces,' eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scopie for, Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
pan. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
Stste shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement irrimediaiely upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall rtot be required to transfer funds from any other
account or sottrcc to (he Account identified in block 1.6 In the
event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.) The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
S.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the corhplcic

compensation to the Contrecior for the Services. The State shall
have no .liability to the Contractor other than the contnct price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under iNs Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or pemiitted by N.H. RSA 8.0:7
through RSA 80:7-c oranyother provision oHaw.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contraiy, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall (he total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed (he Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT.
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance-of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state.' county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, includmg, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all fcdenil executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
Stale or the United Slates issue'to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with ell applicable intellectual
properly laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not'
discriminate against .employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
oiHcntalion. or notlohal origin and will lake affirmaiive action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3, The Contracibr agr,ees to permit the Stjsie or United States
access lo.any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts'for
(he purpose of ascertaining compliance with ell rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own e.'tpensc provide all personnel
•necessary to perform (he Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in'the-.Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, -and shall be prtjperly licensed and
Otherwise authorized to do so.under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized, in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period.of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, .firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or oiTiclal, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or • perfonmance of'this Agreement'. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The CofitrBCting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's represcniaiive. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

Page 2 of 4
Contractor Initials

Date 3
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of tKe foUowing acK or omissions of (he
Conlraclor shall const iniic an event of default hercunder <"6 vent
0 f DefauJl");
8.1.! failure to perfonn the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
B.f.2 failure to submit any report required hereundcr; and/or
8.1.3 failure lo perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take anyone, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a writien notice specifying the Event of
OefauUand requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser speciOcelion of lime, thirty (30) days from the
date of (he notice; and if (he Event of Default is not llmely cured,
terminate this Agreement. efTcctivc two (2) days after giving the.
Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Defaull and suspending all payments to' be made urtder this
Agreement and ordering (hat the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period fiorn the dale of such'noiice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set-off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Defbult; aml/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Defaull, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both. •

8.3. No failure by the Stnic to enforce any provisions hereof after
.any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiverof the right of the State toenforcc each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further Of other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may. at its sole
discretion, lerminiatc the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days wrkten notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of (he Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the-
Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days af)er the date
of termination, a report ("Termination Reporl") describing in
deiail aD Setvices performed, end the contract price earned, to
end including the date of termination. The form, subject maner,
content, and number .of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to (hose of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition,at (he State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early lermination. develop and

Page?

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agfcemeni;

10. DATA/ACCESyCONFIDENTIALITV/

PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, (he word ."dais" shall mean all
information and things developed orobtaihed'duringthe
performance of. or acquired or developed by reason of, (his
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, chorts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, anaiysei. graphic
reprcsentations.compuler programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, ̂ d documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property vvhich has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the Slate, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.'
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 'A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior writien approval of (he State.

i 1. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the
performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officen, employees, agents or rttemben shall have authority to
bind the State or raceive any benefits, worlccrs' compensation or
other emoluments .provided by the Slate to its employees.

12. ASStGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise trarisfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior wTincn notice, which
shall be previdcd to the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the Stole. For purposes
of this paragraph,, a Change of Control, shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction Or series of related transactions in
which ti third porty, together with its affiliates,'becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (SOf't) or more of Ihe
voting shares Of similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) Ihe sale of al I or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior wrinen notice and consent of the State.
The State ts 'entitled to copies of all subcontracts end assignment
agreements end shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law."
the'Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, ftom end against any and all claims,
liabilitles and costs for any personal injury or property damages,'
patent or copyright infringement, oroiher claims asserted against
the State, Its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be .claimed to arise out of) the acts or omission of the
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Contracior, or subcontractors, including but not limited to tHe
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable Tor any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which Immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

}4'.l The Contractor' shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:

14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than S 1.000.000 per occurrence and S2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and •
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject 10 subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
iO%'of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shell be
on policy forms and endorserhents approved for use In the Slate
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the Slate of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified In block 1.9, or his or her successor, a ceniftcate($) of
insurar>ce for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Coniracior shell also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certiricate(s) of insurance
for a|l renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The cenificaie(5) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and'are incorporated herein by
reference,

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warranls that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 2S1-A f'tt'orkers'
Compcnsalion'J.
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to ihe'requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure end maintain,
payment of Workers* Compensation in connection ' with'
activities which the person proposes to undertake punuznl to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9. or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference, The State
shall . not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers" Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other pany
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office'addrcssed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4,herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only after approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to Slate law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpret^ and construed in accordance with the
laws of the Slate of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used.in this Agreement Is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be appli^ against or in .favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior.Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a-conflict
between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
Aj-and^or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control".

20.-THIRD PARTIES. .The parties hereto do not Intend to
benefit any.third parties and this Agreement shall'not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contoined therein'
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set fonh In the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction 10 be
contrary to any state or federal law, ihe remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

. 24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counteqparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hertof.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT A

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS

1. Revisions to Form P«37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3. Subparagraph 3.1, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is
amended as follows:

3.1. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreemenfto the contrary, and
subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive Council of the

. State'o'f New Hampshire as indicated in block 1.17, this Agreement, and
all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become effective on August
15,2020..^

1.2. Paragraph 3. Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to three (3) additional years
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
' services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.3. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracls, is amended by adding,
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor-and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreerrients with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed
and how corrective action shall be managed if the subcontractor's

. performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall manage the
subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and take corrective
action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with
a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify
the State of any inadequate subcontractor performance.

SS-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-01 ErNbH A ■ Revhions to Sland^ Corbacl Provision Contractor Inilitis
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New Hampshire Department of Heaith and Human Services
Now Hampshire Refugoe Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. statement of Work

1.1.The.Contractor shall provide services and activities that promote the health and
wellbeing of designated eligible refugees. Services shall inctude, but are not
limited to, medical and mental health case management, health orientations,
heaith education, and health provider education. Services will ensure that
refugees: (1) obtain needed health (including mental health) care beyond the
Initial health screening; and (2) gain the basic knowledge and sKllls they need to
navigate the U.S. health care system and to manage their own heatth and health
care independently. Services will help to increase refugee access to health care
and to reduce gaps in services.

1.2. The Contractor shall ensure services are delivered statewide with a focus on the
geographic areas of Concord, Manchester, and Nashua.

"  1.3.The Contractor shall designate a case manager to provide health (including
mentar health) case management services to ensure refugees with complex
health conditions obtain needed, health care beyond the. initial health exam,
Including appropriate health insurance.

1.4.The Contractor shall ensure case management services include, but are not
limited to:

1.4.1. Scheduling and coordinating medical and mental health appointments;

.  1.4.2. Accompanying clients to medical appointments;

1.4.3. Providing and facilitating the provision of transportation to and from the
appointments;

1.4.4. Ensuring appropriate interpreter services are available as necessary
during appointments; and

1.4.5. Assisting refugees with obtaining appropriate health Insurance. .

1.5.The Contractor shall ensure a uniform, continuous and timely transition of case
managernent services from the initial refugee health examination to all heeded
follow-up care beginning after the completion of the Initial refugee health
.examination and/or on day ninety one (91) of resettlement (whichever is sooner),
to ensure there are no gaps in services and continuity of care.

1.6. The Ck)ntractor shall schedule an initial dental appointment for all refugee children
(age 0-18) within six (6) months of arrival.

1.7.The Contractor shall conduct culturally and linguistically sensitive health,
orientations which shall include, but not be limited to the following topics:

. 1.7.1.. Navigating the U.S. health care system.

1.7.2, Health insurance, including Refugee Medical Assistance.

SS-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-01 Cootrador IftHiels
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Now Hsmpshim Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBITS.

1.7.3. Privacy and consent laws.

1.7.4. The right to language assistance in health care settings and the role of
interpreters. ' ^

1.7.5. Transpprtation options for medical appointments, including but not limited
to: '

• 1.7.5.1. Public transportation training: and •

1.7.5.2. Arranging Medicaid transportation.

1.7.6. Understanding types of health care providers including but not limited to:

1.7.6.1. Primary care providers:

1.7.6.2. Specialists; and

1.7.6.3. Pharmacists. .

1.7.7. Understanding types of health care (e.g., preventive, urgent, emergency),
and when, where and how to access each type.

1.7.8. Understanding availability of and when, where and how to access
mental/behavioral health services, including treatment for substance use
•disorders.

1.7.9. Scheduling, keeping and cancelling appointments.

1.7.10. What to bring to appointments:

1.7.11. Medication. Including but not liimrted to:

1.7.11.1. The difference between prescriptions and over-the-counter
'  medication;

'1.7.11.2, Refills;

1.7.11.3. Dosage instructions; and

1.7.11.4. Side effects.

1.8. The Contractor shall provide appropriate interpreter services and translated
materials for the health orientations.

1.9. the Contractor shall adapt the health orientation curriculum to accommodate the
needs , of new refugee populations, with approval from the State. Refugee
Program.

1.10. The Contractor, shall maintain documentation of individual refugees who have
received health orientation services, including but not Jimited to the following:

1.10.1- The individual clients participating in the health orientation;

1.10.2. The topic(s) of orientation completed by each participant;'

SS-2021.0H£^1-RePU&01 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B

1.11. The contractor shall conduct both group <defined as a minimum of two (2)
participants) and individual health orientations, including at least one home visit
to reinforce and clarify the information presented in the group setting, and to
address unique issues and.concerns.'

1.12. The Contractor shall provide, solely or in collaboration with other organizations,
at least six (6) group health education classes. The contractor shall:

1.12.1. Identify topics of concern in each of the various refugee populations and
prioritize the topics that are most urgent or relevant on an ongoing basis;

1.12.2. Invite and arrange for outside organizations to provide health education
classes on the identified topics that are within their expertise;

1.12.3. Schedule the presenters:

1.12;4. Ensure the provision of interpreter services; ,

1.12.5. Notify clients of dass schedules; •

1.^2.6. Health education session topics may include, but are not limited to:
1.12.6.1; Health insurance terms, coverage requirements, options and the

• enrollment process.

1.12.6.2. Disabilities, including but hot limited to autism.

1.12.6.3. Women's health, including but not limited to domestic violence
and reproductive health;

1.12.6.4. Men's health;

1.12.6.5. Emotional Wellness;

1.12.6.6. Lesbian, Gay. Bisexual, and Trahsgender (LGBT) health; ..

1.12.6.7. Oral health and hygiene;

1.12.6.8. Vision health;

1.12.6;9. Nutrition and benefits .of exercise: ■ '

1.12.6.10.Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV);

■  1.12.6.11 .Tuberculosis risk reduction;-

1.12.6.12.Fire safety.

1.12.7. The Contractor shall provide health education In a culturally and
-  linguistically appropriate manner.

1.12.8. The Contractor shall distribute satisfaction surveys at health education
sessions, to survey clients on the usefulness of the information,
presentation style, and other relevant information.

SS-202l.OHE^1-ReFUG-01 Conlractof Initials,
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B

1.13. The Cor^tractor shall infomi and coordinate community resources for the provision
■  of health care services not covered by Refugee Medical Assistance (RMA) or

other funding sources.

1.14. The Contractor shall support the provision of nonclinical interventions/such as
adjustment support groups, to promote refugee wellness and prevent suicide.

1.15. The Contractor shall participate in National Alliance on Mental Illness Mental
Health First Aide trainings and/or other similar professional development
opportunities, to inform practices.

1.16. The Contractor shall support and/or assist with periodic screening of refugees
for emotional distress using the Refugee Health Screener 15 (RHS-15).
communicate results, and rnake referrals to health care providerS:as needed.

1.17. The Contractor shall miaintain relationships with the health (including mental
health) providers within the refugee resettlement network through, outreach,
education and meetings. Areas of focus shall Include but are not limited to:

1.17.1. Refugee health needs and culture.

1.17.2. Barriers to care that may include but are not limited to language, cultural
. factors, and transportation issues.

1.17.3. Continued adherence to the COG Refugee Health Guidelines ifor the initial
domestic medical examination. " . -

1.17.4. National Standards for CLAS in health and healthcare.

1.18. The Contractor shall develop and foster relationships with a minimum of four (4)
health care (including mental health) providers who are not in the refugee
resettlement network through outreach, meetings and education.. Areas of focus
shall include, but not be limited to the following: ^

1.18.1. Refugee health needs and culture,

1.18.2. Barriers to care that .include, but are not limited to language and culture
barriers, and transportation issues.

1.18.3. COC Refugee Health Guidelines for the initial domestic medical
examination.

1.18.4. National Standards for CLAS in health and healthcare.

1.19. The Contractor shall provide education and training to refugees at various
stages of resettlement about the availability of health insurance through the
Marketplace and alternative sources. ■

1.20. The Contractor shall provide assistance with accessing, navigating and enrolling
in health insurance options through the Marketplace, expanded Medicaid or
other financial assistance options including but not limited to facilitating
applications.

SS-2021-OHE-O1-REFUO-01 „ Contractor Inilials,
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B

1.21. The Contractor shall provide planning and evaluation for Refugee Health
Promotion Program (RHPP), including but not limited to the following:

1;21.1. Develop and collect linguistically appropriate surveys/questionnaires that
are built into health sessions and trainings.

1.21.2. Track the following: ^
1.21.2.1. Number of referrals made;

1.21.2.2. .Number of training sessions and participants;

1.21.2.3. Number of consultations or point of contact with providers;
and

1.21.2.4. Number of meetings and training sessions.

1.21.3. Feedback with health service providers to learn how the coordination is
working and make adjustments as.necessary.

1.21.4. Internal feedback with staff, particularly case managers>(and other case
management specialists) to evaluate the relevance of the orientations to
implement necessa/V changes leading to anticipated improvements.

1.22. The Contractor shall communicate any health screening results received,
which may be conducted by the Contractor.or by a third parly, concerning a
client, to medical providers as needed.

1.23. The Contractor shall facilitate referrals to behavioral health providers, as
needed.

1.24. The Contractor shall maintain documentation of the following:

1.24.1. Overall number of refugees resettled in the reporting period.

1.24.2.' Number of initial domestic health examinations completed within thirty.(30).
sixty (60) and ninety (90) days of arrival.

1.24.3. Number of refugees receiving. health and/or mental health case
management services, to address complex health conditions beyond the
initial domestic health examinatbn.

1.24.4. The demographics of the refugees served, including gender, age, primary
language, and country fled.

1.24.5. Number of refugees referred for follow-up services related to Dental
Issues, Emergency Issues (ER), Tuberculosis, HIV. Mental Health,
Infectious .Disease, Physical. Therapy, Prenatal Care, Hearing Issues,
Vision Issues, and other conditions identified by the NH State Refugee
Health Coordinator.

1.24.6. Number of refugees assisted in obtaining appropriate health insurance -
both upon arrival, and at the lime of transition' off Refugee- Medical
Assistance.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Senrlces
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B

1.25. The Contractor shall Identify the primary health related issues of concern in
each of the various refugee communities. Concerns may include but are not
limited to diabetes, hypertension, mental health and/or oral health concerns.

1.26. The Coritractor shall provide all required reporting to the Department within
fifteen (15) days following the completion of the reporting period.

1.27. The Contractor shall provide semi-annual reporting to the Department within
thirty (30) days following the completion of the.reporting period.

1.28. The Contractor shall provide all required reporting at in-person meetings as
.requested by the Department. • '

V 1.29. The Contractor shall have the following staff:

1.29.1. One (1) Administrator; and

1.29.2. One (1) Health Case Manager.

1.30. The Contractor shall participate in.trainings in order tp understand health
Insurance coverage and enrollment requirements on both the state and federal

,  level.

2. Reporlin^ Requirements

2.1. The Contractor shall submit monthly reports to the Department within thirty
(30) days following the end of the reporting period, to include but not limited
to:

2.1.1. Numberarrivals by gender and Immigration status. ,

2.1.2. Number receiving tuberculosis screening within the following time periods:

2.1.2.1. Thirty (30) days ofarrival; .,

2.1.2.2. Thirty (30) to ninety (90) days of arrival: and

2.1.2.3. Ninety (90) days or more.

2.1.3. Number receiving initial health exam within the following time periods:

2.1.3.1. Thirty (30) days of arrival!;

2.1.3.2. Thirty. (30) to ninety (90) days of arrival; and

,2.1.3.3. Ninety (90) days or more.

2.1.4. Number of children age six (6) months to sixteen (16) years of age that,
have been screened for lead.

2.1.5. Number of children scheduled for first derital appointment within six (6)
months of arrival.

2.1.6. Number of clients referred,to the following;

2.1.6.1. Primary care provider:

2.1.6.2. Dental care provider;

SS-2021.-OHE-01-REFUG-01 Contractor Inilials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee HeaUh Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B

2.1.6.3. Emergency room;

2.1.6.4. Mental health provider;

2.1.6.5. Infectious disease specialist;

2.1.6.6. Vision care provider;

2.1.6.7. Hearing care provider;

2.1.6.8. Pre-natal care provider; and •

2.1.6.9. Other specialists.

2.1.7. Number of clients receiving services by country of origin.

2.1.8. Numt)er of clients receiving health case managernent services.

2.1.9. Number receiving mental health case management services.

2.1.10. Number clients participating in an adjustment support group.

2.1.11. Numl)er clients receiving initial health orientation and topic(s) covered.-

2.1.12. Number clients receiving health education and topic(s) covered.

2.1.13. Number of service providers receiving training.

2.1.14. Number of health case manager trainings and topic(s)/

2.2. 'The. Contractor shall submit semi-annual reports to the Department within,,
thirty (30) days following the period completion, and as required by grantor.

2.3. The Contractor shall submit a final program report to the Department within
thirty (30) days prior to the completion of the contract period.

3. Porformance Measures

3;i. ..the Contractor shall ensure the following performance indicators are achieved
annually and monitored on a monthly basis to measure the effectiveness of
the agreement;

3.1.1. 100% of all health-related orientations and workshops/trainings shall be
provided throughput the project period, as necessaly.

3.1.2. 100% of all newly arrived refugees and those who have been in the United
States,two (2) years or less shall be prioritized.

3.1.3. 1,00% of all written materials and resources produced shall be identified
and prioritized for translation as applicable.

3.1.4. 100% of all interpreter services shall be coordinated consistently and
V  regularly throughout the project peripd. .

3.1.5. 100% of all refugees with acute or chronic health conditions who require
care beyond the initial medical examination shall receive case
managemerit, Including butnot lirtiited to:

SS.2021-OHE-01.REFUG-01 Contractor Initials,
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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EXHIBIT B

3.1.5.1. Scheduling and coordinating medical appointments;

3.1.5.2. Transportation services; and

3.1.5.3. Interpretation services.

3.1.6. 80% of refugees shall demonstrate increased knowledge about health,
insurance requirements including how. when and where to enroll in health^
Insurance.

3.1.7. 80% of adults will demonstrate increased knowledge about accessing and
navigating US Health system.

3.1.8. 80% of adults will know how to make and keep health appointments.

3.1.9. 80% of adults will know how to use public. Medicald and/or appropriate
transportation to get to medical appointments.

3.1.10. 80% of adults will demonstrate increased knowledge of at least one health
topic:

3.1.11. 100%.of clients with health needs beyond initial exam will be scheduled for
follow-up care."

3.1.12. 1.00% of arrivals with mental health needs will be scheduled for
..appointment within'60 days of arrival.

3.1.13. A minimum of four (4) new relationships with providers outside of the
refugee resettlement network shall be established during each annual
project period.

3.1.14. A minimum of;four (4) meetings with providers within the refugee
resettlement network shall take.place during each annual project period.

3.2. The Contractor shall measure program outputs through the following which shall
^  include but not be limited to:

3.2.1. Number and percentage of new refugees' attending group health
orientations, and the topics dompieted during each session;

3.2.2. Number of percentage of new refugees' receiving a health home visit.

- 3.2.3. Number of referrals to health, mental and behavioral health or other
services.

3.3. The Contractor shall measure the health literacy among refugees and the
improvement of their understanding of their health and of the American heaUh
system by utilizing a simple questionnaire offered at each workshop and
orientation.

3.4.The Contractor'shall track the number of individuals participating in and
•completing health education sessions, as well as the topics covered in each
session.

SS-2021-OHE.01-REFU&01 ' Contractor Initials
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3.5. The Contractor shall track the number and percentage of refugees receiving
■health and mental health case management services, including:

3.5.1. Refugee demographics.
3.6. The Contractor shall track the number of health providers In the refugee

resettlement network-receiving educationnraining.

3.6.1. The Contractor shall track the numbef of health providers outside the
refugee resettlement network receiving education/training.

3.7. . The Contractor shall measure the effectiveness of support sen/ices provided to
refugees to increase their access to appropriate health insurance by tracking
the number and percentage of refugees accessing affordable health insurance
upon arrival and those educated about and re/erred for assistance In obtaining
appropriate health insurance when transilioning off Refugee Medical
Assistance.

3.8. The Contractor shall work collaboratively with the Department and other key
stakeholders to adapt any performance targets if necessary.

'3.9.' The Contractor shall develop and submit a corrective action plan, to the
Department for any perfoimance measure that was not achieved.

3'rtO. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract management. Improve results, and adjust program delivery,
and policy based on successful outcomes.

3.11. The Contractor may be required to provide other key' data and metrics to the
Department, irrcludi ng client-level demographic, performance, and service data.-

3.12. Where applicable, the Contractor shall collect and share data with the
,  Department in a formal specified by the Department.

4. Additional Terms
4.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes ^

4.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal legislation
or court orders may have an impact on the Services described herein, the.
State has the right to rnodify Service priorities and expenditure"
requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

4.2. Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services (CLAS)
4.2,1. The Corilraclor shall submit and comply with a detailed description of the

language assistance services they will provide to persons with limited
English proficiency and/or hearing Impairment to ensure meaningful
access to their prograrhs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

SS-2021-OHB-01-REFU0^1
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A .3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

4.3.1. ■ All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the services
of the Contract shall include the following statement. "The preparation of
this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract .with the Slate
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Sen/ices. with funds
provided in part by the Stale of New Hampshire and/or such other funding
sources as were available or required, e.g., the United States Department
of Health and Human Services."

.4.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the contract shall have prior
approval from the Department before printing, production, distribution or.
use.

4.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all original
materials produced, including, but not limited to;'

4.3.3.1. Brochures.

4.3.3.2. Resource directories.

4.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

4.3.3.4. • Posters.

4.3.3.5. Reports.

4.3.4. The Contractor shall hot reproduce any materials produced under the
contract without prior written approval from the Department.

4.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

4.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor shall
comply with al! laws, orders and regulations offederal, state, county and
municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers

■  pursuant to laws,which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor
with respect to the operation of the facility or,the provision of the iservlces
at such facility. If any goverr^menta! license or permit shall be required for
the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times
comply with the terms and conditions of each such license or permit. In
connection with- the foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby
covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities
shall comply with all rules, orders, regulations.'and requirements of the
State Office of the Fire Marsha) and the local fire proteqlion agency, and
shall be In conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

SS-2021-OHE-OV.REFUG-01 Contrertoflnillala
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4.5. Eligibility Determinations

4.5.1. If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of .individuals such
eligibility determination 'shall be made in accordance with applicable,
federal and state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and
procedures.

4.5.2!- Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by the
Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times
as are prescribed by the Department. . .

4.5.3. In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the
Contractor shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services
hereunder, which file shall include all mfomiation necessary to support an
eligibility determination and such other information as the Department
requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with^all forms and

•  documentation regarding eligibility determinations that the Department
.. may request or require.

4.5.4. The Corilractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder. as
well as individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing
regarding that determination. The Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out an
application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be Inforrhed
of hi^/her right to a fair hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Recordls

5.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

5.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs-and pther expenses incurred by the.
Contractor In the performance of the Contract, and all income received or
collected, by the Contractor.

5.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting procedures
'  and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and

expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and to Include,
without Timitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence .of
costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for
materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards,
payrolls, and other records requested or required by the Department.

.5.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records shall include all records of application and eligibility
(including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient),
records regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to
the Department to obtain payment for such services.

5.2. During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the

SS-2021:OHE-Ol-REFUG-Ol Contractor Initials
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Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination,
excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of
the price limitation hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties
hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the Contract are to be
performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the
termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon
review of the Final Expenditure Report the Departrnent shall disallow any
expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Departmient shall
retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are
disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

6. Termination Report/Transition Plan

6.1. In the event of early termination of the Agreement, the Contractor shall, within
15 days of notice of early termination, develop and submit to the State a
Transition Plan for sen/ices under the Agreement, including but not limited to,
identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services under the
Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

6.2. The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide
detailed information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to.
any infonnation or data requested by the State related to the termination of the
Agreerrient and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing communication and
revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

6.3.' In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to
clients receiving services under the Agreement are transitioned to having
services delivered by another entity including contracted providers or the State,
the Contractor shall provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of services in
the Transition Plan.

6.4. The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected
;■ Individuals about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed

communications in its Transition Plan submitted to the State as described
above. 'i ^

7. Exhibits Incorporated

7.1. All Exhibits D through H and J are attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

•  7.2. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in compliance
■  with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Inforrhation

(Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Paris 160 and 164) under the Health Insurance Portability
and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in accordance with the attached
Exhibit 1. Business Associate Agreement, which has been executisd by the parties

SS-2021-OHe-01..REFUGi01 Conlraclor Initials
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and is incorporated by reference herein.

7.3. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement In
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements,
which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

SS-2021-OHe-01-REFUG-0t .• Comrador Initials
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PavmentTerms

1. This Agreement is funded with federal funds.

2. Payn^nt shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred
In the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved
line Item, as specified In Exhibits (D-1. Budget through Exhibit C-4, Budget.

3. The Contractor shall submit an Invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the
twentieth (20th) working day of the fotlowing month, which idehtrfies and requests
reimbursement for authorired expenses incurred in the prior month. The
Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, dated and. returned to the

. Department in order to initiate payment..

4. in lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an.electronic signature and
emailed to laura.mcglashan@dhhs.nh.gov. or Invoices rhay be mailed to;

■ Laura McGlashan, NH ̂tate Refugee Health Coordinator
Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Health Equity
97 Pleasant Street. Thayer Building
Concord. NH 03301 .

(603)-271.2688

5. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt
of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient
funds are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General Provisions Form
Number P-37 of this Agreement.

6. The final invoice shall be due to the State nc^later than forty (40) days after the
contract completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7
Completion Date.

7. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit 8, Scope of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.

8. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in
whole or in part in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions of
Exhibit B, Scope of Services.

9. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
fuhding under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or In part, in the event

,  of non-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to
the services provided, or if the said services or products have not been
satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
agreement.

Asc^ntn'a Community Services. Inc. ExMbdC Coniraclor iniital».
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10. Notwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions Fonm P-37, changes
■  limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

11. Audits

11.1, The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department
if any of the following conditions exist:

■  11.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR
Part 200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

11.1.2. Condition s - The Contractor Is subject to audit pursuant to
the requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to
charitable organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or
more.

1'1.1.3. Condition C ̂  The Contractor is a public company and
required by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC)
regulahons to submit an annual financial-audit.

. 11.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an Independent Certified Public Accountant (CpA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted In accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part
200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost
Pfiriclples, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

11.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an Independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

•  11.4. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor-shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department ajl payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

Ascontfia Community Services, Inc. Exhibit C Contraclof wtiah,
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG^REE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identlfjed in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provlsiohs of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Wort^place Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D: 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.): and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRAfiJTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

This certificalion is required by the regulations Implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D: 41 U.S.C. 701 el seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21661-21691), and require cerltficabon by grantees (and by inference,,sub-grantees and sub
contractors). prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a.grantee (and by inference; sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one'certification to the Department iri each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a .
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send It to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against eniployees for violation of such
prohibition;

;  1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace:
1.2.2.. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. .The penalties that may be imposed'upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace:
1.3. Making It a requirement that each employee to be engaged In the performance of the grant be

> given a copyof the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer In writing of his or her conviction fore violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring In the workplace no later than Trve calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position tKle. to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

ExNbtl D-. Certification regarding Drug Pr«e Vendor inillaJs'l
Workplace Requlrementt
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has designated a central point for the recent of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(5) of each effected grant;

1.6. ■ Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who" is so convicled.
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such omptoyee to participate satisfactorily In a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law'entorcement. or other appropiiate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implernentation of paragraphs 1.1.1.2.1.3,1.4. 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may Insert In the space provided below the silefs) for the 'performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state. 2ip c<^) (list each localioo)

Chock □ if there are workplaces on file lhai are not identified here.

Vendor Nams:

Pat/ ! Ne^r-f,^0> ̂

ExtiiM D - Cttiificstioft ragardlng Drug Froo Vendor Initiali;
Workptace Requirements

cuoHKSni07t) PegeZofJ ' Dale



DocuSign Envelope ID; B9D3FD75-A6DE-45C8-A197-A5583680B9C7

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
ExhibitE

ceRTlFlCAJIOr^ PEGARDINGLOBBYINO

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisbns agrees to comply with the provisione of
Section 319 oif Public Law 10M2.1. Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contraclor'a roprescntaUve, as idenlifjed in Sections 1.11
and 1.-12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTfi^ENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicete applicable program covered):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Faniilies under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Block.Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX'
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersign^ certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, thel:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or "attempting to Influence an officer oremployee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an'officeror employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress In
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperatfve agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
"influencing or attempting to influence ari officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress.-
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-

■  contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with Its instructions, attached and Identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included m the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontrects. sub-grants, and contracle under grants,
loans, and cooperativo agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This ceirtificalion is a material reprasenlatlon of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered Into. Submission of this certification Is "a prerequisite for "rnaklng or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31. U.S. Code." Any person who fails to file the required ...
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than S|0,000 and not more than 3100,000 for
each such failure.

VendorName: e

Date I Nam^K^«nirH^y i- tooe
O-fh'cer

ExhlbttE-Cttniflutlon Regarding LoOPylng vendor Initials.
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CERTiFICATiON REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the Preskjenl. Executive Order 12S49 end 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Dcbarmenl,
Suspension, arvj Other Responsibility Matters, end further agrees to have'the Contractor's -
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
CertiftcQtion:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERnFlCATlON
1. • By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the

certrficailon aet out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below wti) not necessarily result In denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If neces&ary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certificetlon. The certification or explanation will tw
considered in connection with (he NH Department of Health and Human Services' (OHHS)
determination whether to enter into this trarisaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or en explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transacilbn.

3. The certlficalion in this clause Is a material,rapmsentation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when OHHS determined to enter Into this transaction. If H is later determined that the prospiective
primary participant kncwingty rendered an erroneous certification, In addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government. OHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective pdmaiy participant shall provide Immediate written notice to (he OHHS agency to
T.  ■■ whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns

that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.'

5. The terms "covered transaction,* "debarred,* "suspended." "ineligibla,* "lower tier coverisd
y. l/ansaction," "participant.* *person.' "primary covered transaction," •principal." •proposal,"-end

*voluntarPy excluded.* as used In this clause, have the meanings set out In the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549; 45 CFR Part 76. See the •
attached definhlons.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed .cove red transaction be enlorod Into, K shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared Ineligible, or voluntarly excluded
Uom participation In this covered transaction, unless authonxed by OHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal.lhat it will Include the
dause titled "Certification Regarding Oebarment, Suspension, ineligibiiity and Votunta^ Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,* provided by OHHS, without modiftcalion, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lo^rer tier covered Iransecbons.

6. participant in a covered transactlqnmay rely upon a certffrcaiion of e prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that It Is not debarred, suspended. Ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless It knows that the certification is erroneous; A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which It determines (he eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may. but is not required to, ch«k the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing-contained in the foregojr>g shai) be construed to require establishment of a-system of records
'In order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

ExhUl r - Certlficalion negerdmg Oebsrmenl. Scapenslon Vendor Milats
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inrormation of a participant Is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person In the ordinary course of business dealings.^

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a tower tier covered transaction vrilh a person who Is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this trar>saction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that It and its

principals; ,
11.1. are not pTeseritly debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or pe^orming a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction: yiolation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the'offenses enumerated In paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

. 11.4. have not wilhin a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shad attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge.and belief that it and its principals;
13.1. are not presently debarred', suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant Is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to th« proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that H will
include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension. Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions.* without m^ification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Vendor Name; C(r»iniun\V^ S«fviCfS ,3jnc

Date ^
Title OPK'ttr

Exhibit F - Ceninutlon Rogaraing Debarment. Suspension Vendor inlUels.
,  • ' And Other Responsibility Matlea
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CERTIPICATION OF COMPUANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAIN! NG TO
FEDERAL NONDtSCRIf^lWATIONrgOUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-eASED 0RGANi2ATI0NS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

'

The Vendor tdentified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
fepresentatlvc as identified fn Socllons 1.1T end 1.l2of the General Provisions, to execute the following .
certification:

Vendor will comply, end will require any s^grantess or subcontractors to comply, wllh any applicable
federal nondiscrlmination requirements, which may include: - '

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Ad of i960 (42 U.S.C. Section 3709d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under (his statute from'dischminating, either in employment practices or in
(he deliver of services or benefrts. on the basis of race, color, religlort. netiohal ongin. and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b}) which adapts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the S^e Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited From discriminating, eilhef In employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, r^ational origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirementa;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1984 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

. the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). wt^ich prohibits recipients of Federal financial
"assistance from discriminating on the basis of disabiiily. in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

• (he Amaricens with Disabilities Ad of 1990 (42 U.S.C. SKtions 12131-34). which prohibits
discrimination and'erisuros equal opportunity for persons w^h disabilities in employment, State end local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

-the Education Amendrnenls of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,.16$3,1685-86). which prohibiis
discrlminetibn on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- tha Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07). which prohibits discrlminalion on the
basis of age in programs or aciivities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not Include
emptoyment drscriminallon;

• 28 C.F.R, pt. '31 (U.S. Oepertment of Justice Regulstloris - OJ JDP Grent Programs): 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Departmeni of Justice Regulations - Nondiscriminalion; Equal Employment Opportuhlty; Policies
end Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations);.Executive Order No. 13559. which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and netghterhood organizations;

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Dopartmenl of Justice Regulations - EqualTrealmenl for Faith-Based
Organizatiorw); and Whlstieblower protections 41 U.S.C.'^712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enac!^ January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistlebtower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing acti^Iies in connection wfth federal grants and contracts.

The cdrtlficate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debanment..

ej4ii&iio
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In the event a Federal or Stale court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 ar^ 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

r. By signing and submitting this proposal (conlract) the Vendor agrees to compiy wi^ the provisions •
indicated above.

Vendor Name;

Date* Narrie;

P®: CW.f? Oc

EiNbU G .
Vendor'inilisb

CarMtfwi pwqprtng e ftdmM »enaewWv of Fii«<4o«M
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law •103-227. Part 0 • Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted In any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity arnj used routinely or regularty for the provision of health, day care, education.
or library services to children under the age of 16. if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for-inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the taw may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up tp
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By Signing end submitting this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227. Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Vendor Name: ftscctiV. c. SecuiUi.X'AC,

Date NameXTi>n«Shv{
Til CK p  fftctr

Exhibit H • Certification Regarding vendor Initial).
• EnviionmcniaJ Tobacco Smoke . v iajli
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITy ACT
' BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and.
with the Starwiards for Privacy and Security of Individually IdenUfiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health Information under this Agreement and "Covered
ErStity' shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Deflnltlona. ^

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' in section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate* has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
. of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered EntlW has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 of Tide 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Desionated Record Set' shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
ln45CFR Section 164.501, •

e. "Data Aooreoaiion" shall have the same meanirig as the term 'data aggregation' in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Qoerations' shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operations'"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECHAcr means the Health Information Technology for Econorhic and Clinical Health
Act. TitleXIfl. Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health insurance Portability and Accouritability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identiriable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" In 45 CFR Section 160.103
anid'shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFRSectlon 164.50l(g).

J. 'Privacy R^le' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Pmigcted Heahh Information" shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected health
information" In 45 CFR Section 160.103; limited to the Information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/20U E*hI6UI !
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I. "Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term 'required by law" In 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Proteclloii of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart 0. and amendments thereto.

0, "Unsecured Protected Heahh information' means protected health information that Is not •.
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and |s developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute. . '

p. Other Definitions • All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160," 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.^

(2) Business Associate Use and DIaelosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information {PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services oullihed under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate. Iricluding but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use. di^lose, maintain or transmit

•  PHI in ehy manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I. ■ For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate:
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Businiess Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (1)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which It was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business '
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the- confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent It has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it Is required by law. without first notifying '
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

J/20U ExWtl Cootfadof Ifliliab
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. : If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in'violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Oh||oatlona and Activities of

a. • The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health-information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured'
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an iinpact on the
protected health Information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited-to-

' 0 The nature and extent of the protected health information Involved. Including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of. re-identification;'

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health Information or to whom the
disclosure was. made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed .
o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment In writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. ' The Business Associate shall comply wHh all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliarice with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates .that receive, use or have
access to PH! under the Agreement, to agree in wrtting to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3.(1). the Covered Entity
shall be consld.ered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who vtnl) be receiving PHI

3/2014 Exhitiil Con{r»cto< initials.
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
.business associates who shad be governed by standard Paragraph ̂ 13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available dunng normal business hours at its offices ali
records! books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine

■ Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to rrieet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 154.524.

h. • Within ten (10) business days of.receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record aliout an Individual contained in a Designated Record
Set. the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for ,
amendment and incorporate any such amerxlrnent to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164,526.

}. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such "disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHl in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of rer^iving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI. Business"Associate shall make available-
to Covered Entity such Information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill Its obligalions
to provide.an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to. amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding-to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I.. Within ten (10) business days of termination of 'the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate In connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or .
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHi to those
purposes that make the return or destruction Infeaslble. for so long as Business

3/2014 ExNbtM ContTfidor lniU«)s.
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) ObUnatlons of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate .of any changes or limitatlon(s) in its
' Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in. or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered.Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(B) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either imrriediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entit/ If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. ' Definitions and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein.
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time, to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to Include this Exhibit I. to

• a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or .as
amended.

b. Amendn^ent. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as Is.
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as Is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. • Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with, respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity In the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA.'the Privacy and Security Rule.

3/20U CxMUn Contrector NUftb
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SeoreQation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit l or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or •
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement In section (3) I. the
defense and Indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Depailf^nt of Health end Human.Seryices

The State

SWIStur^ of Authorized Representative

iame of AuthorlzecmeprName of Authorlze>d/Representative

Tide of Authorized Represenlabve

^  i
Date

flsc€AVic^ Ctmnnnon\iv| rerv/iccJi
Name of the Contractor

thorized Representativeature o

^ofizeName of AuthoTized Representative

Chitf OpiirQWi Officer .
Title of Authorized Representative

Date

I I *1
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CgRTiFICATiON REQARDINQ THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABIUrTY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATAI COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accounlabillty and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of Individual
Federal grants equal to or greater then $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010. to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated firet-tier sub<grant& of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the ONvard is subject to the FFATA reporting raquirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Comperisatlon Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award
3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS 0)
10. Total compensation arid names of the top five executives If:

10.1. Mora than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation Information Is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must subniit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days. In which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3,of the. General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109*282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information); end further agrees
to have the Contractor's re^esentative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certificstion:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information es outlined above to the NH
Department of Hulth end Human Services and to comply with ail applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act

Contractor Name: flscenVia Se/vifeS.IToc,

Date .

ill
<rat\ rift
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New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services
Exhibit J .

FORM A

As the Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the Generel Pfovlsbns. I certify that the responses to the .
below listed questions sie true and accurate.

1 ;• The DUNS number for your entity is;

2. In your busmess or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual.gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants.-sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements: and (2) $25,000,000 or more In annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
coo^rative agreements?

I NO YES

If the answer to #2 above Is NO. stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, ptease answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through penodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78"m(a). 7e^d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to <13 at>oye is YES. stop here

'  If the answer to #3 above is NO. please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of (he five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as f^lows:

Nam.e:

Name;^

Name:

Name;

Name:

A/nount:

Amount:

Amount

Amount

Amount

cu/DHH&iiiari}

Exhltrft J - Ctfrtlfic«t>on Rsgtrdjng tho F«4fr«l Funding
AccdunUUIify AivtTranspsfDncyAct (FFATA) CompQancc

PsgsZctZ
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N«w Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

OHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may t>e reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, .unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally Identifiable
Information, whether physical or electronic.- With regard to Protected Health
Information." Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. 'Computer Security Incident" shall have the wnrw meaning "Corhputer Security'
• ■ Incident* in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. D^artment "
of Commerce.

3. 'Conridentla! Information" or "Confidential Data" means ail confidential Information
' disclosed by one parly to the other such as at! medical,' health, financial, public

assistance benefits and personal infonmation including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information' and

■ Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and

•  Human Services (OHHS) or accessed In the course of perfor'ming contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection; and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, bu.t is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Persona! Information (PI). Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTl),.Socla! Security Numbers (SSN).
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential Information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subwntractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incidenf" means an act that potentially violates an explicil or implied security policy,'
which Includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or Its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software'characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

vs. Last update t(V0e/18 Ext>ibil K Conb&cior Initials
OHHS Intonhatioo
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network' means any Inetwork or segment of a network that Is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (desjgn^. tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
networit and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential pHHS data.

8. 'Personal Information" (or 'PI") means information which can tie used to distinguish
or trace an individual's Identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 369-C;19. blometric records, etc..
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which Is linked
or linkable to a specific Individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden'

'  . name. etc.

■  9.' "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identmabte Health
information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United

•  , States Department of Health and Human Services.

■  10. 'Protected Health Information" (or 'PHI") has the same meaning as provided In the
definition of "Protected Health Information" In the HIPAA Prlvacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §"
160.103.

11. "Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information'at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart'C, and amendments
thereto.

12. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that Is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a slandards.developing'Organization,that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute. .

I. RESPONSIBIUTIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

r A. Business Use and Disclosure Of Confidential lrifqrTnation.

1. The Contractor must not use. disclose, .maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
Including but riot limited to all Its directors, officers.'employees and agente, must not-
use. disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that .would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2, The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information In response to a

vs. LasI update 1CV09ri8 EjiNWlK Contracloflnlllats
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that it Is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions end must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed.to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be-used for
any other purposes that are not Indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant "access to'the'data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. .If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knovvledgeable In cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. 'End User may hot use computer disks
or portat)]e storage devices, such as a thumb'drlve. as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email Is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit. Confidential
X Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
"  secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

. 6. Ground Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
•. mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

vs.LastupOaie flV08/ld Ei^bllK Contr«ctorlnkie)a.
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

' wireless networlt. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network .{VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information vnll be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If,
End User is erhploying an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will
stAJCture the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24.hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If-End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, ail
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS ,

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such lime,^ the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form" it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parlies must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected In
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requlremenf'^all also apply in the Implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations. •

2. The Contractor agrees to- ensure proper security monitoring, capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems

j  and/or Deparlment confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain ell electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

6. The Contractor agrees. Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and.
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anll-vlral, antl-
hacker, anti-spam, enti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a

vs. Last ̂ xJate 10/09/18 K Cofltraclof Inltlaia
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whole, must have aggressive Intrusion-detedlon and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures Its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidenlial Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor wi|l maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and pr disaster
recovery operations. Wlien ho longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanillzalibn, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for exarhpto.
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88. Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization. National Institute of Standards and Technology, U, S.
Department of Comrherce. The Contractor will document and certify In writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to ther.Department
upon request. The v^itten certification will iriclude all details necessary to.
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validate. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements' will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the lermlnatiori of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data

'  by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files,, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain. proper security controls to protect Department
confidenlial Information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored In the delivery
of contracted services.

.2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information llfecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use. storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Oeparlment confidential Information
where applicable. x-

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems ahd/or
Department conHdential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a

- program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and. computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system{s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any appliciable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

6. If the Department determines the-Contractor is a Business Associate pursuanf to 45
. CFR 160.103. the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement: The sunrey vwli be completed
annually, or an alternate tiriie frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the-event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage, or loss resulting from the breach..

'• • The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but" not limited to; credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential. Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that Is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy-Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § SS28), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security-requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Informialion Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at htlps://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process., The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any Slate of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those Authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

-• j

16. The Contractor must ensure that ail End Users;

comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

safeguard this information at all times.

ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected. ,

send emails containing Confidential Information only- if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

a.

b.

c.

d.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidentlai information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.). .

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Dala, including any
derivatrve files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,

' such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances Involved.

I. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with er^yone. End Users will keep their credential information secure,
this applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
e third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End" Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor cornpliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and swurity requirements provided "in herein. HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor rnust notify the State's Privacy. Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented' Incident Handling and Breach. Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to. arid
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:"

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine If personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents'as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5, Determine whether Breach notification is required, and. if so, Identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that Implicate Pi must be addressed and reported, as
applicable. In accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrlvacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.90v

B. DHHS Security Officer

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This Amendment to the Refugee Health Promotion Program contract is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and International
Institute of New England, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on May 6, 2020, Item #15, as amended on December 18, 2020, Item #7, and as amended on May 4, 2022,
item #7, the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified
in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17 and Exhibit A, Revisions to
Standard Contract Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties and
approval from the Govemor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services: and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, Price Limitation, Block 1.8, to read:

$299,446.50

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Robert W. Moore, Director.

3. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 2, to read:

2. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with approved line item, as
specified in Exhibit C-1, Budget through Exhibit C-12, Budget - Amendment #3.

4. Add Exhibit C-11, Budget, Amendment #3, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

5. Add Exhibit C-12, Budget- Amendment #3, Exhibit C, which is attached hereto and incorporated
by reference herein.

..4

International Institute of New England, Inc. A-S-1.3
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

1/6/2023

Date

-OocuSlgned by:

ft.
—a*t:^7t:ooctM9»r

Name* Ann >IV Tanary
Title: Associate commissioner

12/27/2022

Date

International Institute of New England, Inc.

DocuSIgncd by:

Thielman

Title: President and CEO

International Institute of New Englarid, Inc.

SS-2021 -OHE-OI-REFUG-02-A03

A-S-1.2
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

1/9/2023

■Doc^Slgnad by:—OocuSlgMd by;

4

Name:
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: - . (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

International Institute of New England, Inc. A-S-1.2
SS-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-02-A03 Page 3 of 3
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Exhibit C-11 Budget Sheet SS-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-02-A03

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Complete one budget form for each 'judget period.

International Institute of New England, Inc.Contractor Name:

Budget Request for: Refugee Health Promotion
Budget Period SPY 2023 Exhibit C11

Indirect Cost Rate fif applicable) 26.60%

'^^.RrogramiOost >. Fuhded|by;brtHS/^ ''y'

1. Salary & Wages $15,795

2. Fringe Benefits .  $3,633

3. Consultants $0

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR
200.1 and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

.  $0

5.fa) Supplies - Educational $0

5.(b) Supplies - Lab $0

S.fc) Supplies - Pharmacy
$0

5.(d) Supplies - Medical
$0

5.(e) Supplies Office $0

6. Travel $0

7. Software $0

8 (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications $0

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $0

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)
Other' interpretation $2,000

Other - occupancy $868

Other - direct medical assistance $7,530

' Other- direct transportation asslstarice $3,122

9. Subreclpient Confracfs ■  $0

Total Direct Costs
$32,947

Total Indirect Costs $5,930

TOTAL $38,877

Oil
Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initials.

Date 6.
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Exhibit C-11 Budget Sheet SS-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-02-A03

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Complete one budget form for each budget period.

International Institute of New England, Inc.Contractor Name:

Budget Request for: Refugee Health Promotion

Budget Period SPY 2024 Exhibit C12
Indirect Cost Rale (if applicable) 26.60%

1. Salary & Wages $5,265

2.. Fringe Benefits S1.211

3. Consultants $0

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR
200.1 and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$0

-

5.(a) Supplies - Educational $0

5.(b) Supplies-Lab $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy .  , $0

5.{d) Supplies - Ivledical $0

5.(e) Supplies Office $0

6. Travel $0

7. Software $0

'  •

8, (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications •  $0

8. (b) Other - Education and Training .$0

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)

Other- interpretation $400

Other - occupancy $289

Other - direct medical assistance $2,500

Other- direct transportation assistance $1,386

9. Subrecipient Contracts $0

Total Direct Costs $11,051

Total Indirect Costs $1,906

TOTAL $12,957

Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initials

Date U

a
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Sccretar>' of State of the Stale of New l lampshirc, do hereby certify that INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE

OE NEW ENGLAND, INC. is a Massachusetts Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on

Februar>' 12, 2016. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of Stale's olTicc have been received and

is in good standing as far as this ofllcc is concerned.

Business ID: 739194

Certificate Number: 0005748539

%
<5*

Oa.

o

d

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOI-,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be alTixcd

the Seal of the Slate of New I-Iampshirc,

this 4th day of April A.D. 2022.

William M. Gardner

Sccrctan' of Stale
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

✓ *

1. William Krause, hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of the International Institute of New England
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on December 1, 2015, at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Jeffrey Thielman, President & CEO
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of The International Institute of New England to enter into contracts or agreements with
the State

(Name of Corporation/LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or. departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire;
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Pated-^/^/^°" I 6:07 am pst (WOj'a-, Wic
Signature of Elected Officer
Name: William Krause

Title: Board Secretary

Rev. 03/24/20
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THIB CERTIFICATE a aSUEO AS A MATTER OF IRFORMATICW ONLY AMO CONFERS NO HOKTS UrvA Pi»a wAAIB-tCAlb HULUbR IIUS
CERTPKATC DOES NOT AFFWMATIVELV OR M60ATIVEUY AKENa EXTEND. OR ALTER THE COVERAOC AFFOROEO 0Y THE POUCgS
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/KCORD'

INTEINS-05

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

CWOODSIDE

DATE (MM/DO/YYYY)

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
fhic rortifirfltA rirtAs not confer rlohts to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER License # 1780862
HUB International New England
600 Longwater Drive
Norwell,^A 02061-9146

CONTACT Patricia Condon

E«); (781) 792-3243 ! (w2. nol
Patricia.condon(a>hubinternational.com

IM<5I IPFR/<5» AFFORDINO COVERAGE • NAICfl

INSURER A Travelers Property Casualty Company of America 25674

INSURED

International Institute Of New England, Inc.
2 Boylston Street, 3rd floor
Boston, MA 02116

INSURER F

INSR

UE:

THl«5 IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR TH^E POLICY PERIOD
iNniCATED NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTFIACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CE^?rRlATE MaT^E ̂  INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS

TYPE OF INSURANCE
AOOL SUBR

POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF POLICY EXP

fMM/DDrrYYY> IMM/DOnrYYYI
LIMITS

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-M/UDE | | OCCUR
EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO REINED
PREMISES (Ea.occuffenceL

MEP EXP lAfw one oafsonl

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

iSENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY LOC

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS ■ COMP/OP AGG

OTHER:

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

aU^ only

SCHEDULED
AUTOS

AOTtf

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
tEa acddenlV

BODILY INJURY (Per pefsoni

BODILY INJURY IPef acddenll

ROPERTY DAMAGE
^er accldeftO

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

DED RETENTIONS

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

If y«3. describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

Y/N

0
6JUB-9975L65-4-22 10/1/2022 10/1/2023

PER
STATUTE

OTH-
ER

e.L. EACH ACCIDENT
500,000

N/A
E.L. DISEASE-EA EMPLOYEE

500,000

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT
500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS t LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Addltlonil Remarks Schedule, may be atlached If more space Is required)

/-cDTicir-ATC uni ncD CANCELLATION ^

State of NH

Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) ® 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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International
Institute of
New England

The mission of the International Institute of New England (IINE) is to create opportunities for refugees
and immigrants to succeed through resettlement, education, career advancement and pathways to
citizenship. IINE serves a unique and hard to reach immigrant population including refugees that speak
rarer languages; asylees; adult and child survivors of human trafficking; and unaccompanied children
joining undocumented family members. Many are survivors of political violence, repression and
persecution. IINE is also unique in offering a holistic service continuum that combines resettlement,
trauma-informed case management, education, employment, and legal services, enabling us to
individualize support and help families thrive.

BOSTON 2 Bbylston Street, 3rd Floor Boston. MA 02116 617-695-9990 ONLINE iine.org
LOWELL 101 Jackson St, Suite 2 Lowell. MA 01852 978-459-9031 EMAIL info@llne.org

MANCHESTER 470 Pine Street. Lower Level Manchester, NH 03104 603-647-1500
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"H- ?! 4:
50 VVashington Street
Westborough, MA 01581

0V^t\O 508.366.9100
aafcpa.com

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors of
International Institute of New England, Inc.:

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of International Institute of New England, Inc.
(a Massachusetts nonprofit corporation), which comprise the statements of financial position as of
September 30, 2021 and 2020, and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets, cash
flows and functional expenses for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements. , , .

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statement based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for. the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also,
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the. financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of International Institute of New England, inc. as of September 30, 2021 and 2020, and
the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

.1HV

Boston, Massachusetts
March 28,2022

Page 1
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Statements of Financial Position

Assets 2021 2020

Current Assets:

Cash $  680,095 $  906,611

Short-term investments 30.0,000 400,000

Government contracts and contributions receivable 1,301,245 723,511

Accounts receivable 49,313 54,101

Prepaid expenses and other 75,712 '  17,744

Total current assets 2,406,365 2,101,967

Investments 7,919,112 .6,772,529

Property and Equipment, net 1,738,963 1,588,536

Security Deposits 94,434 100,434

Total assets $ 12,158,874 $ 10,563,466

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current Liabilities:'

Accounts payable $  40,733 $  , 59,503

Accrued expenses 268,166 347,866

Current portion of lease incentive. 110,782 110,782

Conditional advances 55,197 57,924

Total current liabilities 474,878 ■  576,075

Deferred Rent iand Lease Incentive, net of current portion 632,991 751,328

Total liabilities 1,107,869 1,327,403

Net Assets:

Without donor restrictions:

Operating 9,203,985 7,968,322

Property and equipment 1,203,525 942,314

Total without donor restrictions 10,407,510 8,910,636

With donor restrictions 643,495 325,427

Total net assets 11,051,005 9,236,063

Total liabilities and net assets $ 12,158,874 $ 10,563,466

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. Page 2



INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets

Total non-operating revenue (expense)

Changes in net assets

Net Assets;

Beginning of year

End of year

1,440,418 (150,000) 1,290,418 376,154 150,000

1,496,874

8,910,636

318,068

325,427

1,814,942

9,236,063

403,947

8,506,689

186,767

138,660

2021 2020

Without With Without With

Donor Donor Donor Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total Restrictions Restrictions Total

Revenues:

Government contracts $ 3,919,032 $ $ 3,919,032 $ 3,965,017 $ $ 3,965,017

Grants and contributions 1,924,356 1,503,795 3,428,151 1,747,787 675,977 2,423,764

Donated goods and services 617,041 -

617,041 . 560,288 - 560,288

Program service fees 272,470 -
272,470 229,059 - 229,059

Contracted services 63,242 -

63,242 .159,183 -

159,183

Net assets released from program restrictions . 1,035,727 (1,035,727) - 639,210 (639,210) -

Total revenues 7,831,868 468;068 8,299,936 7,300,544 36,767 7,337,311

Expenses:
4,921,123' Program services 5,276,292 -

5,276,292 4,921,123 -

General and administrative 1,704,520 - 1,704,520 1,515,827 -
1,515,827

Fundraising 794,600 - 794,600 835,801 - 835,801

Total expenses 7,775,412 - 7,775,412 7,272,751 - 7,272,751

Changes in net assets from operations 56,456 468,068 524,524 27,793 36,767 64,560

Non-Operating Revenue (Expense):
Investment return 1,155,418 -

1,155,418 382,836 - 382,836

Capital grants and and government contracts - 135,000 135,000 35,832 150,000 185,832

Net assets released from capital restrictions 285,000 (285,000) -
-

-

-

Loss on disposal of property and equipment - - - (42,514) -  - (42,514)

526,154

590,714

8,645,349

$ 10,407,510 S 643,495 $ 11,051,005 . $ 8,910,636 $ 325,427 $ 9,236,063

k
NJ
fS>

O

6>
IS)
CO

>
a

O
Is)

>•
■n

A-
CO

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. Page 3
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Statements of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended September 30, 2021 and 2020

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Changes in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile changes In net assets to net cash
provided by (used In) operating activities:

Capital grants and contracts
Investment return

Loss on disposal of property and equipment

Depreciation
Amortization of lease incentive

Donated stock

Changes In operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable

Government contracts and contributions receivable

Prepaid expenseis and other
Security deposits

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Conditional advances

Deferred rent

Net cash provided by (used) In operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Proceeds from sale/transfer of investments •

Acquisition of property and equipment

Net cash used In investing activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Capital grants and contracts

Net Change In Cash

Cash:

Beginning of year

End of year

Supplemental Disclosure of Non-Cash Transactions:
Unrealized gain on Investments

2021 2020

s 1,814,942 $■ 590,714

(135,000) . (185,832)
(1,155,418) (382,836)

- 42,514
326,275 299,534

(110,784) (110,784)
(173,945) -

4,788 (12,481)
(713,566) 310,780

(57,968) 57,387
6,000 -  ■

.(18,770) (6,687)
(79,700) (24,222)

(2,727) (26,940)
(7,553) 4,695

(303,426) 555,842

282,780 200,050
(476,702) (202,390)

(193,922) (2,340)

270,832 50,000

(226,516) 603,502

906,611 303,109

$ . 680,095 $  906,611

$  914,311 i  83,056

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. Page 4
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Statement of Functional Expenses

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

(With Summarized Comparative Totals for the Year Ended September 30, 2020)

2021 2020

Personnel and Related:

Salaries

Payroll taxes and fringe benefits
Donated services

Purchased and contracted services

Recruitment

Staff training

Total personnel and related

Occupancy:

Rent and utilities

Depreciation

Equipment rental
Repairs and maintenance

Total occupancy

Other;

Client assistance

Supplies and materials
Professional fees

Depreciation

Special events

Service charges

Telephone

Insurance

Donated goods
Dues and subscriptions

Travel, meetings and conferences
Printing

Postage

Storage

Miscellaneous

Advertising

Total other

TotaI.expenses

General

and

Program Adminis

Services trative Fundralsing Total Total

$ 2,537,585 S  808,301 S 422,893 $ 3,768,779 S 3,851,030

491,278 158,926 83,756 , 733,960 713,450

570,121 . 570,121 513,454

90,020 212,677 66,384 369,081 228,811

1,996 323,776 - 125,772 .  3,564

292 1,623 988 2,903 4,732

3,691,292 1,305,303 574,021 5,570,616 5,315,041 .

446,036 50,111 43,150 539,307 533,159

161,786 36,672 17,257 ■ 215,715 203,116

7,803 2,873 1,295 11,971 15,334

73 1,073 - 1,146 2,537

615,698 90,729 61,712 768,139 754,146

617,377 617,377 361,974

93,956 25,727 2,435 122,118 62,684

115:693 115,693 110,711

82,920 18,795 8,845 110,560 96,418

. 109,356 109,356 . 220,806

'3,258 71,323 13,174 87,755 76,114

47,338 1,207 2,055 50,600 ,  61,640

.  855 48,340 - 49,195 46,498

46,920 . -
45,920 46,834

18,993 10,153 15,592 44,738 26,296.

16,981 12,420 1,430 30,831 48,500

14,105 - 3,242 17,347 13,614

10,192 1,299 1,714 13,205 10,064

12,265 589 - 12,854 10,581

3,578 2,837 - 6,415 3,693

■ 564 105 1,024 1,693. 7,137

969,302 .  308,488 158,867 1,436,657' 1,203,564

$ 5,276,292 $ 1,704,520 $ 794,600 S 7,775,412 S 7,272,751

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. Page S
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Statementof Functional Expenses

For the Year Ended September 30,2020

General

and

Personnel and Related:

Salaries

Payroll taxes and fringe benefits
Donated services ,

Purchased and contracted services

Recruitment

Staff training

Total personnel and related

Occupancy:

Rent and utilities

Depreciation

Equipment rental

Repairs and maintenance

Total occupancy

Other:

Client assistance ^

Supplies and materials
Professional fees

Depreciation

Special events

Service charges

Telephone

Insurance

Donated goods

Dues and subscriptions

Travel, meetings and conferences

Printing

Postage

Storage

Miscellaneous

Advertising

Total other

Total expenses

Program Adminis

Services trative Fundraising Total

S 2,572,879 S  867,535 $ 410,616 $ 3,851,030

483,114 151,974 78,362 713,450

513,454 ■ -
513,454.

78,949 116,003 33,859 228,811

846 774 1,944 3,564

2,330 1,827 575 4,732

3,651,572 1,138,113 525,356 5,315,041

427,811 67,662 37,686 533,159

152,337 34,530 16,249 203,116

13,362 1,047 925 15,334

1,749 788 • 2,537

595,259 104,027 54,860 754,146

361,974 361,974

49,692 12,594 398 .  62,684

- 109,586 1,125 110,711

■ 72,510 ■ 16,257 7,651 96,418

-
- 220,806 220,806

10,480 51,510 14,124 76,114

52,321 7,375' 1,944 61,640

12,639 33,859 -
46,498

46,834 - - 46,834

11,387 10,861 4,048 26,296

25,337 22,075 1,088 . 48,500

6,060 5,331 2,223 13,614

6,583 1,303 2,078 10,064

10,304 277 - 10,581

1,034 2,659 -
3,693

7,037 - 100 7,137

674,292 273,687 255,585 1,203,564

S 4,921,123 $ 1,515,827 $ 835,801 $ 7,272,751

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. Page 6



DocuSign Envelope ID: F6564481-BFF1-4220-829A-8D2AF44B7412

INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30,2021 and 2020

1. OPERATIONS AND NONPROFIT STATUS

International Institute of.New England, Inc. (the Institute) is a nonprofit organization that
provides assistance to the immigrant and refugee populations of Massachusetts and New
Hampshire. In fiscal years 2021 and 2020, there were approximately 3,000 unduplicated people,
from approximately 112 countries that benefited from the Institute's services, gaining the
knowledge and skills necessary for their integration into American life, The Institute's services
include English and literacy classes, citizenship education, job training and placement, legal aid
and counseling services, and case management.

The Institute is exempt from Federal income taxes as an organization (not a private foundation)
formed for charitable purposes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC). The
Institute is also exempt from state income taxes. Contributions made to the Institute are
deductible by donors within the requirements of the IRC.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Institute prepares its financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
standards and principles (U.S. GAAP) established by the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB). References to U.S. GAAP in these notes are to the FASB Accounting Standards.
Codification (ASC).

Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets

Transactions deemed by management to be ongoing, major, or central to the provision of
program services are reported as revenues and expenses In the accompanying statements of
activities and changes in net assets. Non-operating revenue (expense) includ.es Investment and
property and equipment related activity.

Estimates
\  '

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP requires managennent to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Property and Equipment and Depreciation

Property and equipment are recorded at cost when purchased or at fair value at the date of
donation. Property and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives: •-

Leasehold improvements Lesser of life of
lease or 10 years

Furniture and equipment 3-10 years

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The allowance for doubtful accounts is recorded based on management's analysis of specific
accounts and their estimate of amounts that may be uncollectible, if any. No allowance for
doubtful accounts was deemed necessary as of September 30, 2021 or 2020.

Page 7



DocuSign Envelope ID; F6564481-BFF1-4220-829A-8D2AF44B7412

INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2021 and 2020

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Cash

For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, management considers all highly liquid
investments with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash, except those funds that
are included in the Institute's investments (see Note 4).

Fair Value Measurements

The Institute follows the accounting and disclosure standards pertaining to ASC Topic, Fair Value
Measurements, for qualifying assets and liabilities. Fair value is defined as the price that the
Institute would receive upon selling an asset or pay to settle a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants.

The Institute uses a framework for measuring fair value that Includes a hierarchy that
categorizes and prioritizes the sources used to measure and disclose fair value, This hierarchy Is
broken down Into three levels based on inputs that market participants would use in valuing the
financial instruments based on market data obtained from sources independent of the Institute. •
Inputs refer broadly to the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the
financial instrument, Including assumptions about risk. Inputs may be observable or
unobservable. Observable Inputs are inputs that reflect the assumptions market participants
would use in pricing the financial Instrument developed based oh market data obtained from
sources independent of the reporting entity. Unobservable Inputs are inputs that reflect the
reporting entity's own assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use in
pricing the asset developed based on the best information available.

The three-tier hierarchy of inputs is as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets
at the measurement date,

Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset either directly
or indirectly, including inputs In markets that are not considered to be active.

Level 3 - Inputs that are unobservable, and which require significant judgment or
estimation.

An asset or liability's level within the framework is based upon the lowest level of any input that
is significant to the fair value measurement.

Investments

Investments are recorded in the financial statements at fair value. If an investment is directly
held by the Institute and an active market with quoted prices exists, the market price of an
identical security is used to report fair value. Reported fair values of shares in mutual funds are
based on share prices reported by the funds as of the last business-day of the fiscal year. The
Institute's interest In a limited liability partnership is reported at the net asset value (NAV)
reported by fund managers, which is used as a practical expedient to estimate fair value, unless
it is probable that all or a portion of the investment will be sold for an amount different from
NAV. As of September 30,2021, and 2020; the Institute had no plans to sell this investment.

Pages
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2021 and 2020

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue Recognition

Government Confrocfs, Grants and Contributions

The Institute's primary sources of revenue are from Federal and state government contracts.
Amounts received under these contracts have been recorded in accordance with Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) Topic 958, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958). These contracts are
considered nonreciprocal transactions because the general public receives the benefit as the
result of the assets transferred. These conditional contributions are recognized as services are.
provided or qualifying costs are incurred.

Grants and contributions and United Way allocations are recorded as revenue and net assets
without donor restrictions when unconditionally committed. Grants and contributions with
donor restrictions are recorded as revenues and net assets with donor restrictions when
unconditionally received or pledged. Net assets with donor restrictions are reclasslfied to net
assets without donor restrictions and reported in the accompanying statements of activities and
changes in net assets as net assets released from restrictions as costs are incurred, time or
program restrictions have lapsed, or capital improvements have been placed into service.

In accordance with Topic 958, the Institute must determine whether a contribution (or a
promise) is conditional or unconditional for transactions deemed to be .a contribution. A
contribution is considered to be a conditional contribution if an agreement includes a barrier
that must be overcome and either a right of return of assets or a right of release of a promise to
transfer assets exists (see Note 8). Indicators of a barrier include a measurable performance-
related barrier or other measurable barriers, a.stipulation that limits discretion by the recipient
on the conduct of an activity, and stipulations that are related to the purpose of the agreement.
Topic 958 prescribes that the Institute should not consider probability of compliance with the
barrier when determining if such awards are conditional and should be reported as conditional
grant advance liabilities until such conditions are met. Assets received, before the barrier is
overcome are recorded as conditional advances.

A portion of the Institute's revenue is derived from cost-reimbursable' and unit-rate contracts
(contracts), which are conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/or the
incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses. Amounts are recognized as revenue when the
Institute has incurred expenditures in compliance with specific contract provisions. Amounts
received prior.to incurring qualifying expenditures are reported as conditional advances in the
accompanying statements of financial position.

Special events revenue, included in grants and contributions in the accompanying statements of
activities and changes in net assets, is from the Institute's.ability to host fundraising events.
Special event income consists of both contributions and sales. The contribution portion of the
special event income is recognized as revenue when unconditionally committed or received in
accordance with Topic 958. Special events are considered donor restricted if the proceeds of
the event are restricted for specific purposes or time periods at the time of .the event. The sales
portion of the special event income Is recognized in accordance with Revenue/rom Contracts
with Customers (Topic 606) and Is derived from various components, including ticket sales from

•  fundraising events held in which the transaction price is determined annually. Registration fees
for these events are set by the'lnstltute and have not been allocated as the events are each
considered to be separate perforrhance obligations. The fee portion for these events is
immaterial and has not been recognized separately from the contribution portion.

Page 9



DocuSign Envelope ID: F6564481-BFF1-4220-829A-8D2AF44B7412

INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2021 and 2020

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue Recognition (Continued)

Revenue from Contracts with Customers - Topic 606

The Institute generally measures revenue from exchange transactions based on the amount of
consideration the Institute expects to be entitled for the transfer of goods or services to a
customer, then recognizes this revenue when or as the Institute satisfies its performance
obligations under a contract. The Institute evaluates Its revenue recognition based on the five-
step model under Topic 606; (1) Identify the contract with the customer; (2) Identify the
performance obligations In the contract; (3) Determine the transaction price; (4) Allocate the
transaction price to separate performance obligations; and (5) Recognize revenue when (or as)
each performance obligation is satisfied.

The Institute recognized program service fees for legal and translation services provided for
clients, in which the clients either pay for the services themselves or are sponsored by
corporations, depending on the service provided. Program service fees generally consist of a
single performance obligation to provide services, and agreements with clients do not contain
variable consideration. Accordingly, program service fees are recognized at a point In time,
which is also when the performance obligation is satisfied, The transaction price is a fixed fee
based upon the service provided, which is established by management based on hourly rates
and expected number of hours to complete the service.

Contracted services revenue consists of various training and education service programs
provided to Immigrants and refugees that span over several months based on the nature of the
program or course, There is a single performance obligation for all programs, which consists of
the completion of the training and education program or course and related events. Revenue is
recognized ratably over the period of the program or course, and the transaction price is based
on fixed quoted prices.' The contract amount may vary based upon the number of participants
in the program and the rate per participant. Generally, a fixed-fee contract is signed by either
an individual participant in the program or an organization sponsoring the individuals. The
transaction price is deterrhined based upon hourly rates established by management and the
number of. hours estimated to complete a"contract.

Other

Investment return consists of interest, dividends, and realized and unrealized gains and losses.
Interest Income Is recorded as earned and dividend income is recorded on the ex-dividend date.
Realized gains and losses on investment transactions are recorded based on the average cost
method. Unrealized gains and losses are recorded based on changes in fair value. All other
revenue Is recognized as earned.

Expense Allocations

Program expenses Include direct expenses, as well as indirect expenses, which are allocated
based upon management's estimate of the percentage attributable to each program. Expenses
related directly to a program or supporting function are charged to that function, while all other
expenses are allocated based upon management's estimate of the percentage attributable to

.  each function.

Certain categories of expenses are attributable to more than one program or supporting
function and are allocated on a reasonable basis that Is consistently applied. The expenses that
are allocated are salaries, payroll taxes and fringe benefits, which are allocated on the basis of
estimates of time and effort; occupancy and depreciation, which are allocated on a square
footage basis; and indirect other operating expenses, which are allocated based on
management's estimate of usage.

Page 10
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2021 and 2020

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Advertising Costs

Costs incurred for producing and communicating advertising are expensed when. Incurred and
are reflected as advertising in the accompanying statements of functional expenses.

Donated Goods and Services

The Institute receives donated goods and services in various asperts of its program services.
The value of the donated items is based on values assigned or estimates made by the donors.
Donated goods include food and clothing; and donated services include legal, teaching, and
consulting work. Donated items received were as follows:

2021 2020

Donated services 5 570,121 $ 513,454
Donated goods ^^€,920 —''^^r834

5 617.041 5 560.288

The Institute also receives a substantial amount of donated administrative services. Many
individuals volunteer their time and perforrri a variety of tasks that help the Institute accomplish
its goals. These services do not meet the criteria for recognition as contributed servlces'under
U.S. GAAP and, accordingly, are not included in the accompanying financial statements.

Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through March 28, 2022, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued. There were no events that met the criteria for recognition
or disclosure in the financial statements.

Income Taxes

The Institute accounts for uncertainty in income taxes in accordance with ASC Topic, Income
Taxes. This standard clarifies the accounting for uncertainty, in tax positions and prescribes a
recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statements regarding a tax
position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. The Institute has determined that there
are no uncertain tax positions which qualify for either recognition or disclosure in the financial
statements at September 30, 2021 or 2020. The Institute's information returns are subject to
examination by the Federal and state jurisdictions.

Net Assets

•  Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions:

Net assets without donor restrictions are those net resources that bear no external restrictions
and are generally available for use by the Institute. The Institute.has grouped its net assets

- without donor restrictions into the following categories:

Operating - represents funds available to carry on the operations of the Institute.

Property and equipment - reflect and account for the activities relating to the Institute s
property and equipment, net of related liabilities.
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2021 and 2020

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Net Assets (Continued)

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions:

The Institute receives contributions and grants that are designated by donors for specific
purposes or time, periods. These contributions are recorded as net assets with donor
restrictions until they are either expended for their designated purposes or as the time
restrictions lapse.

Net assets with donor restrictions consist of the foliowing at September 30:

2021 2020

Purpose restricted $ 643,495 $ 175,427
Capitai restricted —150,000

5 643.495 $

3. RETIREMENT PLAN

The Institute has a defined contribution retirement plan covering ali eligible employees over the
age of twenty-one who have completed a minimum of 1,000 hours of service within each of
their first two years of empioyment. Employee contributions are vested immediately into the
plan upon eligibility. The Institute made $60,839 and $60,174 of matching contributions to the
pian during the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, which are included in
payroll taxes and fringe benefits in the accompanying statements of functionai expenses.

4. INVESTMENTS

Investments, which are stated at fair value (see Note 2) in the accompanying statements of
financial position, are as follows:

2021 ' Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Money market funds $ 703,642 $ - $ - $ 703,642
Mutual funds:

Equities 5,273,083 - - 5,273,083
Fixed income 808,309 ^ l 808,309

6.785.034 ^ ^ ^ ^ 6,785,034

Limited liability partnership (see page 13) —1,434,078

Total investments

Page 12
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2021 and 2020

4. INVESTMENTS (Continued)

2020. Level 1 level 2 Level 3 Total

Money market funds
Mutual funds:

Equities
Fixed income

$ 1,20.0,058 $ $ $ 1,200,058

3,621,534
1.019,733

-
3,621,534
1.019,733

5,841,325

Lirriited liabiiity partnership (see below) —1,331,204

Total investments $ 7,172^522

In accordance with ASU No. 2015-07, the Institute's investment in a limited liability partnership
is valued at fair value using the NAV per share (or Its equivalent) practical expedient and has not
been classified In the fair value hierarchy. The fair value amounts presented in the table above
and on page 12 are intended.to permit reconciliation of the fair value hierarchy to the amounts
presented in.the statements of financial position (see Note 2).

Irivestments are reported in the accompanying statements of financial position as current or
long-term assets based on management's intent with respect to the use of the investments. At
September 30, 2021 and 2020, $300,000 and $400,000, respectively, were reported as current
short-term investments as management's intent is to use these funds for operations in the
subsequent year.

The investments are not insured and are subject to market fluctuation.

S: CONCENTRATIONS

The Institute maintains its cash balances with two banks. The Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC) insures balances at each bank up to certain amounts. At certain times during
the year, cash balances exceeded the insured, amounts. The Institute has supplemental
coverage at one bank, which insures the portion of deposits in excess of the FDlCs limit, The
Institute has not experienced any losses in such accounts. Management believes the Institute is
not exposed to any significant credit risk on its operating cash balance.

Funding agencies and donors exceeding 10% of the institute's operating revenue and support
(excluding donated goods and services) or government contracts, contributions and accounts
receivables as of and for the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, are as follows:

Government

Contracts,

Operating Contributions
Revenue and Accounts

Funder andSuDPort% Receivables %

Commonwealth of Massachusetts

U.S. Committee for Refugees and Immigrants
State of New Hampshire
Private donor

2021 2020 2021 2020

23% 21% 32% 37%

21% 14% 13% 20%

9% 9% . 13% 18%

-% 1% -% 14%
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30,2021 and 2020

6. FUNDING

The Institute receives a significant portion of. its funding from government agencies. These
contracts are subject to audit by these government agencies, in the opinion of management,
the results of such audits, if any, will not have a material effect on the financial position of the
institute as of September 30, 2021 and 2020, or on the changes in its net assets for the years
then ended.

7. LEASE AGREEMENTS

The Institute leases its main office space in Boston, Massachusetts under an agreement that
runs through July 2026. Monthly lease payments for fiscal years 2021 and 2020 were
approximately $43,000 and $42,000, respectively, and increase throughout the term of the
lease. The Institute records rent on a straight-line basis over the term of the. lease. The
difference between the monthly lease payments and the related rent expense for a given fiscal
year is recorded as deferred rent. The straight-line rent expense combines the escalation
amounts and an initial three-month rent-free period. At September 30, 2021 and 2020,
deferred rent was $208,335 and $215,888, respectively, and is included in deferred rent and
lease incentive in the accompanying statements of financial position.

The lease agreement also includes a tenant improvement allowance of $1,107,822 in the form
of a reimbursement for construction and related costs incurred by the Institute for leasehold
improvements. This, improvement allowance Is reported as a liability and is being amortized'
over the lease term. The improvement allowarice is included in deferred rent and lease
incentives in the accompanying statements of financial position. Amortization of the lease
incentive was $110,784 during each of the years ended Septerhber 30, 2021 and 2020, and is
netted with rent and utilities in the accompanying statements of functional expenses.

The Institute leases program and administrative space under various operating leases and
tenant-at-will agreements. These leases expire at various dates through January 2023. The
leases require the Institute to maintain certain insurance coverage and pay for its proportionate
share of real estate taxes and operating expenses..

The Institute entered into an operating lease agreement for program space in Lowell,
Massachusetts, which commenced on July 1, 2021, with monthly payments of $5,756 through
June 30, 2031. Rent increases annually based on the Consumer Price Index, which is limited to a
maximum annual increase of 3%. There are extension options for two additional five-year
periods.

Facility rent expense under all leases was approximately $521,000 and $514,000 for the years
ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, which is included In rent and utilities in the
accompanying statements of functional expenses.

The Institute also has a copier lease with monthly payments through June 2022.

Future minimum lease payments under the lease agreements are as follows:

2022 $ 669,029
2023 639,566

•  2024 635,853
2025 649,445
2026 565,488
Thereafter 441.829

.  Total ^ 3.601.210
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30,2021 and 2020

8. CONDITIONAL GOVERNMENT CONTRACTS AND GRANTS

Conditional Government Contracts and Grants

During fiscal years 2021 and 2020, the Institute received grants and contributions (including
government contracts) that contained donor-Imposed conditions that represent a barrier that
must be overcome, as well as a-right of return of assets or release from obligations, The
Institute recognizes these grants and contributions, including government contracts, when
donor-imposed conditions are substantially met (see Note 2).

Conditional promises to give at September 30,2021 and 2020, consist of:

2021 2020

Incurring qualifying expenses $ 773,802 $ 557,306 1
Subject to measurable performance barriers 222.907 629.471

Total conditional promises to give 5 996.709 S 1.186.777

Paycheck Protection Program Loan

During fiscal year 2020) the Institute applied for and was awarded.a loan of $884,501 from the
Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) established by the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic
Security Act (CARES Act). The funds were used to pay certain payroll costs, including benefits
during a covered period as defined in the CARES Act. The Institute believed there was less than |
a remote chance the loan would be forgiven, and therefore, accounted for it as a conditional \
grant. As of September 2020, the Institute recognized the full PPP loan amount of $884,501 as |
grant revenue as the condition was met as of Septenhber 30, 2020, which is included in ;
government contracts in the accompanying fiscal year 2020 statement of activities and changes ;
in net assets. During fiscal year 2021, the entire PPP loan amount and related accrued interest j

.  were formally forgiven by the bank and the Small Business Administration. j

9. RELATED PARTY TRANSAaiONS j

The Institute's President and Chief Executive Officer (CEO) is also the Treasurer of the Board of I
Directors. Compensation and employee benefits for services provided as the President and CEO i
are determined by the independent members of the Board of Directors and are based on j
performance objectives. j

The Institute's Chief Financial Officer was the Treasurer of the Board of Directors during fiscal
year 2020.
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30,2021 and 2020

10. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Institute's financial assets available within one year from the statements of financial
position date for general operating expenses are as follows at September 30:

2021 2020

Cash

Short-term investments

Government contracts and contributions receivable
Accounts receivable

Less - donor restricted cash and contributions receivable

$  680,095 $  906,611
300,000 400,000

1,301,245 723,511
49.313 54,101

2,330,653 2,084,223

643.495 325.427

Total financial assets and liquidity resources available • ^
within one year $ 1,687,158 $ 1,758,7?^

The Institute is substantially supported by grants and contributions without donor restrictions
and government contracts. As part of the Institute's liquidity management, the Institute has a
policy to structure its financial assets to be available as its general expenditures, liabilities and
other obligations come due.

11. property AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION

Property and equipment consist of the following as of September 30:

2021 2020

Leasehold improvements $ 2,354,140 $ 1,955,962
* Furniture and equipment 680,966 . 679,676

3,035,106 2,635,638

Less - accumulated depreciation 1.296.143 1,047,102

.  Net property and equipment S i'.738.963 $

Depreciation expense was $326,275 and $299,534 for the years ended September 30, 2021 and
2020, respectively.

12. CONTINGENCY

The COVID-19 pandemic in the United States has caused business disruption and a reduction in
economic activity. While the disruption Is currently expected to be temporary, there Is
considerable uncertainty around the duration. While the Institute expects this matter to
negatively impact its operating results, the related financial impact and duration cannot be
reasonably estimated at this time.
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International Institute of New England

Board of Directors and Affiliations

Name, Board Position Affiliation

Avak Kahvejian, Ph.D.,

Chair
Partner, Flagship Pioneering

Christina Bai
President and Chair of the Board, MeBo Global Education,

Inc.

Sam ̂ pee-Bounya Fixed Income Credit Analyst, Wellington Management

Tuan Ha-Ngoc President and CEO, AVEO Pharniaceuticals (Retired)

Belinda Juran Partner, WilmerHale (Retired)

. William Krause, Secretary Portfolio Manager and Vice President, Northern Trust

Shari Loessberg Senior Lecturer, MIT Sloan School of Management

Bopha Malone Vice President, Enterprise Bank

Libby May
Senior Vice President, External Affairs and

Communications, Southern New Hampshire University

Theo Melas-Kyriazi CFO, Levitronix LLC

Dr. Frederick Millham Chief of Surgery, South Shore Hospital

Deborah Shufrin, Assistant

Secretary/Clerk
Chief Investment Officer, Colby College

Nia Tatsis Chief Regulatory Officer, Vertex Pharmaceuticals

Fereshtah Thornberg
Senior Vice President and Client Executive, Global Clients

Division, State Street

Jeffrey Thielman, President

and CEO
President and CEO, International Institute of New England

Celine Mukasine, Treasurer
Chief Financial Officer, International Institute of New
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Puspa Man Joshi

SKILLS SUMMARY

Worked with refugees for their jiiedicai appointments and referials (provided transportation)
Operated free Global Language Learning Club on line (focusing on English) for participants from
fouity countries.
Woi ked as a volunteei- for United Way of Nashua to distribute free foods for needy people.
Worked with Nepali and Hindi speaking parents, and Manchester School District teachers as a family
liaison/interpreter (contractor vendor)
Conducted health orientations. Attended health contWences and seminars.

Worked with refugees Irom different countries (Bhutan, Iraq, Democratic Republic of Congo, Sudan,
etc.) to enroll their children in the schools and apply for public benefits such as welfare, tuel
assistance, and social security card.
Love to work with refugees and immigrants and enjoy helping them.
Effective communicator with people fiom different countries.
Taught high school Math and Science. High School Administrator in Nepal
Operated free Nepali language class for children of Nepali descendants in Columbus, Ohio.
Contributor of articles to the newsletters and magazines published by Nepali diasporas.
Stiong work ethic with an excmplaiy attendance record.
Knowledgeable in the use of Microsoft Office Access, Word, Excel, and PowerPoint.
Nepali/English interpreter for Bhutanese refugees and inteipreted a series of presentations for parents
of school-age children, topics related to social issues such as education, safety, renter's duties, and
elderly abuse.
Completed medical interpreter training from Language Bank and has been working for this agency.
I speak and write fluent Nepali, English, Newaj'i (Degree), and speak Chinese Mandarin (Diploma). 1
also speak basic Swahili and took some courses in Spanish and Russian.

• Coached the table tennis team at the Ohio State University as an assistant coach.

Health Case Specialist (Full time) .luly 2022-Present
o  Providing rides for clients for medical appointments (including lab work, xray, or phamiacy) as

well as other purposes such as English tests at IINE or for social gatherings.
© Working on case coordination and submitting the monthly report.
© Helping clients to get medical appoitments when or if they need.

Organizer and Participant
The Global Language Learning Club (Online), Nashua, NH
December, 2021 - Present

©  Finding native English speakers as volunteer teachers and recruiting participants.

Nepali Language Interpreter
The Language Bank, Manchester, NH April, 201

©  Inteipreting for Nepali speakers at hospitals, clinics, DHHS and schools.
- Present

Nepali Interpreter
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Bring It Pjogram, Manchester, NH Nov. 2020 - Present
o  inteipreting as well as working as a liaison for the A fter School program

Nepali Interpreter/School Liaison
Manchester School District March. 2021 - May. 2021

•  Interpreting as well as working as a lamily liaison for the school district.

Volunteer .'une 2020 - Present

United Way of Nashua
• Delivering and distributing free lunch and produce for low-income parents
• Collecting stationery for students at the shopping mall.

Health Services Coordinator (Full time since June 2014, Permanent) June 2013-June 2020
o  Providing health records of clients to the health care providei s then get a schedule for

lubercLilosis-tesl, immunizations, and complete physicals.
• Provide health orientations

o Taking clients to urgent cai e/emergency when or if needed,
o Attending seminars related to health care.
o  Invite health care providers, pharmacy staff, or, medical institute staff to come to the institute to

give presentations to the clients and staff
•  Providing Nepali language inteipretalion service to clients during appointments when no sendee

was provided by the health care provider and during in-housc orientations as well.

Case Manager (Part time, Perinahcnt) Aug. 2011-May 2013
o Providing interpretation and translation sendees to Bhutanese refugees whenever needed.
• Conducting 30 and 90 day home visits and home safety and community orientations,
o  Helping clients to apply for welfare benefits, social security cards, and fuel assistance.

School Enrollment Coordinator (Part-time, Temporary)
o  Enroll school-age children and teach-literacy class

April 201 1-July 2011

Dec. 2009-March 2011Case Manager (Part time, Temporary)
ABLE Network, Inc., Manchester, NH

o  Providing interpretation and translation seivices to Bhutanese refugees whenever needed.
• Conducting 30 and 90 day home visits and home saloty and community orientations,
o  Helping clients to apply tor welfare benefits, social security cards, and fuel assistance

EDUCATION

PhD:, Transportation Psycholog}'
The Ohio State University

MSc., Transportation Planning
The Ohio State University

MC&RP., City and Regional Planning
The Ohio State University

B.E. Highway Engineering
Tungchi University Shanghai, China
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B.Ed., Math and English B.A., Math and Novari Language
Institute of Education, Kirtipur, Nepal Tribluivan University, Nepal

TRAINING

Completed a senior citizen training provided by AARP
Diploma in the Chinese Language from Peking Language Institute
56 Hours Culture Smart Medical Interpreter Training and sell-study of the Swahili language.
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Case Specialist, Refugee Mental Health Promotion

Reports to: Community Services Manager
Supervision: N/A

Status: Non-exempt

Overview:

The Case Specialist, Refugee Mental Health Promotion will provide health and case
management services for refugee clients and their families resettled through IINE.

Qualifications:

- Bachelor's degree or equivalent experience within the field.

- Ability to maintain confidentiality regarding client information

- Strong knowledge of database management and design; MS Outlook, Access, Excel and Word
-  Strong intercultural communication skills; demonstrated ability to work effectively with people

from other cultural backgrounds

-  Bilingual candidates preferred—proficiency in Arabic, French, Dari, Pashtu sought

- Strong organization skills and attention to detail

- Must have driver's license, personal vehicle, auto insurance, and clean driving record

Duties and Responsibilities:

MENTAL HEALTH CARE

-  Promote the mental health and well-being of all new and vulnerable refugees residing in the
greater Manchester and Nashua areas.

-  Promote the mental health literacy of refugees, to enable them to access and navigate the U.S.
mental health & healthcare systems independently.

-  Build capacity within communities to address mental health needs, including help overcoming
stigmas associated with mental health care and creating opportunities for social engagement
to reduce isolation

- Help to build and maintain a growing network of mental healthcare providers and make clieht
referrals for service.

-  Respond to internal referrals from IINE case specialists - Counsel and assist families in
adjustment and attaining appropriate mental health services and, when appropriate,
contribute to the clierit's self-sufficiency plan.

-  Ensure that refugees obtain all needed medical and mental health services in a manner that is
timely as well as culturally and linguistically appropriate.

-  Facilitate wellness groups

- Conduct home visiting as part of the Family Strengthening Program for Refugees

-  Increase refugee access to affordable mental healthcare and make referrals on client's behalf
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Document all contacts made on behalf of clients and services provided in the clients' case files;
enters data in the central database.

Report responsibilities as assigned: monthly domestic case coordination, quarterly and annual
reports for the health Promotion program.

Submit client's mental health records, l-94s and intake forms to mental health providers.

Set mental health appointments, screenings and follow up appointments.

Assist in cultural orientation by helping the client to navigate the Mental health system

Documents all contacts made on behalf of clients and services provided in the clients' case
files; enters data in the central database.

Attend staff meetings and weekly Client Disposition meeting.

Perform all other duties assigned by supervisor.
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International Institute of New England

Key Personnel

Refugee Health Promotion Program

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from Amount Paid from

this Contract this Contract

Puspa Joshi Health Case Worker 41,600 60% S37,452

TBD Health Case Worker 41,600 60% $37,452

Refugee Health Promotion Program - Afghan

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from Amount Paid from

this Contract this Contract

Puspa Joshi Health Case Worker 41,600 25% 515,638

TBD Health Case Worker 41,600 24% $14,851
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I>ori A. Shibin'ettc

Commissioner

l^ri A. Wenver

Deputy Commlisioner

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER

129 Pl.EASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
603-271-9200 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9200

Fax: 603-271^912 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhh5.nh.g0v

April 1,2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of the Commissioner, to
amend existing agreements with the Contractors listed below to build capacity within communities
to address mental health needs including but not limited to overcoming stigmas associated with
mental health care, and creating opportunities for social engagement to reduce isolation, by
increasing the total price limitation by $260,850 from $234,375 to $495,225 with no change to the
contract completion dates of September 30,2023, effective upon Governor and Council approval.
100% Federal Funds.

The original contracts were approved by Governor and Council on May 6, 2020. item #15,
and most recently amended on Decemtier 18, 2020, item #7.

Contractor

Name

Vendor

Code

Area Served Current

Amount

increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

Ascentria

Community
Services, Inc.

222201 Concord, NH $117,187.50 $130,425.00 $247,612.50

International

Institute of

New England,
Inc.

177551 Manchester, NH $117,187.50 $130,425.00 $247,612.50

Total: $234,376.00 $260,850,00 $495,225.00

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, and
are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2024. upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, vrith the authority to adjust budget line items
v/ithin the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is for each Contractor to hire and implement a mental health
case manager position, who will be responsible for providing mental health case management, a
mental health orientation, mental health education and the added service of facilitating wellness

Hxe Department of Health and Human Services'Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for cUitens to achieve health and independence.
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

groups and providing home visits as part of implementing the Family Strengthening Intervention
for Refugees.

Currently, each Contractor has one (1) health case manager v^rho is responsible for both
physical and mental health case management services, orientation and education. With the
additional mental hearth case manager, the existing and new services will further build capacity
within communities to address mental hearth needs, including but not limited to helping overcome
stigmas associated with mental health care, and creating opportunities for social engagement to
reduce Isolation.

Approximately 500 Office of Refugee Resettlement (GRR) eligible individuals will be
served through September 30, 2023.

The Contractors serve designated ORR-eligible populations resettled in the State for up
to five (5) years from the date of arrival. The Contractors provide orientations on the U.S.
healthcare system as well as education on identified hearth conditions. In addition, the Contractors
will organize wellness groups for ORR-eligible clients to prevent Isolation, conduct home visits as
well as provide health and mental health case management services to ensure ORR-eligible
clients obtain the necessary follow-up health and mental health services beyond the initial medical
examination in a manner that is timely, and culturally and linguistically appropriate.

The current and new services will continue to reduce barriers to achieving wellness within
ORR-eligible populations, as well as impart the knowledge and skills necessary to navigate the
U.S. health care system independently and to manage hearth and health conditions.

The Department will continue monitoring existing and new services to ensure;

•  100% of new ORR-eligible arrivals receive health-related orientations including
mental health orientations, and/or workshops/trainings throughout the contract
period, with priority given to those who have been in the U.S. for two (2) years or
less;

•  100% of ORR-eligible clients who require care beyond the initial medical
examination receive case management services, including mental health case
management services;

•  Results of the satisfaction surveys distributed at each orientation, workshop and
training demonstrate 80% of ORR-eligible clients have increased knowledge and
understanding of;

o Accessing and navigating the U.S. Health System in order to obtain health
insurance;

o Scheduling and keeping health appointments; and

o Utilizing public. Medicaid and/or other appropriate transportation to get to
and from medical and mental health appointments.

•  A minimum of three (3) Wellness Groups are facilitated each contract year;

•  A minimum of five (5) families are enrolled in and receive the Family Strengthening
Intervention for Refugees each contract year;

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, ORR-eligible
populations with complex health conditions may not receive the needed mental health care in a
timely, and culturally and linguistically appropriate, manner. In addition. ORR-eligible populations
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 3

may not gain the knowledge and skills necessary to navigate the U.S. health care system
independently and to manage their health and health conditions.

Sources of Federal Funds; Assistance Listing Number (formerly CFDA#) 93.566, FAINs
Refugee 22G99RSF2 and Afghan 22G992210.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

><•—Ooeu8Jo«*4 br:

24aAB37EDBEaaS...

Lori A. Shiblnette

Commissioner
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Refugee Health Promotion Program
SS-2021-OHE-01-REFUG (Amendment ni)

Fiscal Detail Sheet

Ascentria Community Services. Inc., VC# 222201-B001

05-95-096-950010-72090000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS; HHS: COMMISSIONERS OFFICE; OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER;
REFUGEE SERVICES (100% Federal Funds)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current.

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731

Contracts for

Program

Services

95070005 $37,499.50 $0 $37,499.50

2022 102-500731

Contracts for

Program

Services

95070005 $37,500 $0 $37,500

2023 102-500731

Contracts for

Program

Services

95070005 $37,500 $0 $37,500

2024 102-500731

Contracts for

Program

Services

95070005- $4,688
$0

$4,688

Subtotals $117,187.50 $0 $117,187.50

05-95-095-960010-72090000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS; HHS: COMMISSIONERS OFFICE; OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER;
REFUGEE SERVICES 100% Federal Funds)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2022 102-500731

Contracts for

Program

Services

95070021 $0 $14,063, $14,063

2023 102-500731

Contracts for

Program

Services

95070021 $0 $18,750 $18,750

2024 102-500731

Contracts for

Program

Services

95070021 $0 $4,687 $4,687

Subtotals $0 $37,500 $37,500

Page 1 of 3
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" Refugee Health Promotion Program
SS-2021-OHE-01-REFUG (Amendment #2)

Fiscal Detail Sheet

05-95-095-950010-72090000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DERI OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS; HHS: COMMISSIONERS OFFICE; OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER;
REFUGEE SERVICES (100% Federal Funds)

State
Fiscal
Year

Class /
Account

Class Title
Job

Number
Current
Budget

Increased
(Decreased)

Amount

Revised
Budget

2022 102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

95070023 $0 $34,847 $34,847

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Program
Services

95070023 $0 $46,463 $46,463

2024 102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Sen/Ices

95070023 $0 $11,615 $11,615

Subtotals $0 $92,925 $92,925

TOTALS $117,187.50 $130,425 $247,612.50

International Institute of New England, Inc., VC# 177551-B001
05-96-095-950010-72090000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS; HHS: COMMISSIONERS OFFICE; OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER;
REFUGEE SERVICES (100% Federal Funds)

State
Fiscal
Year

Class /
Account

Class Title
Job

Number
Current
Budget

Increased
(Decreased)

Amount

Revised
Budget

2021 102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

95070005 $37,296.50 $0 $37,296.50

2022 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

95070005 $37,500 ■  $0 $37,500

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Program
Services

95070005 $37,500 $0 $37,500

2024 102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

95070005 $4,891 $0
$4,891

Subtotals $117,187.50 $0 $117,187,50

Page 2 of 3
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Refugee Health Promotion Program
SS-2021-OHE-01-REFUG (Amendment 02)

Fiscal Detail Sheet

05-95-095-950010-72090000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DERI OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS; HHS: COMMISSIONERS OFFICE; OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER;
REFUGEE SERVICES (100% Federal Funds)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2022 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

95070021

$0 $6,250 $6,250

2023 102-500731

Contracts for

Program

Services

95070021

$0 $25,000 25,000

2024 102-500731

Contracts for

Program

Services

95070021

$0 $6,250 $6,250

Subtotals $0 $37,500 $37,500

05-95-09

HUMAN

REFUGE

5-950010-72090000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
SVS; HHS: COMMISSIONERS OFFICE; OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER;
E SERVICES (100% Federal Funds)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2022
102-

500731

Contracts for

Program

Services

95070023

$0 $15,523 $15,523

2023
102-

500731

Contracts for

Program

Services

95070023

$0 $61,922 $61,922

2024
102-

500731

Contracts for

Program

Services

95070023

$0- $15,480 $15,430

Subtotals $0 $92,925 $92,925

TOTALS $117,187.50 $130,425 $247,612.50

GRAND TOTALS $234,376.00 $260,850.00 $495,226.00

Page 3 of 3
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

This Amendment to the New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program contract is by and between
the State of New Hampshire, Department'of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and
International Institute of New England, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on May 6, 2020, (Item #15). as amended on December 18, 2020, (Item #7), the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to Increase the price limitation and modify the scope of services to support
continued delivery .of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$247,612.50

•2. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit B - Amendment #2,
Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 1, to read:

1. This Agreement is funded with 100% federal funds from Administration for Children & Families,
as awarded on October 25. 2021 and December 29, 2021, by the Administration for Children
& Families; CFDA# 93.566.

4. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 2, to read:

2. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line items, as
specified in Exhibit C-1, Budget through Exhibit C-10, Budget-Amendment #2.

5. Add Exhibit C-5, Budget - Amendment #2, Exhibit C-6. Budget - Amendment #2. Exhibit C-7.
Budget-Amendment#2, ExhibitC-8, Budget-Amendment#2, ExhibitC-9, Budget-Amendment
#2 and Exhibit C-10, Budget - Amendment #2, which are attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

I

Inlernational Institute of New England, Inc. A-S-1.2 Contractor Initials
4/14/2022

SS-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-02-A02 Page1of3 Date
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

4/14/2022

Date

-DocuSlgflid by:

— 24DA037E0SE04M...

Name: Ann h. uandry

Title:
Associate commissioner

4/14/2022

Date

International Institute of New England, Inc.

DseuSlOMd by:

-FC«47COfe7M28.,.

Name: Jeffrey Thielman
Title:

President and CEO

International Institute of New England, Inc.

SS-2021 -OHE-01-REFUG-02-A02

A-S-1.2

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this offide, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

•OocuSlqntd by:

4/15/2022 '
—DocuSIgm by:

t,I

.748ri4»U94UM..,

Date Name: Robyn cuarino
Title:

Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

International Institute of New England, Inc. A-S-1.2

SS-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-02-A02 Page 3 of 3"



OocuSign Envelope ID: B1853805-9418-4EE6-9743-4D9DAFD75063

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #2

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor shall provide services and activities that promote the health and
wellness of designated Office of Refugee Resettlement (ORR)-eligible
populations by: ,

1.1.1. Providing opportunities to increase health literacy:

1.1.2. Coordinating physical health and mental health care;

1.1.3. Building capacity within communities to address mental health needs
including but not limited to help overcoming stigmas associated with
mental health care; and

1.1.4. Creating opportunities for social engagement to reduce isolation,
including but not limited to organizing wellness groups.

1.2. The Contractor shall provide services, statewide, to ORR-eligible populations to
increase access to health care and reduce gaps in services, with an emphasis
on the geographic areas of Concord, Manchester and Nashua. Services must
include, but are not limited to:

1.2.1. Physical and mental health case management.

1.2.2. Health orientations.

1.2.3. Health education.

1.2.4. Home visiting.

1.2.5. Targeted wellness groups. .

1.2.6. Health provider education.

1.3. The Contractor shall ensure all required services in 1.2 are:

1.3.1. Client-centered;

1.3.2. Trauma-informed;

1.3.3. Strengths-based; and

1.3.4. Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate (CIAS).

,  1.4. The Contractor shall provide physical health and mental health case
management services to ORR-eligible clients who require care beyond the initial
health examination, which includes, but is not limited to:

1.4.1. Scheduling and coordinating health, including mental health,
appointments.

1.4.2. Accompanying clients to health appointments.
^,— 09

Jt
SS-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-02-A02 Contractor Initials

„  4/14/2022
International Institute of New England, Inc. Page 1 of 14 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #2

1.4.3. Providing and/or facilitating the provision of transportation to and from
health appointments.

1.4.4. Ensuring appropriate interpreter services are available to clients during
health appointments with providers, as needed.

1.4.5. Assisting ORR-eligible populations to obtain appropriate health
insurance.

1.5. The Contractor shall provide uniform, continuous and timely transition of case
management services from the initial refugee health examination and/or on day
ninety-one (91) of resettlement, whichever is sooner, including all needed follow-
up care, to ensure no gaps in services and continuity of care.

1.6. The Contractor shall schedule an initial dental examination for all ORR-eligible
children 0-18 years of age within six (6) months of arrival.

1.7. The Contractor shall conduct health orientations that shall include, but are not

limited to. the following topics:

1.7.1. Navigating the U.S. health care system.

1.7.2. Health insurance, including Refugee Medical Assistance.

1.7.3. Privacy and consent laws.

1.7.4. The right to language assistance in health care settings and the role of
interpreters.

1.7.5. Transportation options for medical appointments including, but not
limited to:

1.7.5.1. Public transportation training.

1.7.5.2. Arranging Medicaid transportation.

1.7.6. Understanding the different types of health care providers including, but
not limited to: '

1.7.6.1. Primary care providers.

1.7.6.2. Specialists.

1.7.6.3. Pharmacists.

1.7.7. Understanding the different types of health care and when, where and
how to access each type including, but not limited to:

1.7.7.1. Preventive.

1.7.7.2. Urgent.

1.7.7.3. Emergency.

r—03
SS-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-02-A02 Contractor Initials

4/14/2022
International Institute of New England, Inc. Page 2 of 14 Dale ■
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #2

1.7.8. Understanding the availability of mental/behavioral health sen/ices,
including but not limited to treatment for substance use disorders, and
when, where and how to access services.

1.7.9. Scheduling, keeping and cancelling appointments.

1.7.10. What to bring to appointments.

1.7.11. Medication, including but not limited to:

1.7.11.1. The difference between prescribed medication and over-the-
counter (OTT) medication.

1.7.11.2. Refills.

1.7.11.3. Dosage instructions.

1.7.11.4. Side effects.

1.8. The Contractor shall provide appropriate interpreter services and translated
materials at ail health orientations.

1.9. The Contractor shall adapt the health orientation curriculum to accommodate
the needs of new ORR-eligible populations, and modify the curriculum as
needed, with approval from the Department.

1.10. The Contractor shall maintain documentation of individual ORR-eligible clients
who have received health orientation services, including but not limited to:

1.10.1. The individual clients who participated in a health orientation;

1.10.2. The topic(s) of orientation completed by each participant;

1.11. The Contractor shall conduct both group, defined as a minimum of two (2)
participants, and individual health orientations, including a minimum of one (1)
home visit to reinforce and clarify the information presented in the group setting,
and to address unique issues and concerns.

1.12. The Contractor shall provide solely, or in collaboration with other organizations,
health education to ORR-eligible populations. The Contractor shall:

1.12.1. Identify topics of concern in each of the various ORR-eligible
populations and prioritize topics that are most urgent or relevant on an
ongoing basis.

1.12.2. Invite and arrange for outside organizations to provide individual and/or
group health education sessions on topics within their area(s) of
expertise; which may include the topics identified in Subsection -1.12.6.
below; '

1.12.3. Schedule presenters:

1.12.4. Ensure the provision of interpreter services;

1.12.5. Notify clients of class schedules; J1"
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1.12.6. Ensure health education sessions include topics relevant to ORR-
eliglble populations that may include, but are not limited to:

1.12.6.1. Health insurance terms, coverage requirements and options,
and the enrollment process.

1.12.6.2. Disabilities including, but not limited to, autism.

1.12.6.3. Women's health including, but not limited to, domestic
violence and reproductive health.

1.12.6.4. Men's health.

1.12.6.5. Emotional Wellness.

1.12.6.6. Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender, and Questioning
(LGBTQ) health.

1.12.6.7. Oral health and hygiene.

1.12.6.8. Vision health.

1.12.6.9. Nutrition and benefits of exercise.

1.12.6.10.Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV).

1.12.6.11.Tubercu!osis risk reduction.

1.12.6.12.Fire safety.

1.13. The Contractor shall distribute satisfaction surveys at health education sessions
in order to survey clients on:

1.13.1. The usefulness of the information provided;

1.13.2. Presentation style; and

1.13.3. Other relevant information.

1.14. The Contractor shall inform and coordinate community resources for the provision
of health care services not covered by Refugee Medical Assistance (RMA) or
other funding sources.

1.15. The Contractor shall facilitate the provision of non-clinical interventions including
but not limited to wellness groups to:

1.15.1. Promote refugee wellness;

1.15.2. Reduce isolation; and

1.15.3. Prevent suicide.

1.16. The Contractor shall facilitate a minimum of three (3) wellness groups each
Contract year, utilizing an evidence-based curriculum that may include, but is
not limited to. Pathways to Wellness Community Adjustment Support Group
Training Manual and Curriculum.

SS-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-02-A02 Contractor Initials
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1.17. The Contractor shall implement the Family Strengthening Intervention for
Refugees, a home visiting family-based preventive intervention, to a minimum
of five (5) families each Contract year.

1.18. The Contractor shall support and/or assist with ORR-eligible population periodic
emotional distress screenings using evidence-based tools that may include, but
are not limited to, the Refugee Health Screener 15 (RHS-15), and communicate
results and make referrals to health care providers as needed.

1.19. The Contractor shall maintain relationships with health care providers, including
mental health providers, within the refugee resettlement network; and develop

■ and foster relationships with a minimum of four (4) health care/mental health
care providers who are not in the refugee resettlement network through:

1.19.1. Outreach;

1.19.2. Education: and

1.19.3. Meetings.

1.20. The Contractor shall ensure relationships with health care providers/mental
health providers within, and not within, the refugee resettlement network focus
on, but are not limited to:

1.20.1. Health needs and culture of ORR-eligible populations.

1.20.2. Barriers to care that may include, but are not limited to:

1.20.2.1. Language.

1.20.2.2. Cultural factors.

1.20.2.3. Transportation issues.

1.20.3. Adherence to the CDC Refugee Health Guidelines for the initial
domestic medical examination.

1.20.4. National Standards for CLAS in health and healthcare.

1.21. The Contractor shall provide education and training to ORR-eligible populations
on the availability of health Insurance through employers, the Marketplace,
expanded Medicaid and/or other financial assistance options at various stages
of resettlement, which will include, but is not limited to:

1.21.1. Assistance accessing and navigating the various health insurance
options available;

1.21.2. Assisting with health insurance enrollment applications; and/or

1.21.3. Making referrals to organizations for assistance with health insurance
applications.

1.22. The Contractor shall provide planning and evaluation assistance the
Department including, but not limited to:

SS-2021-OHE-01.REFUG-02-A02 Contractor Initials
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1.22.1. Developing and collecting satisfaction surveys distributed at
. orientations, health sessions and trainings.

1.22.2. Tracking data, including: -

1.22.2.1. Number of referrals made;

1.22.2.2. Number of training sessions and participants;

1.22.2.3. Number of consultations or point of contact with providers;

and

1.22.2.4. Number of meetings and training sessions.

1.22.3. Collecting feedback from health service providers to evaluate the
success of case management coordination, and implementing
adjustments as necessary.

1.22.4. Collecting internal feedback from staff, particularly case managers and
other case management specialists to evaluate the relevance of the
orientations to implement necessary changes leading to anticipated
improvements.

1.23. The Contractor shajl communicate the results from ORR-eligible clients' health
examinations conducted by a third party to medical providers as needed.

1.24. The Contractor shall facilitate referrals to behavioral health providers as needed.

1.25. The Contractor shall participate in virtual or. in-persori meetings with the
Department upon request.

i;26. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract management, improve results and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes.

1.27. Staffing and Training

1.27.1. The Contractor shall ensure the following staff positions to carry out the
services as specified in this Scope of Services;

T.27.1.1. Two (2) Case Managers:

1.27.1.1.1. One (1) Case Manager who shall provide
physical health case management services; and

1.27.1.1.2. One (1) Case Manager who shall provide
mental health case management services to
ORR-eligible populations with complex health
conditions.

1.27.1.2. One (1) Administrator. Responsibilities include, but are not
limited to; G—DS

jr
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1.27.1.2.1. Oversight and supervision of the two (2) Case
Managers including performing all supervisory
duties; and

1.27.1.2.2. Oversight of the reporting process and ensuring
all required reporting is complete and submitted
to the Department timely in accordance with
Section 2. Reporting Requirements.

1.28. The Contractor shall ensure staff participate in trainings on the following subject
matters:

1.28.1. Understanding health insurance coverage and enrollment requirements
on the state and federal levels in order to assist ORR-eligible
populations obtain appropriate health insurance;

1.28.2. Implementing the Family Strengthening Intervention for Refugees as
specified in Subsection 1.17; and

1.28.3. Professional development training that may include, but is not limited
,  to, the National Alliance on Mental Illness Mental Health First Aide

training, to inform practices.

2. Reporting Requirements

2.1. The Contractor shall submit semi-annual reports to the Department for reporting
periods October 1 - September 30 and March 31 - April 1 no later than fifteen
(15) days after the end of each reporting period, and upon request by the
Department. Semi-annual reports must include, but are not limited to:

2.1.1. Number of new arrivals by:

2.1.1.1. Gender;

2.1.1.2. Age;

2.1.1.3. Country of origin; and

2.1.1.4. Immigration status.

2.1.2. Number of clients receiving tuberculosis screening within the following
time frames:

2.1.2.1. Thirty (30) days of arrival;

2.1.2.2. Thirty (30) to ninety (90) days of arrival; and

2.1.2.3. Ninety (90) days or more.

2.1.3. Number receiving initial health exam within the following time frames:

2.1.3.1. Thirty (30) days of arrival;

2.1.3.2. Thirty (30) to ninety (90) days of arrival; and r—ua
jt
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2.1.3.3. Ninety (90) days of arrival or more;

2.1.4. Number of children six (6) months to sixteen (16) years of age who hiave
been screened for lead.

2.1.5. Number of children two (2) to eighteen (18) years of age scheduled for
first dental examination within six (6) months of arrival.

2.1.6. Number of clients referred to the following:

2.1.6.1. Primary care provider:

2.1.6.2. Dental care provider;

2.1.6.3. Emergency room;

2.1.6.4. Mental health provider;

2.1.6.5. Infectious disease specialist;

2.1.6.6. Vision care provider;

2.1.6.7. Hearing care provider;

2.1.6.8. HIV services;

2.1.6.9. Tuberculosis follow-up services;

2.1.6.10. Pre-natal care provider;

2.1.6.11. Other specialists as well as the other conditions identified by
the State Refugee Health Coordinator.

2.1.7. Demographic data for ORR-eligible clients served, including:

2.1.7.1. Gender;

2.1.7.2. Age;

2.1.7.3. Primary language; and

2.1.7.4. Country of origin.

2.1.8. Number of clients receiving health case management services.

2.1.9. Number of clients receiving mental health case management services.

2.1.10. Number of clients participating in a wellness groups.

,2.1.11. Number of clients receiving initial health orientation and topic(s)
covered.

2.1.12. Number of clients receiving health education and topic(s) covered.

2.1.13. Number of families participating in Farriily Strengthening Intervention
for Refugees, including:

2.1.13.1. Number of home visits completed;
J
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2.1.13.2. The topics covered during each home visit; and

2.1.13.3. Number or percentage of new ORR-eligible clients receiving
a health home visit.

2.1.14. Number of health providers receiving training.

2.1.15. Number of health case manager trainings and topic{s).

2.1.16. Number of ORR-eligible clients educated and/or referred for assistance
in obtaining appropriate health insurance when transitioning off
Refugee Medical Assistance.

2.2. The Contractor shall identify and submit the primary health related issues of
concern in each of the ORR-eligible client communities to the Department.
Primary health related issues may include, but are not limited to:

2.2.1. Diabetes.

2.2.2. Hypertension.

2.2.3. Mental health.

2.2.4. Oral health concerns.

2.3. The Contractor shall submit a final program report to the Department no later
than fifteen (15) calendar days prior to the contract completion date.

2.4. The Contractor may be requested to provide additional key data and metrics to
the Department on an as needed basis.

3. Performance Measures

3.1. The Contractor shall ensure the following performance indicators are achieved
annually and monitored on a monthly basis to measure the effectiveness of the
agreement:

3.1.1. 100% of new ORR-eligible arrivals receive health-related orientations
and/or workshops/trainings throughout the contract period, with priority
given to those who have been in the United States for two (2) years or
less;

3.1.2. 100% of ORR-eligible clients who require care beyond the initial
medical examination receive case management services, including
mental health case management services, in accordance with
Subsection 1.4;

3.1.3. 100% of adult ORR-eligible clients receive assistance accessing
affordable health insurance upon arrival;

3.1.4. 10.0% of adult ORR-eligible clients are educated on the need to obtain
appropriate health insurance when transitioning off of Refugee Medical
Assistance;

SS-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-02-A02 Conlractor Initials
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3.1.5. All written materials and resources produced are translated;

3.1.6. Interpreter services are coordinated consistently and regularly
throughout the contract period;

3.1.7. Results of the satisfaction surveys distributed at each orientation,
workshop and training demonstrate 80% of ORR-eligible clients have
increased knowledge and understanding of;

3.1.7.1.' Accessing and navigating the US Health System in order to
obtain health insurance;

3.1.7.2. Scheduling and keeping health appointments; and

3.1.7.3. Utilizing public, Medicaid and/or other appropriate
transportation to get to and from medical and mental health
appointments.

3.1.8. Results of the satisfaction surveys distributed at each orientation,
workshop and training demonstrate 80% of ORR-eligible adult clients
gained knowledge on a minimum of one (1) health topic.

3.1.9. A minimum of three (3) Wellness Groups are facilitated each contract
year;

3.1.10. A minimum of five (5) families are enrolled in and receive the Family
Strengthening Intervention for Refugees each contract year;

3.1.11. A minimum of four (4) new relationships are established with providers,
outside of the refugee resettlement network each contract year.

3.1.12. A minimum of four (4) meetings with providers within the refugee
■  resettlement network are conducted each contract year.

3.2. The Contractor shall develop and submit a corrective action plan for any
performance measure{s) not on target to be achieved annually, in accordance
with Subsection 3.1, to the Department on a quarterly basis until such time all
measures are achievable annually, that must include:

3.2.1. The barrier{s) to achieving the measure(s) annually; and

3.2.2. A detailed plan to achieve the measure(s) annually that must include,
but is not limited to, a timeline.
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Additional Terms

3.3. impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

3.3.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities and
expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

3.4. Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services (CLAS)

• 3.4;1. The Contractor shall submit and comply with a detailed description of
the language assistance services they will provide to persons with
limited English proficiency and/or hearing impairment to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10)
days of the contract effective date.

3.5. Credits and Copyright Ownership

3.5.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Contract shall include the' following statement,-The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services."

3.5.2. All materials produced or purchased under the contract shall have prior
approval from the Department before printing, production, distribution
or use.

3.5.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all original
materials produced, including, but not limited to:

3.5.3.1. Brochures.

3.5.3.2. Resource directories.

3.5.3.3. Protocols or guidelines,

3.5.3.4. Posters.

3.5.3.5. Reports.

3.5.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
contract without prior written approval from the Department.

C—D8
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3.6. Operation of Facilities; Compliance with Laws and Regulations

3.6.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty
upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or the
provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the
performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure said
license or permit, and will at all times,comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees
that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall comply with all
rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the
Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and shall be in
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

3.7. Eligibility Determinations

3.7.1. If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals
such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with
applicable federal and state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines,
policies and procedures.

3.7.2. Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by the
Departnrient for that.purpose and shall be riiade and remade at such
times as are prescribed by the Department.

3.7.3. In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the
Contractor shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services
hereunder, which file shall include all information necessary to support
an eligibility determination and, such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with
all forms and documentation regarding eligibility determinations that the
Department may request or require.

3.7.4. The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder,
as well as individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing
regarding that determination. The Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out an
application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be
informed of his/her right to a fair hearing in accordance with Department
regulations.

.  OS
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4. Records

4.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

4.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all Income received
or collected by the Contractor.

4.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all
such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department,
and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and
original evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders,
vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind
contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested
or required by the Department.

4.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each
such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such
services.

4.2. During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination,
excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of the maximum
number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price
limitation hereunder, the Contractand all the obligations of the parties hereunder
(except such obligations as, by the terms of the Contract are to be performed
after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the termination of the
Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if,, upon review of the Final
Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the
Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its
discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are disallowed or to
recover such sums from the Contractor.

5. Termination Report/Transition Plan

5.1. In the event of early termination of the Agreement, the Contractor shall, within
15 days of notice of early termination, develop and submit to the State a
Transition Plan for services under the Agreement, including but not limited to,
identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services under the
Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs. .—d#

I jt
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5.2. The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide
detailed information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to.
any information or data requested by the State related to the termination of the
Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing communication and
revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

5.3. In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to
clients receiving services under the Agreement are transitioned to having
services delivered by another entity including contracted providers or the State,
the Contractor shall provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of services in
the Transition Plan.

5.4. The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected
Individuals about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed
communications in its Transition Plan submitted to the State as described

above.

6. Exhibits Incorporated

6.1. All. Exhibits D through H and J are attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

6.2. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in
compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in accordance
with the attached Exhibit I. Business Associate Agreement, which has been
executed by the parties and is incorporated by reference herein.

6.3. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security
Requirements, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.
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Cemnlsslontf

Lorl A. W<ivtf

Deputy CooieUnisAer

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, NH 03301^7
603-271.9200 1400452-334$ ExL 9100

Fex: 603-2714912 TOD.'Aectii: 1400-735-2964 wwrw^hbt-oh^ov

November 3.2020

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Coricord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Office of the Commissioner, to
amend existing Sole Source contracts with the vendors listerf below for services and activities to
-promote the health and.well-being of.refugees resettled in.New.Hampshire..by.lncreasing.the total,
price limrtatlon by $9,375 from $225,000 to $234,375 and by extending the compleUon dates from
August 14. 2023 to September 30. 2023 effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100%
Federal Funds.

The original contracts were approved by Governor and Council on May 6.2020, Item #15.

Vendor Name Vendor

Code

Area Served Current

Amount .

increaae

^Decrease)
Rovlaed

Amount

Ascentria

Community
Services. Inc.

222201 Concord. NH $112,500 $4,687.50 $117,167.50

International

Institute of New

England, Inc.
177551

Manchester.

NH
$112,500 $4,687.50 $117,187.50

Total: $226,000 $9,376 $234,375

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2021, and are
anticipated to be available In Slate Fiscal Years 2022, 2023. and 2024. upon the availability end
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget
line'items within-the price llrhitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the
Budget Office. If needed and Justified.

05-95-9M220i0-79220000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF. HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER, OFFICE OF HEALTH EQUITY.
REFUGEE SERVICES

Tht of HtoUh ond Wuflio« Struictt'Mittlw is lojoln (^mmundUs end/amllitt
•  in pmuiduijcppc/'lunitles/of cilitens 10 ocAiVpc A<orUi cd indtptndtnco.
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Hl» Excellency. Governor Chrtstopher T. Sununu
end ttw'Honorebte Council

Page 2 of 3

State
Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased
(Decreased)
Amount

Revised
Budget

2021 102-500731
Contracts for
Prog Svc

42200012 $65,421 $9,375 $74,796

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
42200012 $75,000 $0 $75,000

2023 102-500731.
Contracts for

Prog Svc
42200012 $75,000 $0 $75,000

2024 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
42200012 $9,579 so $9,579

Total $226,000 $9,375 $234,376

EXPUNATIQN

This request is Sote Squrce because the contracts were originally approved as sole
source and'MC>P~150 requires any subsequent amendments to be labelled as sole source. ThT
Contractors listed above are the only Contractors that possess the comprehensive client
information and cultural expertise required to manage client cases and address the complex,
Interrelated health and social needs of each individual.

The purpose of this request is to add additional funding for State Fiscal Year 2021 and
change the contract period date from August 14, 2023 to September 30, 2023 to align with the
federal grant period. The Federal Grant Office of Refugee Resettlement requested the contracts
align with the awarded funding and funding period.

Refugees who have resettled to Now Hampshire will be served through these contracts.
Approximately 500 Individuals will be served over the duration of the entire contract terms.

The Contractors v^ll ensure servioes include scheduling and coordinating medical and
mental health appointmerits; accompanying clients to medical appointments; providing and
facilitating transportation to appointments; and ensuring interpreter services are acquired for all
appointments, as necessary.

The Department will monitor contracted services using, the followirig performance
measures:

•  100% of ail he^th-related orientations and workshops/trainings shall be provided
throughout the project period, as necessary.

•  100% of newty arrived refugees and those'who have been in the United States two
(2) years of less shall be prioritized.

•  100% of all written materials and r;esources produced shall be identified and
prioritized for translation as applicable.

•  100% of all Interpreter services shall be coordinated consistently and regularly
throughout the project period.

•  80% of refugees shall express an increased knowledge about health Insurance
'  requirements Including how and where to enroll in health insurance.
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Hlft ExceOency. Oovemor Chflstopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Coundl

Page 3 of 3

«  80% of adults shall express Increased knowledge about accessing and navigating
the U.S. health care system.

•  80% of adults win know how to make and keep medical appointments.

•  80% of adults will know how to use public. Medicaid, and/or appropriate
transportation to get to medical appointments.

•  80% of adults shall demonstrate Increased knowledge about at least one health
topic.

•  100% of clients wHh health needs beyond initial exam shall be scheduled for follow-
up care.

•  100% of clients with mental health needs beyond Initial exam shall be scheduled
for follow-up care within 60 days of arrival.

As referenced in Exhibit A of the original contracts, the parties have the option to extend
the agreements for up to three (3) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The
Department is exercising its option to renew services for one <1) month and fifteen (15) days of
the three (3) yeare available.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, the Department
will be out of compliance with the Office of Refugee Resettlements request to align the funding
and contract period with the grant. Refugees with complex health conditions may not receive the
follow-up medical care they need In a timely and culturally and linguistically appropriate manner,
ar^d refugees may not gain the knowledge and skills they need to navigate the U.S. health care
system Independently and to manage their health and health conditions.

Area sen/ed: Statewide \

Source of Funds: Administration for Children and Families 100% CFDA# 93.576
FAIf^ORX0280.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori Shibinette
Commissioner
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH CENTER CONTRACT AMENDMENTS

SFY 2016 FINANCIAL DETAIL

05-95-95-422010-79220000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, D6PT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER, OFFICE OF HEALTH EQUITY, REFUGEE SERVICES
100% Federal Funds

Vendor#222201

Slate Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current /Vnount increase ((decrease} Revised Amouni

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 42200012 i .  32.812.00 s 4,687.50 37.499.50

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Proqram Services 42200012 s 37.500.00 s -
37,500.00

2023 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 42200012 s 37.500.00 s 37.500.00

2024 102/500731 Conlractt lor Prooram Services 42200012 i 4.688.00 s 4.688.00

Sut> Total s 112.500.00 3 4.687.50 117.187.50

Inlematlofial Institute of New Enqtand. Inc. Vendor#177551

Staie Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title •- Job Number Current Amount Increase {Decrease) Revised Amount

2021 102/500731 Contracts lor Prooram Sen^s 42200012 % 32.609.00 3 4.887.50 37,296.50

2022 102/500731 Contracts (or Prooram Services 42200012 $ 37.500.00 3 •
37.500-00

2023 102/500731 Controcts (or Proomm Services 42200012 S 37.500.00 3 37.500,00

2024 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 42200012 3 4,891.00 3 4.891.00

Sub Total 42200012 S 112,500.00 3 4.687.50 117.167.50

I  OvarellTotall S 225.000.00lT 9.375.001 S 204.37S.00l

Aitac^imenl • Ouresu o> Dehsvioril HeelUt
Flrwwia] Oetai)
Fsgft 1 D< 1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the New Harnpshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

This 1" Amendment to the New Hampshire Refugee Health Promollon Program contract (hereinafter
referred to as "Amendment #1") is by and between the Slate of New Hampshire, Department of Health
and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and International Institute of
New England. Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit with a place of business at 2
Boylston Street 3rd Floor Boston, MA. 02116.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on May 6. 2020. (Item 15). the Contractor agreed to perfoim certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified In the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 17 and Exhibit A Section 1.2, the
Contract may be amended upon svritten agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and
Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement and increase the price limitation to
support continued delivery of these services: and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7. Completion Date, to read:

September 30. 2023.

2. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.8. Price Limitation, to read:

$117,187.50.

3. Modify Exhibit C-1. Budget Sheet by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit C-1. Budget Sheet
Amendment #1, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

International Instkuto of New England, Inc. Amendmeni Contractor initials

SS-2021.0HE-01-REFUG-02-A01 PagelolS Date 1^/9/7020
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Heaith Promotion Program

All terms and conditions of the Contract not inconsistent vvith this Amendment remain In full force and
effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

11/19/2020

Date

00(11 Slcn*4 fry.

Ann H. N. Landry

fy}ame;Ann H. N. Landry

Associate commissioner

U/9/2020

Date

International Institute of New England. Inc.

-  . - - tAti. ...

Name: Jeffrey ihielman

president & CEO

Inlernational Inslitule ol New England. Inc. Amehdmenl #1

SS-2021-OHE-0VREFUG-02-A01 Page 2 ol 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

11/25/2020

Oocvtlo'xd fry;

OiCARQ2t)7CU£..

Dale Name:Catherine pinos

Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendrhenl was approved by the Govemor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: ̂  (date of imeeiing)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Dale Name:

Title:

Iniernailonal institulo of New England. Inc. Amendmenl P)

SS-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-02-A01 Page 3 of 3
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Lori A. Shiblnertc
Commiuioncr

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER

!29 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
603-271-9200 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9200

Fsx; 603.271-4912 TOD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

March 20. 2020

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Office of the Commissioner, to enter
into sole source agreements with the vendors listed below to provide the services and activities to
promote the health and well-being of refugees resettled in New Hampshire, in an amount not to exceed
$225,000. effective August 15. 2020 or upon date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

Vendor Name Vendor

Number

Location Contract Amount

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. 222201 Concord, NH $112,500

International Institute of New
England, Inc.

177551 Manchester. NH $112,500

Total: $225,000

Funds are available in State Fiscal Year 2021 and anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years
2022 and 2023 and 2024, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budgets, writh authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances
between state fiscal years through the Budget Office if needed and justified.
05-95-95-422010 79220000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER, OFFICE OF HEALTH EQUITY, REFUGEE SERVICES

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title Job Number
\

Total Amount

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42200012 $65,421

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42200012 $75,000

■2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42200012 $75,000

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42200012 $9,579

1

1
&

Total $ 225,000



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
And the Honorable Council
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EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because the vendors listed above are the only entities who. possess
the comprehensive client information and cultural expertise required to manage client cases and address
the complex inteirelated health and social needs of each individual. Moreover, because Health
'Promotion ser\^ces build upon and flow from the services provided under the Reception and Placement
and Case Coordination grants, contracting with these entities ensures that no clients fall through the
cracks, and that there is continuity of care with no gaps in services.

The purpose of this request is to provide services and activities that promote the health and
wellbeing of refugees resettled in New Hampshire. Services include, but are not limited to health
orientations- health education; medical and mental health case management; and health provider
education. The services are provided in an effort to reduce gaps in services and to ensure refugees
obtain all necessary medical and mental health services beyond the initial health screening.

Approximately 500 individuals will be served over the duration of the entire contract term.
The Contractors will ensure services include scheduling and coordinating medical and merital ..

health appointments; accompanying clients to medical appointments; providing and facilitating ,
transportation to appointments; and ensuring Initerpreter services are acquired for all appointments, as
necessary.. ..

The Contractors will be providing these, services to refugees; resettled asylees; and secondary
migrants who have been In the United States for five years or less, with a focus on individuals who have
been in the United States two (2) years or less as well as any victims of trafficking. (SiV)'s or other (ORR)
designated eligible recipients arriving in the service areas: .

Refugee Health Promotion services provided by the Contractors, will
(1) " Promote the health literacy of refugees to enable them to access and navigate the U.S.

Health Care System independently:

(2) Ensure refugees "obtain all needed medical and mental health services in a timely and
culturally appropriate manner; .

(3) Increase refugee access to affordable health care over the long term; and
■ (4) Assist refugees l)ecome self-sufficient and decrease jthe need for public assistance. ■

The Department w\\ monitor the effectiveness of the Contractor and the delivery of services
required under this agreement using the following performance measures:'

o  100% of all health-related orientations and workshops/trainings shall be provided
throughout the project period, as necessary,

o  100% of all newly arriyed refugees and those who have been in the United States two (2)
years of less shall be prioritized,

o  100% of all written materials and resources produced shall be identified and prioritized for
translation as applicable,

o  100% of all interpreter services shall be coordinated consistently and regularly throughout
the project period.

. o 80% of refugees shall express an increased knov^fledge about health insurance
requirements including how and where to enroll in health insurance.

o 80% Number of adults with Increased knowledge about accessing and navigating US
Health system



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Horx>rat>le Council
Page 3 of 3

o 80% Number of adults who know hoW' to make and keep health appointments
o 80% Number of adults who can use public) Medlcaid and/or appropriate transportation

to get to medical appointments

, o 60% Nurnber of adults who demonstrate increased knowledge about at least one health
topic

o  100% Number of clients with health needs beyond initial exam scheduled for follow-up
care

.  o 100% Number of arrivals with mental health needs scheduled for appointment within 60
days of arrival

AS referenced in Exhibit-C-I. Revisions to Standard Contract Language of these agreements
the parties have the option*to extend contract services for up to three (3) additional years,
upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agr^ment of the parties and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council. .

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, refugees with complex
health conditions may not receive the follow-up medical care they need in a timely. cultura»y and
linguistically appropriate manner. The inability of refuges to access necessa7 health care could result
in a lack of understanding and managing their health and health conditions.

, Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: Administration for Children and Families 100% CFDA# 93.578 FAIN#
■  In the event that the Federal (or Other) Funds ttecome no.longer available, General Funds will

not be requested to support this program. '

■  ■ . " \

Respectfully submitted.

.  Lori A. Shiblnette

■ • Commissioner

The Department of Health and Hnmon Servicee' Mission is to Join conimiinilies and /omiUes
in providing opportunities for dliuns to achie<.t henllfi and independence.



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH CENTER CONTRACT AMENDMENTS
SPY 2016 FINANCIAL DETAIL

06-95-95-422010-79220000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEFT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER, OFFICE OF H^LTH EQUITY. REFUGEE SERVICES
100% Federal Funds

Ae^*nlria nnmmitnih/ Inr. VendOf #222201

State Fiscal

Year
Class'/Account Class Title Job Number

Total Contract

Amount

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Proqram Services 42200012 $ 32.812.00

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 37.500.00

2023 102/500731 Contracts for Proqram Services 42200012 S 37,500.00

2024 102/500731 Contracts for Proqram Services 42200012 S 4.6S8.00

Sub Total $ . 112,500.00

Internationa Institute of New Enoland. Inc. Vendor#177551

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number

Current Modified

Budget

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Proqram Services 42200012 $ 32.609.00

2022 102/500731 Contracts for'Proqram Services 42200012 $ 37.500.00

2023 102/500731 •  Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 37,500.00

2024 102/500731 Contracts for Proqram Services 42200012 $ 4,891.00

Sub Total .  42200012 $ 1.12.500.00

Overall Totall $ 225.000.001

Attachment • Bureau of Behavioral Health
Financial Detail
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rOKM NUiMHKH P-37 (Version 12/11/IOIV)

SnbJccC New Hiimpsluio Rolugce Ilenlih Promotion Piognim (SS-202l-OHli-0l-RUFUO-02)
Kftticc: Urn agrccnicnJ mid Ml of iis annchmcois slioU bcconvc public upon subinissioii JoOovcmor had

Pjceci)ii« Council for «|iprovnl. Any information that is private, confidential or pfoprictar>' must
■  be dearly idenlified to the ancncy nird agreed to in uTititigpriono signing tliccoutnicl.

ACKtEMtNT

Tl« State ofNew Hampshire bikI Uic Controcior licrchy mutually agree as follows:
CF.NF.RAI. PROVISIONS

1. iOEMincAjiurs.

I.r State Agency Name

New Hmupshirc Depatlineai of Henlih and 1 luman Services

1.2 Slate Agency Address

129 Pleasant Sifcei

Concord, NH 03301-3X57

1.3 Contractor Name

hucmalionni Insliimc of New pjiglflnci; liK.

1.4 Coniraeior Address

2 Ooyiston Sireei 3rd Floor
Dosion, MA, 02116

1.5 ContmclorPliOnC
Niintbcr

(617/695.9990

1.6 Account Number

05-095-042-7922000-

42200012

|.7Coniplclion Dale

August H. 2023

I.S Price Kiiiiiiniion

1 12,500 1

1.9 Contmctinfi 0/TiCcr for State Agency

Nnlhan D. While, Director

1.10 Stole Agency Telcplmne Number

(60.3)271-9631

1.12 Nninc and Title of Coiitraelor Signaioty
Jeffrey Thielman. President and'CEO '

l.»3 StateAgeiieaSipnaiiire
1.14 Name oiitl Tjil.c'of Sliiic Agency Sigiuilory ,

i:i5 Approval by iheN.M. Depaitmcnt of Adinlnistraiion. Division of Personnel (ijupphchbh)
gy. Diiccior, On;

1.16 ApprOVftl by llic AllorncyOcn^UFwih. Siibsianccaiid Execulidii)

1.17 Apprn\*nl iX ihctoovcnior and Executive Council fi/'w''Co/'/t9

CitCrtem^ftr:: G/tCMccling Date:

Pngc 1 or4
Conlrnctor Iniliflls j /

Date



2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Smie of New
Hampsiiire, acUng through tiie agency identified in block 1.1
("State"), eogagej conlrnctor identified in block I..1
("Contraclor ') to perfonn, and the Contmcior shall pcrfornt, the
nnrk or sole of goods, or both, idcntined and more jwriicularly
described in the attached EXI-jlDIT D VNiiich is iiKorporaied
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any. provision of this Agreement to the
conlrar)', artd subject to the appro>'al of the Oovcrnor and
Executive Cotmcil ofihc'Staie of New Untiipshirc, ifttpplicoble,
this AgreenKiit, otid all obligations of the p.trties liereundcr. shall
becontc effective on lite dote the Gostmor and Executive
Council npprove this Agreenteni ns indicated in block 1.17;
unless no such approval is rc<|nired, in which cnse the Agreement
.shall becontc cITcctlvc on tiic dale the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Conimctor commences the Services prior to the
l-ffeciivc Dale, all Services perfoniied by the Conirtctor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed nt the sole risk of the
Cottiracior, and in the event that (his Agreement does not become
.cfrcctive, lite State sh.ill itove no liftbiliiy to the Contractor,
including wiiltonl iiinitalion, ifiny ubligiition to pay the
Contiactor for any costs iiicnircd or Services pcrfonned.
Conlincior must complete nil Scr\'iccs by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF ACKEEMENT.
Nottvithslanding any provision of this, Agreemcm to the
coniraiy. nil oblifiniions of the State liereuniler, including,
wiihoul Iiinitalion, (he continuance of payments hcreondcf, are
coiilingcnl upon the nvaiinbility nnd continued appropriation of
fmicis nlTccicd by any state or federal legislative or e.vccntivc
action that reduces, eliminates ur otlicrwisc modifies the
ftpprcprimitvi Or availability of funding for this Agreemcm nnd
the Scope for Services provided.in EXHIBIT B, in witolc or in
pad. in no event shall the State be liable for any payments
licrcundcr in excess of snch available appropriated fnnds. In the
event of n reduction or termination of tippropriaicd ftind.c, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment tmiil snch funds
bccoiiK available, ifever, nod shnll hnve the right to rctlncc or
terminate the Scl^•iccs under this Agreement immc<[iately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or icnntnaiiojt.
TIse.State shall not be required to irattsfcr funds from niiy other
account or sourccio the Account idctiiificd in block',1.6 In the
event funds in (hat Account are reduced or unavailable..

5. CON'I KACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAViMENT.

5.1 Tiic contract price, mctltod of payment, end terms of payment
are identified and, more padicularly described in EXHIDi r C
which is iitconx)ni(cd herein by reference.
5.2 The paymenl by.the Stale of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete rcimbnrscniciii to (lie Contractor for all
«xi)cnses, of whatever nature iiKurrvd by the Contractor In the
perfonnnncc hereof, nnd shall be the only nitd the complete

compensation to cIk Conlrnclor for the Scrvtccs. The Sinic shall.
Iiave no liability to ilie Contractor other than the contract price. •
5.3 The State reserves the' right to offset from any nmounis
ottierwisc paj-nble to tlw Conlracior under tliis Agreement those
liqiiidoied amounts required or pennitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80;7< or any other provision oflaw."
,5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement .to the
contrary, and noiwiiltsianding imexpecicd circumstances, in no
event sliall tl»c total of all paymenis 'authorized, or actually made
hcretmdcr, c.xcced the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. CO.MPLIANCE DV CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND RECULA'l IONS/EQUAL K^IPLOVMENT
OPPORTUNITA',

6.1 In conncctiorj with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shnll comply with all npplicnble statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities wltich. impose any obligation or duty upon, tlic
Contractor, including, but not limited to. civil rights and equal
employment opportuniiy laws. In addition, iftlns Agreement is
funded in'any part by tnoniesofihc United States, the Contractor
siinll comply with oil fedcrnt executive orders, rules, regulations
and si.iiuics, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or iIk United Slates issue to implement these regulations,
rite Contractor.shall also compl)' with nil applicable intellectual
property laws,-
<5.2 During the term of this Agrccnvcnt, the Contmcior shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
bccmise of race, color, religion, creed, nge, se.v, handicap, sexna!
oricniniion, or national origin and will lake affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6^3.1 lie Contractor agrees to pcnnit the State or United States
ncccss to any of the Conirhcior's books, records and accounts for
the purpose ofasccTtaining compliance with oil rules, rvgulaiiotis
nnd orders, niKl (he covenants, terms nnd condil'ions of (his
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 TIte Contractor shall at its own e.vpcnse provide all personnel
nccc.sviry to perform the Services. Tlic Conlrnclor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Scr\*iccs shall be' qualified to
l>crfonn llic Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise atiilx>ri«d to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the icnn of
this Agreement, and for a period of .si.x (6) months after the
Completion Dale in block l.7, the Coniractor shall not hire, and
shall not |>ci-mii any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporntion witti whom It is engaged in a combined effort to
perfonn lite Services to hire, any person wlio is e Stale employee
or official, who is materially invoUrd- in the procurement,
ndminisiraiion or perromtancc of this Agrcemcnl. This
provision shall survive terntinniion of (his Agreeincni.
7.3 Tlie Contracting Officer sjKcificd in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the .St.Me's rcprcseniaii\-c. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agrccnicnl, the
Contracting Officer's decision shnll be final for the State.

Pnge2oN
Conlracior Initials

Date



8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of (lie fotlomng nets or omissions or the
Conttftcior simll eonsiiliiie nn eveni of defniiH hereunder ("Fveiit
ofDefauh"):
8.1.1 Toilure to. perfonn (he Services saiisfnctorily ur on
schedule;

8.1.2 r>llure lo subnni any rcporl required hcrciiitdcr; nitd/or
8.13 railure lo perrorm any othercoveiumi. term orcondition of
tins Agrcenienr.
8.2 Upon the occurrerrce of any Event ofOefouli, the Stritc may
take nny one, ur more, or nil. of (lie following nciions;
8.2.1 give the Contmctor n 'wrilteivnoiice specifying the Event of
Derniilt fliKl requiring it to be remedied within, in tlic absence of
a greater or lesser spccificMion of time, ihin) (30) days from the
dale ofihe notice; and iflhe Event ofneroiili is not timely cnrctl,
lemtinaie this Agreentcnt, effective two (2) days nfler giving the
Contractor notice of tcnninatibn;
8.2.2 give the Conlractor a written iwlice specifying tiie Event of
Dcfnolt flnd stispcnding nil payments to be made uixicr this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
whicli would oihenvise nccriic 10 the Conlractor riming ihc
period from liic date of such notice until such limc.ns the Sinic
deicnnincs that the Contractor lias cured the EstoI of Default

shall never be paid lo the Conlractor;
8.2.3 give the Coniniciof a written notice specifying the Event of
Dernult and set ofl'against nny mlier obligations the vStaic may
owe lo the Conlractor any elamagcs the Stale sulTcrs by reason of

, nny Event of Default; and/or
8.2.d give the Contractor a written notice specif)'lng the Event of
Dcfnuli,-' treat the Agrccnicni as brcacltcri, terminate ibc
Agreenicni nntl pursue any of its remedies nt law or In equity, or
botif..
8.3. No failure by the State to enforce nny provisions hereof afler
any Event of Default shall be deemed a v\-niverof its rights with
rcgnni to that Event of Dcrnult, or nny subsequent Event of
I)cfftuli. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default sball
be deemed a wniver of the-right of Ihc Slate to ctiforcc each and
all of the provisions hereof upon nny further or other Event of
Defnuli on the pan of the Conirnctor.

St.lERiMINATlON.

9.1 Notwiilistanding paragraph 8, the State may, ni its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement.for any reason, in wliole or
in part, by Ihiny (30) days vwilicn notice to the Comrnctor that
the State Is e.vercising its option to (crminaie the Agreement.
9.2 Jii the event of on early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than ihe completion of (Ik Scrx-ices, iIk
Conirftctbr shnll, at the Slate's discretion, deliver to ilic
Contracting OfTtcer, not Inter than fineen (I .S) da)-s nner the dale
of Icnnination, a report ("Tcrntinalion Report*!) describing in
detail all Services pcrfoniKd, and iIk contract price earned, to
and liKludIng the 'date of terminniion. Tlie fonh. subject matter,
cuiilciit, nnd mmibcr of copies of iIk Tcnninallon Rvpnri slull
be iricnikal (ir (iiose of any l-'inat Kcpon described in the attnclKcl
EX! tIDIT B. In addition, nt the State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 dR>-s of notice of early ienHln.ation, develop and

Page

submit to the Stale a 'I'ransiiion I'lan for services uiKle'r the

Agreement.

10. l)ATA/ACC:ESS/C0iNFil)ENriALII\7

PRESERVAIION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the xrord ''duia" shnll mean all
inform.ntion and things developed or obtained during the

. pcrforimancc of. or acquired or developed by reason of, (his
Agreement, including, but not limited to. all siudics, repoils,
rdcs, fonnulac, surxxys. maps, cliarts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorhl rcprodiictious. drawings, analyses, graphic
rcprcscmaiions, computer programs, computer priritonts, notes.-

,  leurre, mcnKraiKl.'x, papers, nnd documents, nil whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and nny property which has been received from
the State or purchased xviih.rniids provided tor that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the properly of the State, and
shall be relumed to the Stale upon demand or upon icmtinaiion .
of this Agreement for nny reason.
10.3 Coofidcniiiilily ofdatn shall be gox'cnicd by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires'
prior xvriiicn approval bfthe Stale.

1 1. CONTRACTOR'S RELAl ION TO THE STATE. In the

}Krfurmaiice of lliis Agreement (he Cotiiractnr is in all respects
an indeiKiidcm conlractor, nnd is neither an agent nor an -
employee of Ihc State. Neither the Contractor nor wiy of its
officers, employees, agents or mcnibcis shall hax-e authority to
bind the .State or receive any hcnefii.s, workers' compensaiion or
other emoluments provided by the Stale to its employees.

12. ASSICNMENT/DKI.ECAriO.N/SHDCONTRACTS.
12.1 The Conlractor shnll not assign, or.olltcrxvisc transfer any
interest in (his Agrcetncnt xviiliom the prior xxTitien notice, xvhicli .
shall be provided to the State nt least nfleen (15) days prior 10
the assignment, ami a written consent of tltc State. For punroscs
of this .paragraph, a Change of-Control shall constitute
assignment. "(!hangc of Conlroi" means (a)' merger,
consolidation, or a tmnsaction or series of related transactions in

.xxliich ft third party, together xx-iilt its nR'iliaies, becomes the
direct x>r indirect oxviicr nf fiHy percent (.^0%) or tttore of the
x'oiing sh.ares or similar eqtiiiy interests, or combined voting .
power of (he Contractor, or(b) the sale of all or subsianiially nil
of the assets of the Conirnctor.

12.2'Noik of Ihc Services slinll be stibconiractcri by Ihc
Cloiitractof xviilioui prior xvriiien notice nnd consent of the State. ^
The State is etitiilcd lo copies of all siibconli-acis aixl nssigumeni
ngrecmeiil.s nnd shall not be bound hy any provisions conlaincri'
in a siibcotiirnct or an assigmitcnt agreement to which it is not n
pany.

13: INDEMNIFICATION. Unlessothcrxvisecxempieri by Invy, .
(he Conirnctor sliall indemnify and hold hamtless the State, its
officers and cnijdoyces, from und iigninst any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or pro|Krty damagc.s,
patent or copyrigln infringement, or other claims asserted against
(he Stale, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or xvhich
may be cininted lo arise out of) the acts or omission of iIk
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Contractor, or subcpmracior^,-incKidiny but not limitrd to ilw
ucjjligcncc, reckless or iiiicniiotwl coiiclucl. The Stnte siinll nol
be liable for niiy costs iiicurred by the Conlmctor nrisini; under
this parajiraph 13. Noivvlihstnndingthe rorcfioirte.ttoiliinu herein
contnined shall be dectned to consiihuc n vvrtivcrorihc sovereign
innnimiiy of the Sintc, >vhich iminnniiy is hcrtby reserved to the
Sinic. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall $itr\*ivc iltf
tennifulioo of Ihis Agrccnicni.

14. insurance. .

14.1 The Contractor shnll, at its sole e.spense. obtain and
continCiously nuinlttin in force, rwtd shall require any
siibcontroeiof or ossignee to obtain and niaiiuain in force, the
following insnrmKc:
14.1.1 commercial general liability Insurance agoinsi all clninis
of bodily injury', death or property dnmagc, lit nnwnois of not
less titan $1,000,000 peroccttrrcncc and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and
14.1.2 special cause ofloss coverage form covering all property
subject to snbparagrnph 10.2 hercirr, in an oinouni i>ol less ihnn
SCVoofihc whole replacement value of the properly.
14.2 The policies described,in siibparagfapli N.l herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by itic N.l I. Dcpflilmcnl of insurance; and
issited by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampsliirc.,
14.3 The' Coniracior shall furnish to the Contracting Ofliccr
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a ccnincatc($) of
insumnce for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Comracior shall also furnish to the Coiiirnciing Officer idciili fled
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, ccilificate(s) of iiisurnncc
for all rene»val(s) of insurance required under this Agrcccnciil no
later than ten (10) days prior to. the e.vpiraiion d.nic of each
insurance policy.' The ccnificftic($) of Insumncc and any
renewals thereof shall be atiaclrc'd and arc incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS'CO.MPENSATTON.
1.5.1 Uy signing Ihis agreement, the Contrnctor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in contpliancc with or exempt
from, the requiircnicnis of N.M. RSA chapter 281-A ( 'IVorkas'
C.oiiti*cnxQtion"}.
15.2 To ilic cxiciii the Cotnractor is subject to the requirements
of N.M. RSA chapter '281-A. Ciontraclor slialh mnintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and mainiain,
payment of Workers' Compen-solion in connection with
activities which tlie person proposes to undertake pursuant to ihis
Agreement. The Coniinclor shall fiirnish the Contracting Ofliecr
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proofofWoikers'
Contpensntion in ihe inaimer described in N.H. RSA clupicr
281-A and any applicable rcnewnl(s) ihereor, ulticlt shall be
atlaeltcd and arc incorporated herein by reference. Tlic Staie
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation prcniiunis or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or nuy" subcontractor or employee of Contrnctor,
which might arise under applicable State of New llampshiiv
Workers' Compensation laws In conncciion with the
pcrfonnancc of the Services under this Agrecntcm.

16. NOTICE. Any miiice by a party hereto to the otirer party
shall be deemed to hove been duly delivered or given at the lime
of mailing by ccrtiricd mail, postage prepaid," in a United States
Posi Office cddre.ssed to the p.artics at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENU.MENT. This Agreement inny be nmcnded, waived
or discharged oiily by rm instrument in writing signed by the

.parlies hereto and only after approval of such nmendnteni,
w.iiver or discharge by il>e Governor and'Rxccutlvc Council of
tlw' State of New 1 lanipshirc unless no such approval is required
uudcr ilie circumstances pursiiani to Snne law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shnll
be governed, interpreted and consimed in accordance with the
laws of the Stale of New Hamp.shirc, and is binding tipon and
inures to the benefit ofihc parties and their r<5pecti\-c successors
and assigns. Tlie wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by'the panics to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor ofanyparty.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
niainlnined in New I lampshirc Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction lliereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict
between the terms of Ihis F-37 form (as modified in EXHIDIT
A) nml/or ntiaclimcnis and aincndineiii thereof, the tcnns of the
l'07 (as modified in EXl ilOIT A) shall control. -

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parlies hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
consirued to confer'any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings ihronghotii the Agreement ore
for refereiice purjmses only, aird iIk words contnined therein
shall in no way be licld tu explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
iiitcrpretKlioh, eonslruction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the nliochcd EXHIfllT A arc incorporated
herein hy reference.

23. SEVERAOILITV. In the event anyofthc provisions of this
Agreement arc l>eld by n court of coni|Xienl jurisdiction to be

. contrary to any stale or federal law, the remniiiing provisions of
ihis Agreement will remain in full force and efrect.

24. ENTIRE ACREEiMEN I'. This Agreement, which may be
executed in n niiinher of eounicqjarts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agrceincm and
mulcrsianding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
iiereof. •

Page 4 of 4
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New Harfipshlre Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT A

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 3.1, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is
amended as follows: ,

3 1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, and
subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive Council of the.
State of New Hampshire as indicated in block 1.17, this Agreement, and
all obligations of the parlies hereunder. shall become effective on August

, 15,2020.

1.2. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion-of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

■ 3 3 The parlies may extend the Agreement for up to three (3) additional years
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parlies, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.3. Paragraph 12.' Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

T2.3' Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor Is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with ali subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed
and how corrective action shall be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall manage the
subcontractor's performance on an" ongoing basis and lake corrective
action .as necessary, the Contractor shall annually provide the Slale.with
a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify
the State of any Inadequate subcontractor performance..

SS-202l-OHE-0i-RePUG 02 GxhibH A •. Rev<sli)na lo Sjandard Coniiaci Ptovtetons Conlraclof iniUaJs
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampahlre Refugee.Health Promolion'Program

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1.The Contraclor shall provide services and activilies that promote the health and
wellbeing of designated eligible refugees. Services shall Include, but are not
limited to. medical and mental health case management, health orientations,
health education, and health provider education. Services, will ensure that
refugees: (1) obtain needed health (including mental health) care beyond the
initial health screening: and (2) gain the basic knowledge and skills they need to
navigate the U.S. healtti care system and to manage their own health and health
care independently. Services will help to increase refugee access to health care
and to reduce gaps In services. .

1.2.The Contractor shall ensure services are delivered statewide with a focus on the
geographic areas of Concord, Manchester, and Nashua.

1.3. The Contractor shall designate a'case manager to provide health (including
mental health) case management , services to ensure refugees "with complex
health conditloris obtain needed health care beyond the initial health exam,
including appropriate health insurance.

1.4. The Contractor shall ensure case management services include, but are not
limited to:,,

1.4.1. Scheduling and coordinating medical and mental health appointments;

1.4.2, Accompanying clients to medical appointments;

■  ■ . 1.4.3. Providing and facilitating the provision of transportation to and from the
appointments;

1.4.4. Ensuring appropriate interpreter services are available as,necessary
during appointments; and ' ■

1.4.6. Assisting refugees with obtaining appropriate health insurance,.

1.5. The Contractor shall ensure a uniform, continuous and timely transition of case
management services from the initial refugee health examination to all needed
follow-up care beginning after ttie completion of the initial refugee health
examination and/or on day ninety one (91) of resettlement (whichever is sooner),
to ensure there are no gaps in servtces.and continuity of care.

■  1 .e.The Contraclor shall schedule an initial dental appointment for all refugee children ■
(age 0-18) within six (6) months of arrival.

1.7. The Contractor shall conduct culturally and .linguistically sensitive health
orientations which shall include, but not be limited to the following topics:

1.7.1." Navigating the U.S. health care system. .

1.7.2. Health insurance, including Refugee Medical Assistance.-

SS-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-02 Conlroctor Initials——
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Han^pshlre Rofugoe Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B

'1.7.3. Privacy and consent laws.

1.7.4.. The right to language assistance in health care settings and the role of
interpreters.

1.7.5. Transportation options for medical appointments, including but not limited j
to: . . . . ' j
1.7.5.1. Public transportation training: and . i

17.5.2. Arranging Medicaid transportation. . i
1.7.6.' Understanding types of health care providers including but not limited to: .

1.7.6.1. Primary care providers; •

1.7.6.2. Specialists; and l

1.7.6.3. Pharmacists. 1

1.7.7. Understanding types of health care (e.g., preventive, urgent, emergency). ;
and when, where and how to access each type. j

1.7.8. Understanding availability of and when, where and how to access |
mental/behavioral health services, including treatment for substance use j

disorders. . . " ^ i
!

1.7.9. Scheduling, keeping and cancelling appointments.

1.7.10. What to bring to appointments.

1.7.11. Medication, including but not limited to:

'  1.7.11.1'.The difference between prescriptions and over-the-counter
medication;

1.7.11.2. Refills;

1.7.11.3. Dosage instructions; and

, 1.7.11.4. Side effects. .

1.8.The Contractor shall provide appropriate interpreter services and translated
materials for the health orientations'. ■ '

1.9. The Contractor shall adapt the health orientation curriculum to accommodate the
needs of new refugee populations, with approval from the State Refugee

.  Program.

1.10. The Contractor shall maintain documentation of individual refugees who have
received health orientation services, including but not limiled to the following:

1.10.1. The individual clients participating in the health orientation;

1.10.2. The topic(s) of orientation completed by each participant; ■

SS.2C21-OHE-01-REFUG-02 Contractor Initials —
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EXHIBIT B

111. The contraclor shall conduct both group (defined" as a minimum of two (2)
participants) and individual health orientations, including at least one home visit
to reinforce and clarify the information presented In .the group setting, and to
address unique issues and concerns.

1.12. The Cohlractor shall provide, solely or. in collaboration-with other organizations,
at least six (6) group health education classes. The contractor shall:

■1.12.1. Identify topics of concern in each of the various refugee populations and
prioritize the topics that are most urgent or relevant on an ongoing basis.

1.12.2. Invite and arrange for outside organizations to provide'health education
classes on the Identified topics that are within their expertise;

.1.12.3. Schedulelhepresenters;

1.12.4. Ensure the provision of interpreter services;
1.12.5. Notify clients of class schedules:
1.12.6. Health education session topics may Include, but are not limited to;

1.12.6.1. Health insurance terms, coverage requirements, options and the
enrollment process.

1.12.6.2. Disabilities, including but not limited to autism".

■  1.12.6.3. Women's health, including but not limited-to domestic violence
and reproductive health;

1.12.6.4.Men'sheaIth;

■ 1.12.6.5. Emotional Wellness:,

1.12.6.6. Lesbian. Gay. Bisexual, and Transgender (LGBT) health;
■  1.12.6.7. Oral health and hygiene;

1.12.6.8. Vision health;.

1.12.6.9. Nulrilion and benefits of exercise;
1.12.6.10.Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV);

1.12.6.11 .Tuberculosis risk reduction;
1.12.6.12.Fire safety:

1.12.7. The Contractor shall provide health education in a culturally and
linguislically appropriate manner.

1.12.8. The" Contractor shall distribute satisfaction surveys at health education
sessions, to survey clients on the usefulness of the . information,
presentation style, and other relevant information.

SS-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-02 ConUoctor Initials
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EXHIBIT 8

1.13. The Contractor shall Inform and coordinate community resources for the provision
of health care services not covered by Refugee Medical Assistance (RMA) or
other funding sources.

1.14. The Contractor shall support the provision of nonclinical interventions, such as
adjustment support groups, to promote refugee wellness and prevent suicide.

1.15. The .Contractor shall participate iri National Alliance ori Mental Illness Merita! .
Health First Aide trainings and/or other similar professional development
opportunities, to Inform'practices.

1.16. The Contractor shall support and/or assist with periodic screening of refugees
for emotional distress using the Refugee Health Screener 15 (RHS-15).
communicate results, and rhake referrals to health care providers as needed.

1.17. The Contractor shall maintain relationships with the health (including menial ■
health) providers within the refugee resettlement network through outreach,
education and meetings. Areas of focus shall include but are not limited to:

1.17.1. Refugee health needs and culture.

1.17.2. Barriers to care that mayindude but are not limited to language, cultural
factors, and transportation Issues,

1.17.3. Continued adherence to the CDC Refugee Health Guidelines for the initial
•domestic medical examination.

1.17.4.-National Standards for CLAS In beallh and healthcare.

1.18. The Contractor shall develop and foster relationships with a minimum of four (4)
health care (including menial health) providers who are not in the refugee
resettlement network through outreach, meetings and education. Areas of focus -
shall include, but not be iimited to the following:

1.18.1. Refugee health needs and culture.

1.18.2. Barriers to care that include, but are not limited to language and culture
barriers, and transportatiori issues.

1.18.3. CDC Refugee Health Guidelines for the initial domestic medical
examination.

1.18.4. National Standards for CLAS In health and healthcare.

1.19. The Contractor shall provide education and training to refugees at various
stages of resettlement about the availability of health insurarice through the

■ Marketplace and alternative sources.

1.20. The Contractor shall provide assistance with accessing, navigating and enrolling
in health insurance options through the Marketplace, expanded Medicaid or
other financial assistance options including but not limited to facilitating
applications.
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EXHIBIT B

1.21. The Contractor shall provide planning and evaluation for Refugee. Health
Promotion Program (RHPP), including but not limited to the following;

1.21.1. Develop and coltecl linguistically appropriate surveys/questionnaires that
are built into health sessions and trainings.

1.21.2. track the following;

1.21.2.1. Number of.referrals made;

1.21.2.2. Number of training sessions and participants; ,

•  1.21.2.3. Number of consultations or point of, contact with providers;
and

1.21.2.4. Number of meetings and training sessions.

,1.21.3: Feedback with health service providers to learn how the coordination is
• working and make adjustments as necessary.

1.21.4. Internal feedback with staff, particularly case managers ;(and other case
management specialists) to evaluate the relevance of the'orientations to ■
implement necessary changes leading to anticipated Improvements.

. 1.22; The Contractor shall communicate any health screening results received,
which' may be conducted by the Contractor or by a third party, concerning a
client, to medical providers as needed.

1.23. The-Contractor-shall facilitate referrals to behavioral health providers, as
needed.

1.24. The Contractor shall maintain documentation of the following:

1.24.1. Overall number of refugees resellled in the reporting period.

1.24.2. Number of initial domestic health examinations completed within thirty (30);
sixty (60) and ninety (90) days of arrival.

1..24.3. Number of refugees receiving health and/or mental health case
management services to address complex health conditioris beyond the
initial domestic health examination.

1.24.4.'The demographics of the refugees served, including gender, age. primary .
language; and country fled.

. 1.24.5. Number of refugees referred for follow-up services related to Dental
Issues. Emergency Issues (ER). Tuberculosis. HIV, Mental Health,
Infectious Disease. Physical Therapy. Prenatal .Care. Hearing Issues.
Vision Issues, and other conditions identified by the NH State Refugee
Health Coordinator.

■  1.24.6. Number of refugees assisted In,obtaining appropriate health insurance - .
both upon arrival, and. at the time of transition off Refugee Medical

• Assistance. .

^  - \ 1 •
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EXHIBIT B

1.25. The Contractor shall identify the primary health related issues of. concern In
each of the various refugee communities. Concerns may include but are not
limited to diabetes, hypertension, mental health and/or oral health concerns.

1.26. • The Contractor shall provide all required reporting to.the Departrrient within
fifteen (15) days following the completion of the reporting period.

1.27. The Contractor shall provide semi-annual reporting to the Department within
thirty (30) days following the completion of the reporting period.

1.28. The Contractor shall provide all required reporting at in-person meetings as
requested by the Department.

1.29. The Contractor shall have the following staff:

1.29.1. One (1) Administrator; and

1.29.2. One (1) Health Case Manager.

1.30. The .Contractor shall participate in trainings in order to understand health
insurance coverage and enrollment requirements on both the state and federal
level.'

2. Reporting Requirements

2.1. The Contractor shall submit-monthly reports to the Department within thirly
(30) days following the end of the reporting period, to. include but not limited

■  to:

2.1.1. Number arrivals by gender and Immigration status. •

2.1.2. Number receiving tuberculosis screening within the following time periods:

2.1.2.1. Thirty (30) days of arrival;

2.1.2.2. Thirty (30) to ninety (90) days of arrival; and

2.1.2.3; . Ninety (90) days or more.

2.1.3., Number receiving initial health exam within the following time periods:
2.1.3.1. Thirty (30) days of arrival;

2.1.3.2. Thirty (30) to ninety (90) days of arrival; and

2.1.3.3. Ninety (90) days or more.

2.1.4. Number of children age six (6) months to sixteen (16) years of age that
have been screened for lead,

■ I1.5. Number of children scheduled for first dental.appoinlmeni within six (6)
. months of arrival.

■ 2.1.6. Number of clients referred to the following:

2.1.6.1. Primary care provider; 1

2.1.6.2. , Dental care provider;

SS-2021-OH£.01.REFUG-02 Coniractof Initials
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EXHIBIT B

2.1.6.3. Emergency room;'

2.1.6.4. Mental health provider;

2.1.6.5. Infectious disease specialist;

2.1.6.6. Vision care provider;

2.1.6.7. Hearing care provider;

2.1.6.8. Pre-natal care provider; and «

2.1.6.9. Other specialists.

2.1.7. Number of clients receiving services by country of origin.

2.1.8. Number of clients receiving health case management services;

2.1.9. Number receiving mental health case management services.

2.1.10. Number clients participating in an adjustment support group.

2.1.11. Number clients receiving initial health orientation and topic(s) covered.

•2.1.12. Numljer clients receiving health educatton and topic(s) covered.

2.1.13. Number of service providers receiving training.

2.1.14. Number of health case manager trainings and topicfs).

2.2. The Conlmctbr shall submit semi-annual reports to the Department within
thirty (30)..days following the period completion, and as required by grantor.^

2.3. The Contractor shall submit a final prograrri report to the Department within
thirty (30) days prior to the completion of the contract period.

3. Performance Measures

3.1. The Contractor shall ensure the following performance Indicators are achieved
annually and monitored on a monthly basis to measure the effectiveness of
the agreement:

3.1.1. 100% of all health-related orientations and workshops/trainings shall be
provided throughout the project period, as necessary.

3;i .2. 100% of all newly arrived refugees and those who have been in the United
States two (2) years or less shall be prioritized.,

3.1.3. 100% of all written materials and resources produced shall be identified
and prioritized for translation as applicable.

3.1.4. 100% of all interpreter services shall be coordinated consistently and
regularly throughout the project period.'

3.1.5. 100% of all refugees with acute or chronic health conditions who require
care beyond the initial medical examination. shall receive case
management, Including but not limited to:

iT
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EXHIBIT B

3.1.5.1. Scheduling and coordinaling medical appointments:

3.1.5.2. Transportation services; and

3.1.5.3. Interpretation services.

3.1.6. 80% of refugees shall demonstrate increased knowledge about health
insurance requirements including how. when and where to enroll in health
Insurance.

3.1.7. 80% of adults will demonstrate increased knowledge about accessing and-
navigating US Health system.

3.1.8. 80% of adults will know, how to make and keep health appointments.

3.1.9. 60% of adults will know how to use public,-Medicaid and/or appropriate
transportation to get to medical appointments.

3.1.10. 80% of adults will dernonstrale increased knowledge of at least one health
topic.

3.1.11. 100% of clients with health needs beyond initial exam will be scheduled for.
follow-up care.

3.1.12.100% of arrivals with menial health needs will be scheduled for

appointment within 60 days of arrival..

3.1.13. A minimum of four (4) new relationships wilh providers outside of the
refugee resettlement network shall be established during each annual
project period.

•  3.1.14. A minimum of four (4). meetings with providers within the refugee
resettlement network shall take place during each annual project period.

3.2. The Contractor shall measure program outputs through the following which shall
Include bul not be limited to: '

3.2.1. Number and percentage of new refugees' attending group health
/  orientations, and the topics completed during each session;

3.2.2. Number of percentage of new refugees' receiving a health home visit.

3.2.3. Number of referrals to health, mental and behavioral health or other
services.

3.3.-The Contractor shall measure the health literacy among refugees and the
improvement of their understanding of their health and of the American health
system by utilizing a simple questionnaire offered at .each workshop and
orientation.

3.4.The Contractor shall track the number of individuals participating In* and
completing health education sessions, as well as the topics covered in each
session.

SS-2021-OHE-01-ReFUG.02 Contraclor Initials
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EXHIBIT B

3.5. The Contractor shall track the number and percentage of refugees receiving
health and mental health case management services, including:

3.5.1. Refugee demographics.

3.6. The Contractor shaii. track the number of health providers in the refugee
resettlement network receiving education/ training.

3.6.1. The Contractor shall track the number of health providers outside the
refugee resettlement network receiving education/training.

3.7. The Contractor shall measure the effectiveness of support services-provided.to
refugees to increase their access to appropriate health insurance by tracking
the number and percentage of refugees accessing affordable health Insurance
upon arrival and those educated about and referred for assistance in obtaining
appropriate health insurance, when transilioning off ■ Refugee Medical
Assistance.

3.8. The Contractor shall work collaboratively with the Department and other, key
stakeholders to adapt any performance targets if necessary.

3.9. The Contractor shall develop and submit a corrective action plan- to the
Department for any performance measure that was not achieved.

3.10. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes. *

3.11." the Contractor may be required to provide other-key data and metrics to the
Department, including client-level demographic, performance, and service data.

■  3.12. Where applicable, the Contractor shall collect and share, data with the
Department in a format specified by the Department.

4. Additional Terms

4.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

4.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or.federal legislation
or court orders rriay have an impact on the Services described herein, the
State has the right to modify Service priorities and expenditure
requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

4.2. Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services (CLAS)

4.2.1. The Contractor shall submit and comply with a detailed description of the
language assistance services they will provide to persons with limited
English proficiency and/or hearing impairment to ensure, meaningful
access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective dale.

SS-2021-OHE.01-REFUG..02 Conffsclof Initials,

International Inslilule of Nonv England, Inc. Pago 9 of 13 Dale,

.^T



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B

4.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

4.3.1. All documents, nolices, press releases, research reporls and other
materials-prepared during or resulting from the performance of the services'
of the Contract shall include the following statement, "The preparation of
this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds
provided in part by the Stale of New Hampshire and/or such other funding
sources as were available or,required, e.g., the United States Department
of Health and Human Services."

4.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the contract shall have prior
approval from the Department before printing, production,-distribution or
use.

4.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and-all original
materials produced, including, but not limited to;

4.3.3.1. Brochures.

4.3.3.2. Resource directories.

4.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

4.3.3.4. Posters.

4.3.3.5. ' Reporls..

4.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
contract without prior written approval from Ihe Department.

4.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

4.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor shall
comply with all lav^s, orders and regulations of federal, state, county and
municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall imposd an order or duty upon the contractor
with respect to the operation of the facility or the provision of the services,
at such facility. If any governmental license or permit shall be required for
the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times
comply with the terms and conditions o^each such license-or permit. In
connection with the foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby
covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract Ihe facilities
shall comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of Ihe
Stale Office of the Fire Marshal and the local fire prelection agency, and
shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.
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EXHIBIT B

4.5. Eligibility Determinations

4.5.1. If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligiljility of individuals such
eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable
federal and state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and
procedures.

4.5.2. Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by the
Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times
as are prescribed by the Department.

4.5.3. In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the
Contractor shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services
hereunder, which file shall include all information-necessary to support an
eligibility determination and such other Information as the Department
requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and
documentation regafding eligibility determinations that the-Department
may request or require.

4.5.4. The Coniraclor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as
well as .individuals declared Ineligible have a right to a fair hearing
regarding that determinalion. The Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill put an
application form and'that each.applicahi or re-applicant shall be informed
of his/her right to a fair hearing in accordance with Department regulations;

5. Records

5.1. The Contractor shall keep records that Include, but are not limited to:

5.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
. evidencirtg and .reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the

Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received or
collected by the Contractor.

5.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting procedures
and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and
expenses, and which are acceplable to the Department, and to include,,
without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence .of
costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for
materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions, labor lime cards,
payrolls, and other records requested or required by the Department."

5.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records shall include all records of applicatiori and eligibility
(including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient),
records regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to
the Department to obtain payment for such services.
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EXHIBITS

5,.2. ' During the term of. this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the,
Department, the United Stales Departmeni of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination.

.  excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of
the price limitation hereunder. the Contract and all the obligations of the parties
hereunder (except such obligations as. by the terms of the Contract are to be
performed after the end of the term' of this Contract and/or survive the
termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if. upon
review of the Final Expenditure Report the Departmeni shall disallow any
expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall
retain the right, at,its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are
disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

6. tGrmlnation Report/Transition Plan

6.1 ■ In'lhe event of early termination of the Agreement, the Contractor shall, within
15 days of notice of early termination, develop and submit to.Ihe"^ State a
Transition Plan for services under the Agreement, Including but not limited to,
Identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services under the
Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

■6 2. The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State arid shall promptly provide
detailed information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to.
any information or data requested by the State related to the termination of the
Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing communication and

■ revisions of the Transition Plan to the Stale as requested.
6.3. in the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to

clients receiving services under the Agreement are transitioned to having
services delivered by another entity including contracted providers or the State,
the Contractor shall provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of services in
the Transition Plan.

6 A The Contractor shall eslablish a method of notifying clients arid other affected
individuals about the transition. The Contractor shall Include the proposed
communications in its Transition Plan submitted to the State as described
above.

7. Exhibits Incorporated
. 7.1. All Exhibits D through H and J are attached hereto and incorporated by reference

herein.

7.2. the Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in compliarice
with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information
(Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health Insurance Port^ility
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EXHIBIT B

"and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996. and in accordance with the attached.
Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement, which has been executed by the parlies
and is Incorporated by reference herein.

7.3. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements,

, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein..
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EXHIBIT C

Payment Terms

1. This Agreement Is funded with federal funds.

2. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred
in thefuiflllmentof this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved

.  line item, as specified in Exhibits C-1. Budget through Exhibit C-4. Budget.
3. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the Slate by the

twentieth {20th) working day of the following month, which identifies and requests
reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month. The
Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, dated and returned to the
Department in order to Initiate payment.

4. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and ■
emailed to laura.mcglashan@dhhs.nh.gov. or invoices may be mailed to:

Laura McGlashan, NH State Refugee Health Coordinator
Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Health Equity
97 Pleasant Street, Thayer Building
Concord. NH 03301
(603)-271-2688

5. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt
of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient
funds are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General Provisions Form
Number P-37 of this Agreement.

6. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the
contract completion date specified in Form"P-37, Genera) Provisions Block 1.7
Completion Date.

7. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit 8. Scope, of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.

8. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in
whole or in part in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions of
Exhibit B. Scope of Services.

9. Notwithstanding, anything to the contrary. Herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event

. of non-compliance with any Federal or Stale ia.w, rule or regulation applicable to
the services provided, or if the said services or pt;pducls have not been
satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditloris of .this
agreement.
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EXHIBIT C

10. Notwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions Form p.37. changes
limited to adjusting amounts- within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may. be made by written agreement of both parlies, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive. Council, if needed and
justified.

11. Audits

11.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department
if any of the following conditions exist:

11.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipientpursuant to 2 CFR
Part 200, during the most recently completed.fiscal year.

11.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to,audit pursuant to
the requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to
charitable organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or
more.

11.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and
required by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC)
regulations to submit an annual financial audit.

.11.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part
200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

11.3. If Condition B..or Condition C exists, the. Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent-CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

11.4. In addition to. and not in any way- in limitation" of obligations of ttie
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contracto.r that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed.because of such an exception.

JnldrnalionaMnslilulOOl NewEnglarxJ. Inc. EKhiWtC CoiKiaclc iniilaii
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 el seq.). and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified In Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION-CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE-CONTRACTORS ]

f

This certificatioh Is required by Ihe regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free j
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub, L. 100-690. Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31. i

' 1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of [he May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691). and require certilicalion by grantees (and by Inference, sub-grantees and sub- |
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-conlraclors) that is a Stale
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year In lieu of certificates for ;
each grant during the federal ilscal year covered by the cetllficalion. The certificate set out below Is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when Ihe agency awards the grant. False •
certification or violation of the ccrtificalion shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants,-or government wide suspension or debarmenl. Contractors using this form should
send it to;

Commissioner '
NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasanl SIreei. '
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue lo provide a drug-free workpfiace by;
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employee's that the unlawful manufacture, dislribotion.

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance Is prohibited in the grantee's
\AWkplace and specifying fhe actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program lo inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse In the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any avaflable drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee asslslance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for "drug abuse violations

occurring In the workplace:
1.3. Making it a requlrernent that each employee lo be engaged in the performance of the grant l?e

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the empJoyeo in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employef in writing of his or her conviction lor a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring In the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency In writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subpbragraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees musl provide notice, iricluding position title, to every grant

' officer on whose grant activity the convlcled employee was working, unless the Federal agency

exhibit O - Certification fegatding Oiog Fiee Vendor IniUals i i
Workplacefleriulremenls ? If 4 IDfs
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

has designated a central point for the receipt of such noticeis. Notice shall include the
identification r»umber(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph. 1.4.2. with respwt to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. as
emended; or

1.6.2. * Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily In a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, Stale, or local health.
law enforcement, or other appropriate egency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1,1.2.1.3.1.4,1.5. and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the sile(s) for the performance ol work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Chock □ If there are workplaces on file that are not tdentilied here.

Vendor Name:

/i?/^.  . /^O - ^
Date i TVi I c( fTiO*)

CBO

cucNHsriioro
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, end
31 U.S.C.-1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as klenlified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following pertificalion:

US DEPARTMENT OP HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE ■ CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program.under Title XX
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care.Developmenl Block'Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certiries. lo the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1  No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on befialf of the undersigned, to
any person for Innuencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, ah officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress m
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or

• modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
•  influencing or atlempling to infiuence an officer or employee of any agency, e l^ember of Congress,

an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal conlract, grant, loan, or cooperalive agreement (and by specific merttion sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with ils'iristruclions. attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards al all tiers (includirig subcontracls. sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreernents) and thai all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.-

This certificalion is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed'when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this

■ transaction imposed by Section mi. Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certificalion shall be subject to a civil penalty of nol less than $10,000 end not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name;

hii,  .

Dale Nai^
Tille: CiF-O

6*hlWt C - CertificaHon RegartJing Lobbytng .Vendor Inlitah.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REQARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive.Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debanment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 end 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the foBowing
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION •

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below. .

2. The Inabllily of a person to provide the cerlincalion required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective parlicipant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection vwlh the NH Department of Health and Human Services- (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary .
participant to furnish a certification or an oxpianalion shall disqualify such person from participation In
this transaction. ' -

3. The certification In this clause Is a material representation of fad upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this Iransaclion. If it is later deiermined that the prospective.
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Fcderal.Government. DHHS may terminate this transaction lor cause or default.

A.' The prospective primary participant shall provide invnediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contraci) Is submilted If at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances. '

5. The terms 'covered transaction.' 'debarred." 'suspended,' 'ineligible.' 'lower tier covered
transaction.' 'participant.* 'person." "primary covered transaction.' 'principal.* 'proposal,' and
'voluntarily excluded.' as uised in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549:45 CFR Part 76. See the -
attached definitions.

6. • The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, shquld the
•proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter Into any lower tier covered
• transaction with a person wrho is debarr^, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless aulhorized by DHHS,

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will Include the
clause tilled "Certification Regarding Debarmenl. Suspension, Ineligibility.and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions." provided by DHHS, without modincalion. irt all lower tier covered
transactions and In all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

6. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the .covered transaction, unless it knovvs that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eliglbiliiy of its principals. Each
participant may. but is not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained In the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

CUCHHSfllOrO

EitfTlbil F - Ccilificstion Regarding Dcbvmer^. Suspension Vendor IniUab.
And Oiner ResportsibiSty Matters
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

informalion of a participant Is not requifed to exceed that which Is normally possessed by a prndent
person in" the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant In a
covered transaction knowingly enlers into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction. In
addition to other remedies available to the Federal goverrunent. DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

primary covered transactions . . .
11 The prospective primary partiapant certifies lo the best of Hs knowledge and belief, thai it and tts

principals;
11.1. ere not presently debarred, suspended, proposed fordebarment. declared ineligible, or

. volunlarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or ager>cy;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection vrilh obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. Slate or local)
transaction or a conlracl under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false stalernents, or rweiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presenlly Indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental enliiy
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of Ihe offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification: and ur

11.4. have not vyithin a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal. Slate or local) terminated for cause or defauli.

12. Where the prospective primary participant Is unable to certify lo any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (conlracl).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS " . . . .
13 By signing and submltting.lhis lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined In 45 CFR Part 76.,certiries to the best of its knowledge end belief thai it and its principals:
13.1. are not presenlly debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or

volunlarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall allach an explanation lo this proposal (contract).

14". The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) thai it will
include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension. Ineiigibilily. and
Voluntary Exclusion • Lower Tier Covered Transadions.' without modificalion In all lower tier covered
transaclions and in all solicilallons for lower tier covered transactions.

Vendor Name;

hi:,  ,20
Date ^

CBO

N  . . \ I
EsNDHF-CertiriceiionRcgcfcfiftgDcbaimenl. Su3per>$lon Vendor Inillab ■ ^ i— /

And Other Responjitftily Melteij •

CUOurSrnoM, P0iC2on



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

/

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor Idenlified In Section 1.3 of the Genera) Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Wenlilied in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, io execute the following
certification:

Vendor will comply, and will require any su^rantees or subconlractors to comply, with any 'applicable
federal rtondiscrlmlnation requirements, which may include:

■ the Omnibus Crime Control and Sale Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C.'Swlion 37a9d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, eKher in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color,.religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delir>quency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute ore prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or'
benefits, on the basis oi race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act Includes Equal
Employment OpportunKy Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or, national origin in any program or activity); -

. the Rehabililalion Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
asslsiance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of •
services.or benefits, in any program or activity;

• the Americans vrilh Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections .12131-34). which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons vwth disabitliies In employrnent, State and focal
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;
- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1601,1683.1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex In federally assisted education programs; •

. the Age Discr'iminqtion Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 610$-07). which prohibits discrimlnalioh on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance, ft does nol inciude
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F-.R. pt; 31 (U.S. Department of Juslice Regulations - OJJOP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pi. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
. and Procedures): Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based end community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whislleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorlzatipn
Act (I^DAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239. enacted January 2.2013) the Pilot Prograrn for
Enhancement of ContracI Employee Wh'rslleblower Protections, which protects employees against-
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance Is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certificalion shall be grour^s for
suspension of payments, suspension or terrr>lnalioh of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarmenl.

EnNbit G ■
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or Stale court or Federal or State administrative eger^cy makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, w sex
egainst a recipieni of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for CiviJ Rights, to
the applicable corilrecting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department b( Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
represemallve as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:.

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (conlract) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions j
indicated above. |

Oite , , . Namt
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227. Part 0 - Erwironmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act) requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facdily owned or leased or _
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day
or library services to children-under the age of 18. if the services are funded by Federal programs eiUier
directly or through Slate or local governments, by Federal grant, contract loa^. or loan
law does not apply' to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded so etyb^^
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for Inpatienl drug or alcohol
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the impos.lion of a civil rnonelary
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an adminislrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the Genera! Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1  By signing and submitting this .contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply w»h
all applicable provisions of Public Low 103-227. Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Nan^e:

o/;

Ve

.

^le ' ■ hJiame;
Title; CiSO
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New Hampshire Department of'Heatth and Human Services

Exhibit I

I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information. 45 . .
CpR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein. "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health iriformalion under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity' shall mean the State of iNew Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" ir^ section 164.402 of Title 45,
•  Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate" has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 of Title 45. Code .
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entitv' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Oesionated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Data AQareQation" shall have the same meaning as.the term "data aggregation" in 45CFR
.  Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations' shall have Ihe same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TitleXIII. Subtitle D. Parti & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinveslrnenl Act of -
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996. Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information. 45 CFR Parts 160.162 and 164 and amendments Iherelo. ■

i. ' 'Individual' shall have the same meaning as the term "indiyiduar in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g); ■

1. "Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Idenliflable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United Stales
Department of Health and Human Services.

k, "Protected Health Information' shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information' In 45 CFR Section 160.103. limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. ty

3^014 ConlnctwlniiiaJj ^
Hcalin Inioranca Poitability Act / a /
Bosirtcss Asjoclate Agfcement
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

I. "Required bv Law' shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health "and Human Services or
his/her desrgnee.

n. "SecuriW Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164. Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
institute.'

p. Other Definitions • Ali terrhs not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164. as amended from time to time, and the
HIT6CH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further. Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its diriectors. officers, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that "would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. • Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law. pursuant to the terms set forth In paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreemenl to disclose PHI to a
' third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for whlch.it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate. In accordance wilh the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of.any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI. to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure Is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agre.ement, disclose any PHI In response, to a
request for disclosure on the basis that It Is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. II Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit (

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHt pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) . Oblloations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer Immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health Information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health Information and/or any security incident that may have an Impact on the
protected health Information of the Covered Entity.

b. • The Business Associate shall Immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the atwve situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be

.  limited to:

0 The nature and extent of the protected health information involved. Including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whorn the
. disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health infonnation was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule. /

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its ihlernal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the sarrie
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy (he PHI as provided under Section. 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's Intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI
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Exhibit t '

pursuant to this Agreement.-with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health Information.

f. Within ftve (5) business days of receipt of o written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at Its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Wthin ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity. .
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity., to an Individual In order to me^et the
requirements under 45 CF_R Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set. the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for .
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulflll-its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

1. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and Information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by. an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
16-1.528.

j. WthIn ten (10) business days of receiving'a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k". " In the event any Individual requests access to, amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the .
fesponsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However. If forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Eritity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and (he Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall Instead respond to the Individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable:

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy; as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate In connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction Is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to In
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction Infeasible. for so long as Business ̂  ̂
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Exhibit I

Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in Its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI. the Busirjess Associate shall certify to

" Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitalion(s) In its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520. to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's ^ ;
use or disclosure of PHI. i

1

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in. or revocatjon
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or j
"disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or ■ :
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to In accordance with 45 CFR 164.622, I
to'the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of i
PHI. ■ I

(5) Termination for Cause {
I

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this |
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered ,
Entity's knowjedge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate \
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately j
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the j
alleged breach within a llmeframe specified by Covered Entity. ■ If Covered Entity ■
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the ■
violation to the Secretary. j

I

{$) Miscellaneous

a. r^efinitions and ReQulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein, j
shall have the same meariing as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to lime. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I. to \
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as i
amended.

b  " Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as Is ■
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as Is necessary for Covered ' j
Entity to comply with the changes In the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and ;

• Security Rule, and applicable federal and stale law,

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
writh respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity. j

d  Inteforetalion. The parlies agree ttiat any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved jto permit.Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule, |
EjNdji I ConlfadOf IniUaH j
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Exhibit I

Seofeaallon. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance Is held invalid, such Invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit! regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agrwment In section (3) I. the
defense and indemnirication provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

•Department of Heatlti and Human Services

The St^e ~ ^

Signalu^ of Authorized Representative

10 of Authorized RMresentative.

; ofAulhorlzed Representative

International Instltute.bf New England

ame ohthe Ooctractor;

Dale

Sl^<^atu)-e of Authorized Representative

Jeffrey Thielrhan

Name of Authorized Representative

President and CEO

Title of Authorized Representative

3ll°llzO
Date

ywi4 ExhiOll I
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New Hampdhire Oepartmont of Health and Human Services
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CERTtFICATIQH REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABIUTY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATAi COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of indtvklual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1. 201Q. to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
Initial award Is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a tola! award, equal to or over
$25 000 the award Is sutjject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following Information for any
eubaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. NameofenHly
2. Amount of award .

3. Funding agency
4. "naICS code for contracts / CFOA program number for grants
6. Program source
6. Award lille descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
„9. .Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS#)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. (Vlore than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues ere greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information b not already available through reporlir^g to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients niust submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.
The Contractor Identified In Section i.3 of the Genera) Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-262 and Public Law 110-252.
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), end further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative; as Identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the foliowing Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Senrlces and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name;

Date N^e: JtiWtry "!>-

cowiS/iioMj PagtloTZ
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Now Hampshire Dopartmcnt of HoaUh and Human Services
Exhibit J

FORMA

As (ho Conlractor kJentided in Seclion 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify (hat the responses to the
below.listed questions are true and accurate..

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or ̂ anizptJon
rece'rve (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts. subconUacts.
loans; grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more In annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal conlracts. subconlracls. loans, grants, subgranls, and/or
cooperative agreements?

J< NO YES

If the answerlo #2 above is NO. stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following;

3  Does the public have access to informaUon about the compensalion.of the executives in your
■  business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (.15 U.S.C.78m(a). 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer lo #3 above is YES. slop here

If the answer to ff3"above Is NO. please answer the following:

■4. The names and compensaUon of the live most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows; •

Name: ,

Name;

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amounl;.

Amount: ,

Amounl;

Amounl;

Amounl:

CU'OKHS'llOM)

ExtilM J - Cert«r«iten Regaiding rh« Federal Fundlag
AceoynlabiUy Arid Tranipaiency Acl (FFATA) CompliarKe

Page 2 of Z

Coniiactor InUiah

Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

. DHHS Information Security. Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning In this document;

1. "Breach" means the loss of control. . compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where, persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information." Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' In section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident' shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NiST Publication 800-61. Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce. - ■

3. •Cbnlidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential Information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information Including without limitation. Substance
Abuse treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information;

•Confidential Informallon also includes any and all informalion ovvned or managed by
the Stale of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of perforrrilng contracted
services - of which cotlectlon, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
slate or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health. Informalion (PHI). Personal Informalion (PI). Personal Financial
Information (PFI). Federal Tax Informalion (Ftl), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential Information.

4. 'End User" means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.-

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6; 'Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacefnenl..loss
or mlsplacemenl of hardcopy documents, and mlsrouling of physical or electronic

V3. Loslupdale IWCWie ' EriiWl K Conltaclor hiiiiali ^ ̂
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DHHS information Security Requirements

mall, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use.-disclosure, modification or destruction.

7." "Open Wireless Network' means any network or-segment of a network that is
not designated by the Slate'of New Hampshire's Department of Information |
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and- \
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) wilt be considered an open j
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFI.
PHI or confidenllai DHHS data. 1

8. 'Personal Information* (or "PI") means Informallon which can be used to distinguish .
.  or (race an Individuars Identity: such as their name, social security number, personal |

information as defined In New Hampshire RSA 359-C:l9. biomelric records, etc.. :
atone, or when combined with other personal or Wenlifying Information which is linked j
or linkable to a sjpeciflc individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden !
name. etc.

0.' "Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Heallh
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Heallh Information" (or 'PHI') has the same meaning as provided in the-
definition of "Protected Health Information' in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C;F.R. §
160.103.

11. 'Security Rule" shall mean the Security'Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subparl C. and amendments
thereto.

12. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards.developing organization (hat Is accredited by

-' the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Iriformation.

vs. LBSUipMle 1(V09/i8 ExtiWlK ConliaclorInillali
DHHS InJotmallon n f / '
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1. The Contractor must not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information ;
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further. Contraclof. 1
Including but not limited to all Its direclors, officers, employees and agenls.-musl not |
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner thai would constitute a violation ■ i
of the Privacy and Security Rule. |

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to' a 1
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requesllfor disclosure on the basis thai it is required by law, in response to 8
subpoena, etc.. without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the.disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound" by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to" the Privacy and Security. Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such

•  additional restrictions arid must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract,

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
•  any other purposes that are not indicated In this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm cbmpliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSfVllSSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS dala containing
Confidential Dala between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert kriowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer.disks
or portable eiorage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data. . ^

3." Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential-Data if
email is encrvpted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized.to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site.' If. End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts dala transmuted via a Web site. .

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
liosling services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Dala via certified ground
mail wUhin the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

vs. Last update KVOWie C-Wbll K Conttector tnilials AiOlUlSlatorinalion t j
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9 Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Conr.dential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must ̂
installed on the End User's rriobile devlce(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.'

10 S.SH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User Is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User wil
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disdosure of
information SFTP folders and sub-folders used for iransmitting Confidential Data will

■ be coded for 24-hour auto-delelion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours). • •

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information,

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data
derivative in whatever form It may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Conlracl. To this end. the parties must:

A. Retention

■  1. . The Conlraclot agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with Ihe sen/ices rendered under this Conlracl outside of the United
Stales. This physical localion requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor.agrees to.ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential securily events thai can impact Stale of NH systems
and/or Department confidential ihlormation for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department .confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and idenllfied in section IV. A.2

■5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored In a Cloud must be In a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution'and comply with all applicable statutes and
requlations regarding the privacy and securily. All servers and devices rnusl have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral. anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware. and anli-malware utilities. The environment, as a

FiihKtK ConlfAclodmlial>_^^JV5.L«U,pd..ct(y09/t6 -DHHltiSLon j ,
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6.-. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer In the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

b; Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on Its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for.any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer In use. electronic media conlainihg Stale of

■ New Hampshire data, shall tje rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
■ in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization. or otherwise physically destroying the rhedia (for exarnple.
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 600-80. Rev 1, Guidelines

.  for Media Sanitization. National Institute of Standards arid Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce." The Contractor will document and certify in wnling at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification viriii Include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirernenls svill be jointly
evaluated by the Slate and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contrktor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3." Unless otherwise 'specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping,

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidenila) information collected,, processed, managed, and/or stored In the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will mainlain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential Information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use. storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e.. tape, disk, paper, etc.).

..
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3 The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit.-or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monlioring capabilities are in place to
delect potential, security events that can impact Stale of NH systems and/or
Department confidential Information for contractor provided sysiems.-

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an inlernal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Conlraclor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to

.  system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Conlraclor Is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160;103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of. the survey is to enable the Deparirhent and
Conlraclor to monitor for any'changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities.that may
occur over the-life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Coniraclor. or the Department may request the survey be completed svhen the
scope of the engagement between the Departmenl and the .Contractor changes.

.10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any Slate of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United Stales
prior express written consent Is obtained from the Information Security Office,
leadership memt)er wilhin the Department,

11 Data Securily Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures lo
prevent future.breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Conridential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that Is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to .federal agencies, including,
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164)*that govern protections for Individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidenliality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized.use or access to It. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security thai is not less than the level and scope of security requirements

- established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
"Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doil/vendOfflndex.htm'
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach nolificalipn and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the Stale's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach Immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This Includes a confidential Information breach, computer

_ security incident.- or suspected breiach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the Stale of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official dulies in connection vvilh-purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure (hat all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced' in Section ly A. above,
implernented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under Ihls Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

- b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Conlidenlial Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by-email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.
f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually

identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored In an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys,
blomelric identifiers, etc.)-

Q, only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, iricluding any
derivative files containing personalty identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other Instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate, safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

I  understand thai their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies toVedentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users.- OHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspeclions to monitor compliance with this
Contract including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

I

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notily the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of ainy
Security Incidents and'Breaches, immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Sectiori VI. ^ '

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to. and

' notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor .will:
1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;
3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required In this Exhibit or P-37.
4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of incidents

and determine risk-based responses to incidents; and.
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5. Determine whether Breach notincalion is required, and. if so. identify appropriate
Breach notification methods; timing, source, and contents from among O'fferent
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as svell-as any mUigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that Implicate Pi must be addressed and repoMed. as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer;

OHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

.  B. DHHS Security Officer;

OHHSInformalionSecurilyOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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